
           

MEETING AGENDA
City Council

REGULAR SESSION CITY COUNCIL
December 1, 2020

                               

 

HAL BALDWIN MUNICIPAL COMPLEX COUNCIL CHAMBERS
1400 SCHERTZ PARKWAY BUILDING #4

SCHERTZ, TEXAS 78154

CITY OF SCHERTZ CORE VALUES
Do the right thing

Do the best you can
Treat others the way you want to be treated

Work cooperatively as a team 
  

AGENDA
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 1, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.

Overflow seating available at the Civic Center, Conference Hall, Building #5
  

City Council will hold its regularly scheduled meeting at 6:00 p.m.,
Tuesday, December 1, 2020, at the City Council Chambers. In lieu of attending
the meeting in person, residents will have the opportunity to watch the meeting
via live stream on the City’s YouTube Channel.
           

Call to Order - Regular meeting
 

Opening Prayer and Pledges of Allegiance to the Flags of the United States and State of Texas.
(Councilmember Scagliola)
 

Presentation 

Fundraiser donation presentation from the Scenic Hills Subdivision to our first responders in
Schertz. (C. Kelm/J. Mabbitt/B. Hill) Christin Taylor - Pat McMaster - Carol Najarian from
Scenic Hills)
Citizen Life Saving award. (C. Kelm/K. Long)

 

Hearing of Residents

December 1, 2020  City Council Agenda                                  Page 1 

  



Hearing of Residents

Residents who choose to watch the meeting via live stream, but who would like to participate in Residents to be
Heard, should email their comments to City Secretary, Brenda Dennis, at bdennis@schertz.com by 5:00 p.m. on
Monday, November 30, 2020, SO THAT THE CITY SECRETARY MAY READ THE PUBLIC
COMMENTS INTO THE RECORD UNDER THE HEARING OF RESIDENTS.  In the body of the
email please include your name, your address, phone number, agenda item # if applicable or subject of discussion,
and your comments.

This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should fill out
the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more than 3 minutes.

All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any individual member thereof.
Any person making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks while addressing the Council may
be requested to leave the meeting.

Discussion by the Council of any item not on the agenda shall be limited to statements of specific factual
information given in response to any inquiry, a recitation of existing policy in response to an inquiry,
and/or a proposal to place the item on a future agenda. The presiding officer, during the Hearing of
Residents portion of the agenda, will call on those persons who
have signed up to speak in the order they have registered.
 

City Events and Announcements 

Announcements of upcoming City Events (B. James/C. Kelm/S. Gonzalez)
Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager (M. Browne)
Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor (R. Gutierrez)

 

Consent Agenda Items

The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the Council with one
motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless they are removed from the Consent
Agenda upon the request of the Mayor or a Councilmember.
 

1. Minutes – Consideration and/or action regarding the approval of the minutes of the Regular
meeting of November 10, 2020, and the minutes of the Special meeting of November 16,
2020.  (B. Dennis)

 

2. Resolution No. 20-R-139 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas approving requests for Schertz Main Street Local Flavor
Economic Development Grants for 539 and 820 Main Street. (B. James)

 

3. Ordinance No. 20-S-37 - Consideration and/or action upon a request to amend the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan by changing approximately 40 acres of the Future Land Use
Map from the Estate Neighborhood and Agricultural Conservation land use designations to the
Single-Family Residential land use designation, generally located approximately 4,000 feet
east of the intersection between FM 1518 and Lower Seguin Road, also known as Bexar
County Property Identification Numbers 310024 and 310031, City of Schertz, Bexar County,
Texas. Final Reading (B. James/L. Wood/ N. Koplyay)

 

4. Ordinance No. 20-K-35 - Consideration/or action upon an Ordinance requesting to close and

December 1, 2020  City Council Agenda                                  Page 2 

  



4. Ordinance No. 20-K-35 - Consideration/or action upon an Ordinance requesting to close and
abandon to the abutting property owners a portion of Urban Lane Right-of-Way between Live
Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 1, Block 55 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32206) and Live Oak
Hills Subdivision Lot 18, Block 54 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32205); and establishing
an effective date hereof.  Final Reading (B.James/L. Wood/E. Delgado)

 

5. Resolution 20-R-140 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, awarding a professional services contract to Avant
Strategic Partners for required bond arbitrage calculations and filing. (B. James/J. Walters)

 

6. Resolution No. 20-R-119 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with AG|CM Inc, in an amount
not to exceed $32,663 for the construction management of the Schertz Pedestrian Routes &
Bike Lanes Project and the Live Oak Road Turn Lane Addition. (B. James/L. Shrum)

 

7. Resolution No. 20-R-118 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with D&S Concrete, in the
amount of $1,256,960.95 for the construction of the Schertz Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lanes
Project and the Live Oak Road Turn Lane Addition. (B. James/L. Shrum)

 

8. Resolution No. 20-R-134 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease
agreement with Stryker Flex Financial for the acquisition of sixteen (16) Stryker Life Pak
monitor/defibrillators, associated equipment and service plan.  (C. Kelm/J. Mabbitt)

 

Discussion and Action Items
 

9. Ordinance No. 20-T-38 - Consideration and/or action approving an Ordinance by the City
Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing an adjustment to the fiscal year 2020-2021
budget, repealing all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with this Ordinance; and
providing an effective date. First Reading (M. Browne/B. James/J. Walters)  

 

10. Resolution 20-R-141 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution adding Christmas
Eve to the City's Holiday Schedule and authorizing Education Pay for Eligible Full-Time City
Employees. (C. Kelm/J. Kurz)

 

Public Hearings
 

11. Ordinance No. 20-S-41 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon a
request to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from Neighborhood Services District (NS)
to Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU), located at 603 Main Street, City of Schertz,
Guadalupe County, Texas. First Reading (B. James/L. Wood/N. Koplyay).

 

12. Ordinance No. 20-S-42 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon request
to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from General Business District (GB) to Main
Street Mixed Use District (MSMU), located at 539 Main Street, City of Schertz, Guadalupe
County, Texas. First Reading (B. James/L. Wood/N. Koplyay).

 

December 1, 2020  City Council Agenda                                  Page 3 

  



 

13. Ordinance No. 20-S-40 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon a
request for a Specific Use Permit to allow the ‘Commercial Amusement, Outdoor’ land use on
approximately 17.5 acres of land, located at 18658 Interstate Highway 35 N, City of Schertz,
Guadalupe County, Texas, also known as Wiederstein Ranch Lot 1, Block 1. First Reading (B.
James/L. Wood/N. Koplyay)

 

14. Ordinance No. 20-T-39 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon an
Ordinance to extend the term of the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment zone No. 2
(Sedona/Crossvine) and expand the boundaries. First Reading (B. James)

 

Roll Call Vote Confirmation
 

Workshop
 

15. Workshop Discussion and Update (Ordinance 20-H-18) - Discussion and update regarding
the COVID-19 virus and our current Ordinance No. 20-H-18 Declaration of Local Disaster.
(M. Browne/K. Long/S. Hall)

 

16. City Council Liaison Appointments - Discussion and possible action regarding various City
Council liaison appointments. (Mayor/Council/B. Dennis)

 

Roll Call Vote Confirmation
 

Information available in City Council Packets - NO DISCUSSION TO OCCUR
 
 

17. Update on Utility Billing Operation Changes. (B. James/J. Walters)
 

18. Update on Scope and Philosophy of the Comprehensive Plan and UDC Update. (B. James)
 

Requests and Announcements 

Announcements by the City Manager.

Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for updates or information from staff.  
 
Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers that items or presentations be placed on a future City
Council agenda.
 
Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers
  

City and community events attended and to be attended
City Council Committee and Liaison Assignments (see assignments below)
Continuing education events attended and to be attended
Recognition of actions by City employees
Recognition of actions by community volunteers

 

December 1, 2020  City Council Agenda                                  Page 4 

  



Adjournment
 

CERTIFICATION 

I, BRENDA DENNIS, CITY SECRETARY OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS, DO HEREBY
CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE AGENDA WAS PREPARED AND POSTED ON THE OFFICIAL
BULLETIN BOARDS ON THIS THE 25th DAY OF NOVEMBER 2020 AT 4:00 P.M., WHICH IS A
PLACE READILY ACCESSIBLE TO THE PUBLIC AT ALL TIMES AND THAT SAID NOTICE
WAS POSTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE.
  

BRENDA DENNIS 
 

I CERTIFY THAT THE ATTACHED NOTICE AND AGENDA OF ITEMS TO BE
CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL WAS REMOVED BY ME FROM THE OFFICIAL
BULLETIN BOARD ON _____DAY OF _______________, 2020. TITLE: ______________ 

This facility is accessible in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Handicapped parking
spaces are available. If you require special assistance or have a request for sign interpretative services
or other services, please call 210-619-1030. 

The City Council for the City of Schertz reserves the right to adjourn into closed session at any
time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by
the Texas Open Meetings Act.

Closed Sessions Authorized: This agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal
counsel and the presence of any subject in any Closed Session portion of the agenda constitutes a
written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by legal counsel for the
governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering available opinions of a court of
record and opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney. This provision has been
added to this agenda with the intent to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government
Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by all participants in reliance on this
opinion. 
   

December 1, 2020  City Council Agenda                                  Page 5 

  



   
COUNCIL COMMITTEE AND LIAISON ASSIGNMENTS

   
Mayor Gutierrez
Audit Committee
Investment Advisory Committee
Main Street Committee

Councilmember Scagliola – Place 5
Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation -
Alternate
Hal Baldwin Scholarship Committee
Interview Committee for Boards and Commissions -
Alternate
Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation

Councilmember Davis– Place 1
Audit Committee
Interview Committee for Boards and
Commissions
Main Street Committee - Chair
Schertz Housing Authority Board
TIRZ II Board

Councilmember Scott – Place 2
Interview Committee for Boards and Commissions

 

Councilmember Whittaker – Place 3

 

Councilmember Dahle – Place 4
Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation
Interview Committee for Boards and Commissions
TIRZ II Board

Councilmember Heyward – Place 6
Audit Committee
Investment Advisory Committee
Schertz Animal Services Advisory
Commission

Councilmember Brown – Place 7
Main Street Committee
Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation -
Alternate
 

  

December 1, 2020  City Council Agenda                                  Page 6 

  



Agenda No. 1.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: City Secretary

Subject:
Minutes – Consideration and/or action regarding the approval of the minutes of
the Regular meeting of November 10, 2020, and the minutes of the Special
meeting of November 16, 2020.  (B. Dennis)

BACKGROUND
The City Council held a Regular City Council meeting on November 10, 2020 and a Special City
Council meeting on November 16, 2020.

RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend Approval. 

Attachments
11-10-2020 Minutes 
11-16-2020 Minutes 



MINUTES
REGULAR MEETING

 November 10, 2020

A Regular Meeting was held by the Schertz City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas,
on November 10, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. in the Hal Baldwin Municipal Complex Council
Chambers, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Building #4, Schertz, Texas. The following members
present to-wit:
 
Present: Mayor Ralph Gutierrez; Mayor Pro-Tem Rosemary Scott; Councilmember

Mark Davis; Councilmember Scott Larson; Councilmember Michael Dahle;
Councilmember David Scagliola; Councilmember Allison Heyward 

Absent: Councilmember Tim Brown 
City
Staff:

City Manager Dr. Mark Browne; Assistant City Manager Brian James;
Assistant City Manager Charles Kelm; City Attorney Daniel Santee; City
Secretary Brenda Dennis; Assistant to the City Manager Sarah Gonzalez;
Deputy City Secretary Gayle Wilkinson 

 

               
Call to Order 

Mayor Gutierrez called the regular meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
 
Opening Prayer and Pledges of Allegiance to the Flags of the United States and
State of Texas. (Mayor Gutierrez)

Mayor Gutierrez provided the opening prayer followed by the Pledges of Allegiance
to the Flags of the United States and the State of Texas.

Mayor Gutierrez mentioned that while you are sitting in the audience you may or may
not choose to wear your masks, you may remove your masks when speaking, but if
you move around the chambers, we ask that you please place your masks back on.

Mayor Gutierrez recognized the following distinguished guests who were in the
audience this evening and recognized the following:  Commissioner Elect Michael
Carpenter and City Council elect Jill Whittaker. 
 
Hearing of Residents

1 

  



Hearing of Residents

Residents who choose to watch the meeting via live stream, but who would like to
participate in Residents to be Heard, should email their comments to City
Secretary, Brenda Dennis, at bdennis@schertz.com by 5:00 p.m. on Monday,
November 9, 2020, SO THAT THE CITY SECRETARY MAY READ THE
PUBLIC COMMENTS INTO THE RECORD UNDER THE HEARING OF
RESIDENTS.   In the body of the email please include your name, your address,
phone number, agenda item # if applicable or subject of discussion, and your
comments.

This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each
person should fill out the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should
be limited to no more than 3 minutes.

All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any individual
member thereof. Any person making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks
while addressing the Council may be requested to leave the meeting.

Discussion by the Council of any item not on the agenda shall be limited to statements
of specific factual information given in response to any inquiry, a recitation of existing
policy in response to an inquiry, and/or a proposal to place the item on a future
agenda. The presiding officer, during the Hearing of Residents portion of the agenda,
will call on those persons who have signed up to speak in the order they have
registered.

Mayor Gutierrez recognized the following who spoke: 

Ms. Maggie Titterington - The Chamber - who provided information (Please see
the Chambers website)  regarding the recent and upcoming Chamber
events: Veterans Ceremony at the Schertz Veterans Memorial Plaza, Brigadier
General Carolyn Miller will be our keynote speaker as well as Representative
Kemple and Senator Donna Campbell.  Ms. Titterington mentioned that we have
the Stars Complex off IH 35 old Garden Ridge Building. Danny and Rebecca
Rios are utilizing the building to be used as a sports complex for professional
cheer, tournaments, wrestling, baseball pitching and league training. There were
challenges in getting the building ready, but staff members such as Mr. James,
Mr. Kelm, Ms. Suzanne Williams, and Mr. Gill Durant gathered to work out all
the kinks. She personally thanked them for all the assistance.
Mr. Brent Bolter- 2633 Cloverbrook Lane- who spoke from his heart regarding
his concerns with the recent Schertz Police incident. Mr. Bolter expressed his
desire for transparency in this situation and would like the investigation to speak
for itself.  This is something Mr. Bolter thought he would never see in Schertz. 

Mayor Gutierrez read the following: It is important to mention that Council is not
permitted to discuss or comment during the hearing of residents or on any topic that is

2 

  



permitted to discuss or comment during the hearing of residents or on any topic that is
not posted on the agenda. 

He stated that he did prepare a statement that he would like to read. " Thank you for
joining us today. We appreciate and value your presence and concerns. It is regrettable
our City is enduring this situation. However, when laws are broken, we turn to law
enforcement to restore order and protect our community, for without laws there is no
order. The presumption of innocence applies to all, and decisions should be based on
facts, and not emotions.
 
We live in a diverse community, everyone has the right to have a different view point
and different opinion. We acknowledge the anxiety that perplexes you. We
acknowledge the despair that frightens you. We acknowledge your concerns, and we
understand why you feel this way. Our community is hurting, together we must start
the healing process.

One of our City’s strongest core values is "To Do The Right Thing."  We are
painfully enduring a complex, delicate, and fragile matter.  We ask for everyone’s
patience as we move through the process."
 
City Events and Announcements 

Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor (R. Gutierrez)

None were provided.

Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager (M. Browne)

None were provided.

Announcements of upcoming City Events (B. James/C. Kelm/S. Gonzalez)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Assistant City Manager Charles Kelm who provided
the following announcements:

Wednesday, November 11th
Community Veterans Day Ceremony at 9:00 AM, Veterans Memorial Plaza, 512
Schertz Parkway, Schertz
City Offices Closed
  
Saturday, November 14th
Discover Nature Journaling, Crescent Bend Nature Park at 10:00 AM. 
This event is the last of the 2020 Nature Discovery Series.
Pre-registration is required by calling 210-619-1850.
 
Monday, November 16th
Special City Council Meeting at 6:00 PM to canvass the results of the November

3 

  



3, 2020, Schertz General Election and swearing in ceremonies.
 
Wednesday, November 18th
Blue Bonnet Palace at 6:00 PM - Selma the Tri-County Chamber of Commerce is
hosting their annual Elected Officials Reception - Free event for all elected
officials.
 
Thursday, November 26th and Friday, November 27th
City Offices Closed for Thanksgiving Holiday
 
Saturday, November 28th
Star Party, Crescent Bend Nature Park from 5:30-8:00 PM
Come out for a chance to view the stars and the planets! Telescopes for viewing
provided by the San Antonio Astronomical Association. Bring a red infrared
flashlight or make your own. Dress for the weather and bring a chair. Event is
free and pre-registration is not required.

Tuesday, December 1st
Next regular City Council Meeting 6:00 PM Council Chambers

 
Consent Agenda Items

The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the
Council with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless
they are removed from the Consent Agenda upon the request of the Mayor or a
Councilmember.

The following items were read into record:
 

1. Minutes – Consideration and/or action regarding the approval of the minutes
of the meeting of October 27, 2020. (B. Dennis)

  

 
2. Resolution No. 20-R-109 - Consideration and/or action approving a

Resolution by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the
City manager to enter into an agreement with the YMCA of Greater San
Antonio to operate the Schertz Area Senior Center. (B. James/L. Shrum)

  

 
3. Resolution No. 20-R-132 - Consideration and/or action approving

a Resolution by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas
approving requests for a Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic
Development Grant for 537 Main. (M. Browne/B. James)

  

 
4. Resolution 20-R-113 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution   

4 

  



4. Resolution 20-R-113 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution
by the City Council of the City, Texas, authorizing expenditures not to exceed
$81,888.13 with C-3 Environmental Inc., for the Ashley Park Concrete Trail
Project, and other matters in connection therewith. (B.James/L.Shrum)

  

 
5. Cancellation of the December 22, 2020, Council Meeting - Consideration

and/or action canceling the December 22, 2020, City Council meeting due to
the Christmas Holiday. (M. Browne/B. Dennis)

  

 
6. Resolution No. 20-R-115 – Consideration and/or action approving a

Resolution by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing an
Economic Development Performance Agreement between the City of Schertz
Economic Development Corporation and Phelan-Bennett, LLC. (M.
Browne/A. Perez)

  

 
7. Resolution No. 20-R-131 – Consideration and/or action approving a

Resolution by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the
City Manager to enter into an agreement with Cibolo Creek Municipal
Authority ("CCMA") for the lease of real property for the operations and
maintenance of a Wastewater Liftstation Facility. ( C. Kelm/S.
Williams/J.Hooks)

  

 
8. Ordinance No. 20-M-34 - Consideration and/or action approving an

Ordinance by the City Council of the City of Schertz Texas amending the
City Code of Ordinances Article I. in General, Section 2-125 Designation of
Records Management Officer, repealing all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances
in conflict with this Ordinance and providing an effective date. Final Reading 
(M. Browne/B. Dennis)

  

 
9. Ordinance No. 20-S-33 - Consideration and/or action upon a request to

rezone approximately 204 acres of land from General Business District (GB)
and Manufacturing Light District (M-1) to Planned Development District
(PDD), located southwest of Graytown Road, stretching between Interstate
Highway 10 and Boenig Drive, City of Schertz, Bexar County, Texas, also
known as Bexar County Property Identification Numbers 619201 and 619202. 
Final Reading (B. James/L. Wood/N. Koplyay) 

Mayor Gutierrez asked Council if there were any items to be removed from
Consent for separate action.  Mayor Gutierrez recognized Mayor Pro-Tem
Scott who requested agenda item 2 Resolution No. 20-R-109 be removed for
separate action.

  

 
  Moved by Councilmember Allison Heyward, seconded by Councilmember

5 

  



  Moved by Councilmember Allison Heyward, seconded by Councilmember
Michael Dahle to approve consent agenda items 1, and 3 through 9. 

  AYE: Mayor Pro-Tem Rosemary Scott, Councilmember Mark Davis,
Councilmember Scott Larson, Councilmember Michael Dahle,
Councilmember David Scagliola, Councilmember Allison
Heyward 

Passed 
 
Discussion and Action Items

The following item was read into record:
 
2.      Resolution No. 20-R-109 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution
by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas authorizing the City manager to
enter into an agreement with the YMCA of Greater San Antonio to operate the Schertz
Area Senior Center. (B. James/L. Shrum)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Director of Parks, Recreation and Community Services
Lauren Shrum who addressed Mayor Pro-Tem Scott's questions.
 
  Moved by Councilmember Mark Davis, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem

Rosemary Scott to approve Resolution No. 20-R-109. 
  AYE: Mayor Pro-Tem Rosemary Scott, Councilmember Mark Davis,

Councilmember Scott Larson, Councilmember Michael Dahle,
Councilmember David Scagliola, Councilmember Allison
Heyward 

Passed 
 
Public Hearings

The following item was read into record:
 

10. Ordinance No. 20-S-37 - Conduct a public hearing, consider and/or act upon
request to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan by changing
approximately 40 acres of the Future Land Use Map from the Estate
Neighborhood and Agricultural Conservation land use designations to the
Single-Family Residential land use designation, generally located
approximately 4,000 feet east of the intersection between FM 1518 and Lower
Seguin Road, also known as Bexar County Property Identification Numbers
310024 and 310031, City of Schertz, Bexar County, Texas. First Reading (B.
James/L. Wood/ N. Koplyay)

  

6 

  



Mayor Gutierrez recognized Planner 1 Nick Koplyay who provided a
PowerPoint presentation for this item. Mr. Koplyay introduced Mr. Raymond
Tarin, Engineer for this project, who also came forward providing a brief
presentation.

Mayor Gutierrez stated this was a public hearing and opened the public
hearing for those wishing to speak on this item.  Mayor Gutierrez recognized
Mr. Alfred Fluitt, owner of the 40 acres, who spoke in favor of Council
passing this item.  As there were no further speakers, Mayor Gutierrez closed
the public hearing for Council comments.

Mayor Gutierrez made the following comments:

When campaigning for Mayor, several residents in Southern Schertz
expressed their concerns regarding limited commercial establishments. One of
Council’s objective should be to accommodate commercial development in
Schertz. One major obstacle in Southern Schertz is insufficient rooftops. 
Businesses will not take a risk or invest in Schertz if the demographics impede
their success.
 
Planning and Zoning Commission expressed one concern – traffic impact.  As
Mr. Tarin pointed out, road construction on FM 1518 will address this issue,
and future road construction will mitigate growth.
 
Planning and Zoning's main reason for denial was their desire to wait
one maybe two years until the Comprehensive Land Use Plan is
finalized.  This study should not paralyze our City’s growth.  It is essential,
we must seek and create our own destiny. We must ascertain this developer
would have lost interest, and the possibility to entice or lure other developer
may be strenuous. It could take three years, maybe longer, to get to this same
stage in development planning for this slice of Schertz. 
 
Similar to our City Comprehensive Land Use Plan, Developers based new
housing developments on their market analysis.  This analysis consists of
several factors to determine the success of the development: 

Demographics - Demand
Schools - Safety
Quality of Life - Taxes
Parks - Location
Roads - Confidence in our City’s Procedures    

 One major factor in killing any deal is TIME.
 
I'm certain, this Developer would have no objection to waiting a few months,

7 

  



I'm certain, this Developer would have no objection to waiting a few months,
but not a lengthy 24 to 36 month delay. This is an unreasonable and
unacceptable expectation for any developer. Our city staff reviews the
feasibility of all projects.
 
A review of the City’s Master Plan consist of: 

Land - sewage - water
Flood plain - drainage            

All these items are considered and City staff has recommended approval. The
Planning and Zoning process is not a fixed process set by any rules. Planning
and Zoning is a discretionary process: 

It is an objective process
One’s own judgement
One’s opinion
One’s feelings

Council will also have their own objective opinion and I encourage them to
also make their decision based on logical reasoning: 

It can’t be farmed.
It’s not suitable for retail.
It’s not suitable for industrial.
It’s not multi family.
City staff approved the request
The owner – his preference

We must look at the growth of Schertz long term, and continue to build a
culture to attract development. 
We should also: 

Be excited - An enthusiastic partner
Be flexible - Be creative
Be supportive - Seek growth opportunities

Growth in Southern Schertz is unavoidable. We are at a crucial crossroads,
and we are faced with the decision of rising to the challenge and carving a
path for future success or becoming idle.  Once again, the opportunity is at
our doorstep.

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Councilmember Scagliola who spoke against
approving the proposed rezone providing his reasons. Councilmembers Scott
and Dahle spoke regarding mixed feelings on the proposed rezone also
expressing their reasons. Councilmembers Davis and Heyward spoke in favor
of the proposed rezone. 

 

8 

  



  Moved by Councilmember Scott Larson, seconded by Councilmember
Michael Dahle to approve Ordinance 20-S-37 on first reading. 

  AYE: Mayor Pro-Tem Rosemary Scott, Councilmember Mark Davis,
Councilmember Scott Larson, Councilmember Michael Dahle,
Councilmember Allison Heyward 

NAY: Councilmember David Scagliola 
Passed 

 
The following item was read into record:
 

11. Ordinance No. 20-K-35 - Conduct a public hearing and consider and act
upon an ordinance requesting to close and abandon to the abutting property
owners a portion of Urban Lane Right-of-Way between Live Oak Hills
Subdivision Lot 1, Block 55 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32206) and
Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 18, Block 54 (Guadalupe County Property ID:
32205); and establishing an effective date hereof. First Reading (B.James/L.
Wood/E. Delgado)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Planner 1 Nick Koplyay who provided
a PowerPoint presentation on this item. Mayor Gutierrez stated this was a
public hearing and opened the public hearing for those wishing to speak on
this item.  Mayor Gutierrez recognized the following:

Loud Interruptions from the audience occurred. 

Ms. Shannon Kelm, 3625 Diamond Falls (Owner of the property) who
came forward providing a brief PowerPoint regarding the request to
abandon the Right of Way and Easements at Terminus of Urban Lane in
Live Oak Hills Subdivision, requesting approval.
Ms. Tracy Groonez, 3621 Diamond Falls who spoke stating she owns
another piece of property adjacent and referenced it on a previous slide. 
She indicated the road back in that area has not been used, she also
indicated there are various types of wildlife liveing there.  She just
wanted to make sure that as the City begins to develop in that area to
remember the wildlife.  She spoke in favor of the abandonment.
Ms. Dina Rayford, 2919 Sunset Bend, San Antonio who came forward
stating that this is all wonderful, but this is a different privilege that they
are not worried about right now.  What they are worried about right now
is the kid.  She stated - 'so it seems like your not getting it and wants
everybody to stay focused because she sees a few people on their phone,
etc., but right now this is serious! 

Individuals in the crowd began raising their voices.
  

  

9 

  



  
Mayor Gutierrez stated that they are referencing the Ordinance in
question right now.  Mayor Gutierrez was interrupted by Ms. Rayford
stating and raising her voice that the Council is worried about lots, and
Council is not worried about lives. She raised her voice asking when the
Council was going to speak regarding the recent police issue. She
shouted if she was next? She will not step aside until she is next, because
she cannot let Council finish the night until she speaks. Mayor
Gutierrez asked if she would please take a seat, and he would get back to
her. Mayor Gutierrez asked several times for Ms. Rayford to take a seat
as she was out of order.

Crowd began to become very loud with their chanting "Black Lives Matter" "
No Justice No Peace"
 

Ms. Rayford continued raising her voice and screaming into the
microphone.  Mayor Gutierrez tried several times to ask Ms. Rayford to
take a seat and behave in a professional matter.  At one point Ms.
Rayford told the Mayor that she will speak and asked when it would be. 
Mayor Gutierrez stated that she had an opportunity to sign up to speak,
and she chose not to and arrived late.

The Crowd became very loud and disruptive.

Mayor Gutierrez asked for any other comments regarding the ordinance and
recognized the following: 

Mr. Ken Greenwald, 205 Westchester who spoke regarding this item.

As no one else spoke, Mayor Gutierrez closed the public hearing for
Council comments.  Mayor Gutierrez recognized Mayor Pro-Tem Scott
who spoke regarding the lot in question and the amount of wildlife in the
area, and building and raising her children in Schertz.

Individuals in the crowd again began raising their voices. Mayor Gutierrez
asked the crowd to please behave themselves in a professional manner. 
Mayor Gutierrez stated that they had an opportunity to sign up and speak.
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Scott finished her thoughts and had questions answered
by staff.
 

Mayor Gutierrez stated that for those of you who have joined us earlier, you
had an opportunity to sign up and speak and address this Council (he held up
the hearing of residents sign in sheet).  You chose not to put your name on the
sign in sheet and now you have chosen to disrupt our Council.  We are here to
discuss City business, you had the opportunity, you showed up late.

10 

  



discuss City business, you had the opportunity, you showed up late.

Individuals in the crowd began to escalate their disruption of the meeting with
loud shouting and screaming.

Ms. Rayford asked if they were not on the ballot today? In answer, Mayor
Gutierrez stated no, they were not.

Again the individuals in the crowd were shouting and screaming.

Mayor Gutierrez stated "excuse me - excuse me" - Ms. Rayford came back up
to the podium shouting, you can cut off my microphone, you can do whatever
you want to do, but she is going to speak, and she is going to speak on the
brutality of what's going on, and she wants to speak about the police
incident. Crowd in background getting louder. 

Mayor Gutierrez stated that Council is going to take a five-minute recess, time
was 7:30 p.m. Ms. Rayford shouting at the Mayor stating the smartest thing to
do is to let them speak. Loud applause from the crowd. The crowd began to
rise and move forward shouting "No justice - No Peace". Ms. Rayford
shouting we are going to speak or it's going to be a hot mess. The crowd
continuing shouting "No justice - No Peace" "Black lives matter."

Mayor Gutierrez got up from the dais and officers began to move in front to
control the crowd.  Officers came forward to keep the crowd back - Mayor
Gutierrez stood. Crowd continued for several minutes chanting and yelling. 
Mayor Gutierrez stated give him a minute, restated one minute several times,
tried to say something but the Mayor concluded that they are not listening.
 Mayor, Members of Council, Dr. Mark Brown and City Attorney Santee got
up and moved away from the dais.  Members of the Kelm family were also
removed from the chambers.

The interruption from the crowd continued until the police calmed the crowd
down with Mayor Gutierrez going and speaking to them. A majority of the
crowd left the council chambers. Mayor Gutierrez provided the sign up sheet
to Ms. Rayford and others who signed in.

Mayor Pro-Tem Scott left the meeting at 7:39 p.m.
 

Mayor Gutierrez resumed the regular meeting at 7:43 p.m., stating that
they will finish up with agenda item 11 and then open up the hearing of
residents for three guests.
 
Mayor indicated that they were discussing Ordnance No. 20-K-35 and
recognized Councilmembers who had questions and concerns. Assistant

11 

  



City Manager Brian James, Legal representative Daniel Santee, and City
Manager Dr. Brown addressed questions and concerns. 

 
The Kelm Family returned to the Chambers.
 

Mr. James wrapped up his comments and answered additional questions
from Council.   

 
  Moved by Councilmember David Scagliola, seconded by Councilmember

Michael Dahle to deny Ordinance 20-K-35 - First Reading.
  AYE: Councilmember Michael Dahle, Councilmember David Scagliola 

NAY: Councilmember Mark Davis, Councilmember Scott Larson,
Councilmember Allison Heyward 

Failed 
 
  Moved by Councilmember Scott Larson, seconded by Councilmember

Allison Heyward to approve Ordinance No. 20-K-35 First Reading. 
  AYE: Councilmember Mark Davis, Councilmember Scott Larson,

Councilmember Allison Heyward 
NAY: Councilmember Michael Dahle, Councilmember David Scagliola 
Passed 

 
12. Hearing of residents

Mayor Gutierrez moved back to the hearing of residents section and read that
once again this time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the city
council, each person is limited to three minutes, and we ask before addressing
the council, for the record, please state your name and address.  Mayor
Gutierrez recognized the following: 

Ms. Dina Rayford, 2919 Sunset Bend, San Antonio who stated that she
did not want to take away from anything that everyone talked about
today, pointing to Ms. Kelm and her children, the park and zoning case.
That’s important to them, she apologized. Ms. Rayford spoke at length
and in detail about her complaints and concerns with the incident that
took place with the Police. 
Mayor Gutierrez recognized Mr. Ervin Lee, 365 Bordon, San Antonio
who stated that in 1958 this chamber was created and when this chamber
was created black people were not allowed to drink out of the same water
fountains as white people. Each one of the Council has heard of black
lives matter this year and can not deny that.  The difference in his
generation and those of us born in the 80s, the 20-year old’s in the

12 

  



audience have energy, meetings are not going to be the same anymore.
It’s not going to be comfortable anymore, it’s a different country we are
wanting. Mr. Lee expressed his desire for adopting a cite and release
program in Schertz.
Miss. Kapree Rayford, 2919 Sunset Bend, San Antonio - expressed her
thanks for those who joined them to support their family.  Miss Rayford
expressed her extreme displeasure with the way the recent Police
incident was handled and went into detail about the Police
incident actions she thought were not handled properly.  She asked that
action be taken. You need to hold your Chief of Police,
lieutenants, police officers, and everyone in that situation accountable the
say way your are holding the kid accountable for his actions – the police
officers need to be held accountable for their actions. "Point blank
serious!"

The crowd left chanting “No justice – No peace” “Black lives matter”
“Allison’s fired” “Allison’s fired”

Another young lady who did not identify herself came forward to
speak. This is a very small city and this video went viral. That is an
18-year-old child, nobody sitting up there (on the dais) is perfect, period!
The fact that you can say he should have listened, that goes way beyond
it.  He has seen people die and the fact of the matter is, if your pets were
getting killed the way that black people were getting killed on camera, it
would be a completely different conversation.  This should have been a
priority and shame on you for it not being a priority.

 
Roll Call Vote Confirmation

Mayor Gutierrez recognized City Secretary Brenda Dennis who provided the roll call
vote confirmation for agenda items 1 thru 11. 
 
Workshop
 

13. Workshop Discussion and Update (Ordinance 20-H-18) - Discussion and
update regarding the COVID-19 virus and our current Ordinance No. 20-H-18
Declaration of Local Disaster. (M. Browne/K. Long)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Fire Chief Kade Long who stated he would be
joined in presenting this PowerPoint by our new EMC Summer Hall.  Current
numbers were given on active cases of COVID-19 in Guadalupe, Bexar, and
Comal counties as well as fatality rates.  EMC Summer Hall gave specifics on
the breakdowns for surrounding areas, schools, daily state counts, and
hospitalization rates. No questions were taken from Council. 

  

 

13 

  



14. Staff Compression - Update on Staff Compression Issue. (C. Kelm/J. Kurz)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Human Resources & Purchasing Director Jessica
Kurz who provided a PowerPoint presentation giving an update on the staff
compression issue.  Human Resources formed a cross departmental team
made up of representatives from Human Resources, the Police Department,
Fire, EMS, the City Managers office, and a couple of non-Public Safety
department representatives. This team met weekly starting in August to review
the issues, evaluate the causes, and to propose potential solutions. Jessica
Kurz spoke on the following outline to include – framing the issue, review
decision points of the committee, share some preliminary findings, provide
potential solutions, and ultimately to seek guidance from Council. Jessica
Kurz and Assistant City Manager Charles Kelm addressed questions from
Council.

  

 
Closed Session

Mayor Gutierrez asked staff and guests who were not participating in the closed
session to wait outside the chambers until they are finished.  Mayor Gutierrez
recessed the regular meeting into Closed Session at 8:53 p.m., and the following item
was read into record: 
 

15. The City Council will meet in closed session in accordance with Section
551.087 of the Texas Government Code, Deliberation Regarding Economic
Development Negotiations, Closed Meeting. The governmental body is not
required to conduct an open meeting (1) to discuss or deliberate regarding
commercial or financial information that the governmental body has received
from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate,
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with
which the governmental body is conducting economic development
negotiations; or (2) to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a
business prospect. 

•    Project E-064
 
Reconvene into Regular Session

Mayor Gutierrez reconvened into regular session at 9:44 p.m. 
 
    14A.     Take any action based on discussion held in closed session under Agenda
Item 14.
 
  Moved by Councilmember Michael Dahle, seconded by Councilmember

14 

  



  Moved by Councilmember Michael Dahle, seconded by Councilmember
Allison Heyward move to provide authority to the City Manager to
negotiate an agreement with Union Pacific to secure the opening of a new
public railroad crossing based the closure of an existing public railroad
crossing given clear delineation of: 

Traffic counts and geography acceptable to Union Pacific;
Timing to public crossing opening by Union Pacific based on public
crossing closure by the city of Schertz.

And that the impact of closure options identified can be reasonably
balanced by the positive value and impact of associated industrial
development that can be expected by a new public crossing.   

  AYE: Councilmember Mark Davis, Councilmember Scott Larson,
Councilmember Michael Dahle, Councilmember David Scagliola,
Councilmember Allison Heyward 

Passed 
 
Roll Call Vote Confirmation

Mayor Gutierrez recognized City Secretary Brenda Dennis who provided the roll call
vote confirmation for agenda item 14. 
 
Information available in City Council Packets - NO DISCUSSION TO OCCUR
 

16. Monthly update - on major projects in progress/CIP. (B. James/K. Woodlee)   

 
17. Schertz Economic Development Corporation (SEDC) Performance

Agreement Payments. (A. Perez)
  

 
Requests and Announcements 

Announcements by the City Manager.

None at this time.

Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for updates or information from staff.  

None at this time.

Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers that items or presentations be placed on
a future City Council agenda.

None at this time.

Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers
  

15 

  



  
City and community events attended and to be attended
City Council Committee and Liaison Assignments (see assignments below)
Continuing education events attended and to be attended
Recognition of actions by City employees
Recognition of actions by community volunteers

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Councilmember Davis who stated he attended the
Schertz Housing Authority meeting.

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Councilmember Dahle who offered sincere
condolensces from his family to Mark Welch's family.  He attended the Cibolo Valley
Local Government Corporation (CVLGC) meeting, attended two ribbon cuttings at
Tropical Smoothie Cafe and Ideal Feet. 

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Councilmember Heyward who attended the Senior
Center Halloween Costume Contest, the Text 21 - TxDOT quarterly meeting via
Zoom, attended the two ribbon cuttings at Tropical Smoothie Cafe and Ideal Feet, and
attended the Animal Shelter Advisory Meeting.

Mayor Gutierrez announced a special session November 16, at 6:00 p.m. - Please join
us to say farewell to Councilmember Scott Larson and welcome our new
Councilmember Jill Whittaker.
 
Adjournment

As there was no further business, Mayor Gutierrez adjourned the meeting at 9:47 p.m.
 

_______________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

16 

  



MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING
 November 16, 2020

A Special Meeting was held by the Schertz City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, on
November 16, 2020, at 6:00 p.m. in the Hal Baldwin Municipal Complex Council
Chambers, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Building #4, Schertz, Texas. The following members
present to-wit:
 
Present: Mayor Ralph Gutierrez; Mayor Pro-Tem Rosemary Scott; Councilmember

Scott Larson; Councilmember Michael Dahle; Councilmember David
Scagliola; Councilmember Allison Heyward; Councilmember Tim Brown;
Councilmember Mark Davis 

City
Staff:

City Manager Dr. Mark Browne; Assistant City Manager Brian James;
Assistant City Manager Charles Kelm; City Secretary Brenda Dennis; Assistant
to the City Manager Sarah Gonzalez; Deputy City Secretary Gayle Wilkinson 

 

               
Call to Order 

Mayor Gutierrez called the special meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.
 
Opening Prayer and Pledges of Allegiance to the Flags of the United States and
State of Texas. (Councilmember Dahle)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized Councilmember Dahle who provided the opening prayer
followed by the Pledges of Allegiance to the Flags of the United States and the State
of Texas.

Mayor Gutierrez gave specific requests to guests and staff in reference to wearing their
masks during the City Council meeting and departing the Council meeting.  Due to
COVID- 19 concerns, roving the chamber is prohibited. 
 
Hearing of Residents

Residents who choose to watch the meeting via live stream, but who would like to
participate in Residents to be Heard, should email their comments to City
Secretary, Brenda Dennis, at bdennis@schertz.com by 5:00 p.m. on Friday,
November 13, 2020 , SO THAT THE CITY SECRETARY MAY READ THE
PUBLIC COMMENTS INTO THE RECORD UNDER THE HEARING OF
RESIDENTS.   In the body of the email please include your name, your address,
phone number, agenda item # if applicable or subject of discussion, and your

1 

  



phone number, agenda item # if applicable or subject of discussion, and your
comments.

This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each
person should fill out the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should
be limited to no more than 3 minutes.

Any person making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks while addressing
the Council may be requested to leave the meeting.

Discussion by the Council of any item not on the agenda shall be limited to statements
of specific factual information given in response to any inquiry, a recitation of existing
policy in response to an inquiry, and/or a proposal to place the item on a future
agenda. The presiding officer, during the Hearing of Residents portion of the agenda,
will call on those persons who have signed up to speak in the order they have
registered.  Mayor Gutierrez gave specific requirements for those speaking under
'hearing of residents'.  

Mayor Gutierrez recognized the following who spoke: 

Dr. Cathy Marston - 1024 Valley Forge - Spoke about news coverage she saw
about "a horrific and inexcusable police brutality" against a black teenager on
November 2, 2020.  Dr. Marston encouraged the Mayor to make police
accountability an agenda item for a future meeting. Dr. Marston recapped an
event that happened to her in the past in Schertz and then asked for a hearing on
police accountability and a police citizens review board be organized in Schertz. 
Bobby F. Jones - 12406 Guy Guisborne - Discussed how there were mistakes
made on both sides of the incident with the Schertz Police Department and a
black teenager on November 2, 2020.  Mr. Jones gave passionate remarks about
his past and his desire for there to be help and assistance for our police agencies
that include listening to their heart and not relying solely on training.  Mr. Jones
would like conversation had to teach people to care and have compassion for one
another. Mr. Jones concluded his remarks by saying Schertz is a good place and
people make mistakes on both sides.  
Michael Carpenter - 3613 Calvert St. - Gave his thanks for Precinct 3 for electing
him as County Commissioner.  Mr. Carpenter thanked Councilmember Scott
Larson for his service over the last several years as a member of council.  Mr.
Carpenter also congratulated the reappointed Councilmembers David Scagliola,
Michael Dahle, and newly elected Councilmember Jill Whittaker who will soon
take her seat on council.  Mr. Carpenter expressed his respect for the difficult
position council has as they serve their community and commended them for
there work.  

 
Discussion and Action Items

2 

  



Discussion and Action Items

The following was read into record: 
 

1. Resolution No. 20-R-133 -  Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution
by the City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas canvassing the returns and
declaring the results of the November 3, 2020, General Election; and other
matters in connection therewith.  (Mayor/B. Dennis)

Mayor Gutierrez recognized City Secretary Brenda Dennis who provided the
results from the November 3, 2020, election and declared that Place 3 being Jill
Whittaker elected, Place 4 being re-elected Michael Dahle, and Place 5 being
re-elected David Scagliola. 

Mayor Gutierrez remarked on the large turnout for the election and thanked the
community for exercising their right to vote. 

  

 
  Moved by Councilmember Scott Larson, seconded by Councilmember

Michael Dahle to approve Resolution No. 20-R-133. 
  AYE: Councilmember Tim Brown, Councilmember Mark Davis, Mayor

Pro-Tem Rosemary Scott, Councilmember Scott Larson,
Councilmember Michael Dahle, Councilmember David Scagliola,
Councilmember Allison Heyward 

Passed 
 
Roll Call Vote Confirmation

Mayor Gutierrez recognized City Secretary Brenda Dennis who provided the roll call
vote confirmation for agenda item 1. 
 

2. Farewell Comments/Remarks -  Mayor and Councilmembers departing
comments for Councilmember Scott Larson (Mayor/Council)

Mayor Gutierrez began with his farewell remarks followed by all the
Councilmembers.  Each Councilmember spoke with gratitude, respect, and a
thankful heart for Councilmember Larson's time on council.  

 
3. Farewell Recognition and Farewell Address - Recognition to Councilmember

Scott Larson for his service to the City of Schertz and his Farewell address.
(Mayor/Council/B. Dennis)

Mayor Gutierrez asked City Secretary Brenda Dennis and Councilmember Scott
Larson to join him at the podium.  Mayor Gutierrez began by presenting

3 

  



Larson to join him at the podium.  Mayor Gutierrez began by presenting
Councilmember Larson with a city flag in gratitude for all his service to the
city.  Mayor Gutierrez also presented Councilmember Larson with an award in
appreciation for all he did for the city and his years of service. 

Mayor Gutierrez gave Councilmember Scott Larson the opportunity to provide
his farewell remarks.  Councilmember Larson gave a passionate address
expressing his enjoyment of serving on Council, how much he has learned, and
his great love for politics from every aspect and remarked how politics allow us
to get government out of the way and let individuals be the best version of
themselves. Councilmember Larson noted the City of Schertz is an exceptional
city with exceptional staff, an exceptional City Manager, and an exceptional
group of leadership.  Councilmember Larson expressed his unworthiness of the
honor to have set on council and expressed how thankful he is for having had
the opportunity.

Councilmember Larson received a standing ovation while he shook the hand of
each Councilmember.  

Mayor Gutierrez gave a ceremonial gavel for Councilmember Larson's years of
service. 

 
4. Oath of Office

  

Newly and Re-Elected Officers - Oath of Office. (B. Dennis)

Oath of Office to newly elected Councilmember Place 3 Jill
Whittaker. (Ceremonial placement of name plate by family member) 

1.

Oath of Office to reelected Councilmember Place 4, Michael Dahle.2.
Oath of Office to reelected Councilmember Place 5 David L. Scaliola.3.

City Secretary Brenda Dennis provided the Oath of Office to newly elected
Councilmember Jill Whittaker and re-elected Councilmembers Michael
Dahle and David Scagliola.  Newly elected Councilmember Jill
Whittaker's husband and youngest son were asked to come forward and place
her name tag on the dais.

Certificates of Election - Presentation of Certificate of Election. (B. Dennis)

City Secretary Brenda Dennis presented a certificate of election to each sworn
in Councilmember. 
  
Mayor Gutierrez presented Schertz 2020- 2021 City Council and stated they
were now seated. 

 

4 

  



5. Comments by Newly Elected and Re-elected Councilmembers. 
  

Comments by Councilmember Jill Whittaker.1.
Comments by Councilmember Michael Dahle. 2.
Comments by Councilmember David Scagliola.3.

Mayor Gutierrez congratulated and introduced Councilmember Jill Whittaker
and gave her an opportunity to speak.  Councilmember Whittaker introduced
herself and gave a hearty thank you to all who helped in her campaign and all
those that voted for her.  

Mayor Gutierrez congratulated Councilmember Michael Dahle for his
re-election and gave him an opportunity to speak.  Councilmember Dahle
thanked his wife and family for their support and the multitude of voters who
took the time to cast a vote for him even though he was unopposed. 

Mayor Gutierrez congratulated Councilmember David Scagliola for his
reelection and gave him an opportunity to speak.  Councilmember Scagliola
thanked his wife for her support and expressed how honored he is to represent
the citizens of Schertz for three more years. 

Mayor Gutierrez invited all to join them at the Civic Center for light
refreshments.

 
Adjournment

As there was no further business, Mayor Gutierrez adjourned the meeting at 6:49 p.m.
 

_______________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

5 

  



Agenda No. 2.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Executive Team
Subject: Resolution No. 20-R-139 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City

Council of the City of Schertz, Texas approving requests for Schertz Main Street Local
Flavor Economic Development Grants for 539 and 820 Main Street. (B. James)

BACKGROUND
The owners of the properties at 539 and 820 Main Street are applying for Local Flavor Grants. Attached are photos of both
structures.
 
The owner of 539 Main is proposing to redo the landscaping on the property as he seeks a tenant for the building. The estimated project
cost is $8,500 as such the 50% grant amount is up to $4,250. The maximum grant mount for a site improvement grant is up to $20,000. The
owner of the property at 820 Main is proposing to redo the façade of the building. He plans to remove the existing metal awning, brick the
entire front façade and install clear garage doors to match the façade of 816 Main. The estimated project cost is $18,000 as such the 50%
grant match is up to $9,000. The maximum grant mount for façade improvements is $20,000.    

GOAL 
Promote and enhance commercial activity along Main Street to promote the economic, cultural and
general welfare of the public. The area around Main Street in Schertz once served as the commercial
and social hub of the community. The City seeks to improve the image of the area around Main Street
through the inducement of public money to promote local economic development and stimulate
business and commercial activities in the City.  

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
Encourage the attraction of small businesses that will create local charm and help develop a sense of
place in and around Main Street. Promote commercial development. Stabilize and improve property
values. Foster civic pride. Strengthen the economy of the City by protecting and enhancing the
attractiveness of the Main Street area to residents and visitors, as well as provide support of local
businesses.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 20-R-139 approving Schertz Main Street Local Flavor
Economic Development Grants for up to $4,250 for 539 Main and up to $9,000 for 820 Main.

FISCAL IMPACT 
Up to $13,250 for these grants.

RECOMMENDATION 
Approve Resolution No 20-R-139

Attachments
20-R-139 
agreement 539 Main 



agreement 820 Main 
Photos 539 and 820 Main 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-139 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS APPROVING REQUESTS FOR SCHERTZ MAIN 
STREET LOCAL FLAVOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS 
FOR 539 AND 820 MAIN STREET IN THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS, 
AND RELATED MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Schertz desires to protect, enhance, and preserve the historic resources 
and landmarks which represent distinctive elements of Schertz’ historic, architectural, economic, 
cultural, and social heritage by providing property owners and incentive for protecting their 
property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Schertz desires to encourage the attraction of small businesses that will 
create local charm and help develop a sense of place in and around Main Street; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Schertz desires to stabilize and improve property values; and 
 
WHEREAS, Foster civic pride in the beauty and accomplishments of the past, and to promote 
the use of the historic structures for the culture, education, and general welfare of residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, Strengthen the economy of the city by protecting and enhancing the attractiveness 
of the Main Street area to residents and visitors, as well as provide support and stimulus to 
businesses.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic 
Development Grant; 
 
WHEREAS, staff is in support of this program and recommended approval of the grant requests 
for 539 Main Street for up to $4,250 and for 820 Main Street for up to $9,000; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS THAT: 
 

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor 
Economic Development Grant requests for 539 Main Street and 820 Main Street subject to the 
approved criteria of the program and execution of a funding agreement generally as outlined in 
Exhibit “A”. 

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 



Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 1st day of December, 2020. 

 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Exhibit A 

 

 



STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF BEXAR §

SCHERTZ MAIN STREET LOCAL FLAVOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 
FUNDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEXAS AND
MWBDLR, LLC, FOR

This Local Flavor Development Program Funding Agreement (AGREEMENT) is made and entered into by
and between the City of Schertz, Texas (CITY) and MWBDLR, LLC, (ENTITY).

WHEREAS, the ENTITY has developed a proposal to
Make improvements to landscaping to 539 Main (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, Section 380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended, allows the 
governing body of a municipality to establish and provide for the administration of one or more 
programs to promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and 
commercial activity in the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development Program is 
intended to encourage and expansion and attract small businesses that create local charm and help 
develop a sense of place in and around Main Street, promote commercial development, stabilize and 
improve property values, foster civic pride, and protect and enhance the attractiveness of the Main 
Street area to residents and visitors; and

WHEREAS, funding for the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development 
Program will be provided annually through the City’s General Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development Program will 
enhance other city efforts to improve, beautify, and promote economic development in the Main 
Street area. 

WHEREAS, the area around Main Street in Schertz once served as commercial and social hub of 
the community; and

WHEREAS, the City seeks to improve the image of the area around Main Street through 
restoration and rehabilitation of structures in the Main Street area to serve as a commercial, social, cultural 
and tourism hub of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Schertz desires to provide funds to MWBDLR, LLC
(ENTITY).

NOW, it is mutually agreed by and between the CITY and ENTITY as follows:



GENERAL V S NS

Section 1. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding to the ENTITY for the 
project identified in the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Project”), the intent of which is to promote state and 
local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the municipality to  
encourage and expansion and attract small businesses that create local charm and help develop a sense of 
place in and around Main Street, promote commercial development, stabilize and improve property values, 
foster civic pride, and protect and enhance the attractiveness of the Main Street area to residents and visitors. 

Section 2. Obligation of the The ENTITY shall use all of the awarded funds provided
by the CITY in accordance with Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code, the ENTITY’S funding application, 
and the attached Exhibit “A”.

Section 3. of the The ENTITY shall deliver a detailed 
accounting of the expenditures for the Project within thirty (30) days after completion of the Project (the 
“Post Event Report”). The Post Event Report shall include copies of receipts and other documents 
establishing the expenditures for the project.  The CITY shall not make reimbursements for 
expenditures where no receipt or invoice is provided.  Partial or incomplete reports will not be accepted.

Section 4.  of Payment.   Subject to the ENTITY’S satisfactory performance and
compliance with the terms of this AGREEMENT, the CITY agrees to pay the ENTITY up to fifty percent 
(50%) of the Project. The Project is estimated to be $8,500.00 and fifty percent of which is $4,250.00, and 
is capped at 20,000.00 for work falling within the criteria for site improvements. Payment will be made
within forty-five (45) days of acceptance of the complete Post Event Report. Partial or incomplete reports
will not be accepted. Only expenditures that meet Chapter 351 of the Tax Code and this AGREEMENT
shall be reimbursed.

Section 5. Appeal ocess. Any ENTITY wishing to appeal the decision of the CITY must present
their appeal in writing within ten (10) business days of funding denial. 

Section 6. Rights.  The City of Schertz has the right, at any time, to inspect the books or 
records of the ENTITY that may relate to performance of this AGREEMENT.  The CITY, at its sole
expenses, has the right to conduct an audit of the ENTITY or Project.

Section 7.  The AGREEMENT shall become effective as of the date entered below. 
The AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from its effective date or once the terms have been met,
whichever occurs first. 

Section 8. The ENTITY agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the
CITY, its officers, agents and employees, against any and all claims, lawsuits, judgments, cause of action, 
costs and expenses for personal injury (including death), property damage or other harm for which recovery 
of damages is sought, suffered by any person or persons, that may arise out of or be occasioned by the
ENTITY’s breach of any of the terms or provisions of this AGREEMENT, or by any negligent act or
omission of the ENTITY, its officers, agents, servants, employees, contractors, or subcontractors, in the
performance of this AGREEMENT; except that the indemnity provided for in this paragraph shall not apply



to any liability resulting from the sole negligence of the CITY, its officers, agents, employees or separate
contractors, and in the event of joint and concurrent negligence of both the ENTITY and the CITY under
Texas law and without waiving any defenses of the parties under Texas law. The provisions of this
paragraph are solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and not intended to create or grant any rights,
contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity.  Both parties expressly agree that this AGREEMENT
does not assign any responsibility for civil liability to the City of Schertz that may arise by virtue of this
AGREEMENT.

Section 9. A party may terminate this AGREEMENT in whole or in part if the 
other party fails to comply with a term of the AGREEMENT, including the inability of the ENTITY to
conform to any change required by federal, state or local laws or regulations; or for the convenience of
either party. The terminating party shall provide written notification to the other party of the decision to
terminate this AGREEMENT within thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination.    A party 
may terminate the AGREEMENT for breach of any provision of this AGREEMENT, upon
written notice of the breach and the breaching party shall have ten (10) days after receipt of the written 
notice in which to cure the breach to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party.

Section 10.  Notice.  All notices required or permitted under this AGREEMENT shall be in 
writing and shall be delivered in person or mailed as follows:

to the CITY at: 

City of Schertz
Attention: City Manager
1400 Schertz Parkway
Schertz, TX 78154

(210) 619-1000

To MWBDLR, LLC:
Attention: Nicholas Marquez
PO Box 284
Cibolo, Texas 78108

S AN US

Section 11. ee e .  This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties regarding the subject matter contained herein.  The parties may not modify or amend this 
AGREEMENT, except by written agreement approved by the governing bodies of each party and duly 
executed by both parties.

Section 12.  A ov l.   This AGREEMENT has been duly and properly approved by each 
party’s governing body and constitutes a binding obligation on each party.

Section 13. Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided in this AGREEMENT, a party may not 
assign this AGREEMENT or subcontract the performance of services without first obtaining the written 



consent of the other party.

Section 14. No - ive . A party’s failure or delay to exercise right or remedy does not constitute
a waiver of the right or remedy. An exercise of a right or remedy under this AGREEMENT does not
preclude the exercise of another right or remedy. Rights and remedies under this AGREEMENT are
cumulative and are not exclusive of other rights or remedies provided by law.

Section 15. Headings. The various paragraph headings are inserted for convenience of reference
only, and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this AGREEMENT or any section thereof.

Section 16. fees. In any lawsuit concerning this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees from the nonprevailing party, plus all out-of-pocket 
expense such as deposition costs, telephone, calls, travel expenses, expert witness fees, court costs, and their
reasonable expenses, unless otherwise prohibited by law.

Section  17.    Seve ili y.    The parties agree that in the event any provision of this 
AGREEMENT is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction that part of the AGREEMENT is 
severable and the decree shall not affect the remainder of the AGREEMENT. The remainder of the 
AGREEMENT shall be in full force and effect.

Section 18. Venue.  The parties agree that all disputes that arise of this AGREEMENT are governed
by the laws of the State of Texas and venue for all purposes herewith shall be in Milam County, Texas.

Section 19. of The ENTITY agrees to provide a certificate of insurance
for liability and worker’s compensation insurance or letter of self-insurance on its letterhead indicating
its self-insured status before any event awarded funding under this AGREEMENT. The cost of the
insurance herein mentioned to be secured and maintained by the ENTITY shall be borne solely by the
ENTITY.

IN  WITNESS   the  CITY  and  ENTITY make  and  execute  this
AGREEMENT to be effective this day of , 2020.

CITY OF TEXAS

City Manager (Title)

ATTEST:

City Secretary (Title)



PAGE 5 OF 5

EXHIBIT 

$8500 in landscaping work in front yard - Lime Stone Borders, River Rocking Large Areas.



STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF BEXAR §

SCHERTZ MAIN STREET LOCAL FLAVOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 
FUNDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEXAS AND 1017 

Holdings, LLC, FOR

This Local Flavor Development Program Funding Agreement (AGREEMENT) is made and entered into by
and between the City of Schertz, Texas (CITY) and 1017 Holdings, LLC, (ENTITY).

WHEREAS, the ENTITY has developed a proposal to
Make improvements to landscaping to 820 Main (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, Section 380.001 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended, allows the 
governing body of a municipality to establish and provide for the administration of one or more 
programs to promote state and local economic development and to stimulate business and 
commercial activity in the municipality; and 

WHEREAS, the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development Program is 
intended to encourage and expansion and attract small businesses that create local charm and help 
develop a sense of place in and around Main Street, promote commercial development, stabilize and 
improve property values, foster civic pride, and protect and enhance the attractiveness of the Main 
Street area to residents and visitors; and

WHEREAS, funding for the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development 
Program will be provided annually through the City’s General Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development Program will 
enhance other city efforts to improve, beautify, and promote economic development in the Main 
Street area. 

WHEREAS, the area around Main Street in Schertz once served as commercial and social hub of 
the community; and

WHEREAS, the City seeks to improve the image of the area around Main Street through 
restoration and rehabilitation of structures in the Main Street area to serve as a commercial, social, cultural 
and tourism hub of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Schertz desires to provide funds to 1017 Holdings,  
LLC (ENTITY).

NOW, it is mutually agreed by and between the CITY and ENTITY as follows:



GENERAL V S NS

Section 1. The purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding to the ENTITY for the 
project identified in the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Project”), the intent of which is to promote state and 
local economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the municipality to  
encourage and expansion and attract small businesses that create local charm and help develop a sense of 
place in and around Main Street, promote commercial development, stabilize and improve property values, 
foster civic pride, and protect and enhance the attractiveness of the Main Street area to residents and visitors. 

Section 2. Obligation of the The ENTITY shall use all of the awarded funds provided
by the CITY in accordance with Chapter 351 of the Texas Tax Code, the ENTITY’S funding application, 
and the attached Exhibit “A”.

Section 3. of the The ENTITY shall deliver a detailed 
accounting of the expenditures for the Project within thirty (30) days after completion of the Project (the 
“Post Event Report”). The Post Event Report shall include copies of receipts and other documents 
establishing the expenditures for the project.  The CITY shall not make reimbursements for 
expenditures where no receipt or invoice is provided.  Partial or incomplete reports will not be accepted.

Section 4.  of Payment.   Subject to the ENTITY’S satisfactory performance and
compliance with the terms of this AGREEMENT, the CITY agrees to pay the ENTITY up to fifty percent 
(50%) of the Project. The Project is estimated to be $18,000.00 and fifty percent of which is $9,000.00, and 
is capped at 20,000.00 for work falling within the criteria for façade improvements. Payment will be made
within forty-five (45) days of acceptance of the complete Post Event Report. Partial or incomplete reports
will not be accepted. Only expenditures that meet Chapter 351 of the Tax Code and this AGREEMENT
shall be reimbursed.

Section 5. Appeal ocess. Any ENTITY wishing to appeal the decision of the CITY must present
their appeal in writing within ten (10) business days of funding denial. 

Section 6. Rights.  The City of Schertz has the right, at any time, to inspect the books or 
records of the ENTITY that may relate to performance of this AGREEMENT.  The CITY, at its sole
expenses, has the right to conduct an audit of the ENTITY or Project.

Section 7.  The AGREEMENT shall become effective as of the date entered below. 
The AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from its effective date or once the terms have been met,
whichever occurs first. 

Section 8. The ENTITY agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the
CITY, its officers, agents and employees, against any and all claims, lawsuits, judgments, cause of action, 
costs and expenses for personal injury (including death), property damage or other harm for which recovery 
of damages is sought, suffered by any person or persons, that may arise out of or be occasioned by the
ENTITY’s breach of any of the terms or provisions of this AGREEMENT, or by any negligent act or
omission of the ENTITY, its officers, agents, servants, employees, contractors, or subcontractors, in the
performance of this AGREEMENT; except that the indemnity provided for in this paragraph shall not apply



to any liability resulting from the sole negligence of the CITY, its officers, agents, employees or separate
contractors, and in the event of joint and concurrent negligence of both the ENTITY and the CITY under
Texas law and without waiving any defenses of the parties under Texas law. The provisions of this
paragraph are solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and not intended to create or grant any rights,
contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity.  Both parties expressly agree that this AGREEMENT
does not assign any responsibility for civil liability to the City of Schertz that may arise by virtue of this
AGREEMENT.

Section 9. A party may terminate this AGREEMENT in whole or in part if the 
other party fails to comply with a term of the AGREEMENT, including the inability of the ENTITY to
conform to any change required by federal, state or local laws or regulations; or for the convenience of
either party. The terminating party shall provide written notification to the other party of the decision to
terminate this AGREEMENT within thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination.    A party 
may terminate the AGREEMENT for breach of any provision of this AGREEMENT, upon
written notice of the breach and the breaching party shall have ten (10) days after receipt of the written 
notice in which to cure the breach to the satisfaction of the non-breaching party.

Section 10.  Notice.  All notices required or permitted under this AGREEMENT shall be in 
writing and shall be delivered in person or mailed as follows:

to the CITY at: 

City of Schertz
Attention: City Manager
1400 Schertz Parkway
Schertz, TX 78154

(210) 619-1000

To 1017 Holdings, LLC:
Attention: Nicholas Marquez
PO Box 284
Cibolo, Texas 78108

S AN US

Section 11. ee e .  This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire agreement of the 
parties regarding the subject matter contained herein.  The parties may not modify or amend this 
AGREEMENT, except by written agreement approved by the governing bodies of each party and duly 
executed by both parties.

Section 12.  A ov l.   This AGREEMENT has been duly and properly approved by each 
party’s governing body and constitutes a binding obligation on each party.

Section 13. Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided in this AGREEMENT, a party may not 
assign this AGREEMENT or subcontract the performance of services without first obtaining the written 



consent of the other party.

Section 14. No - ive . A party’s failure or delay to exercise right or remedy does not constitute
a waiver of the right or remedy. An exercise of a right or remedy under this AGREEMENT does not
preclude the exercise of another right or remedy. Rights and remedies under this AGREEMENT are
cumulative and are not exclusive of other rights or remedies provided by law.

Section 15. Headings. The various paragraph headings are inserted for convenience of reference
only, and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this AGREEMENT or any section thereof.

Section 16. fees. In any lawsuit concerning this AGREEMENT, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s fees from the nonprevailing party, plus all out-of-pocket 
expense such as deposition costs, telephone, calls, travel expenses, expert witness fees, court costs, and their
reasonable expenses, unless otherwise prohibited by law.

Section  17.    Seve ili y.    The parties agree that in the event any provision of this 
AGREEMENT is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction that part of the AGREEMENT is 
severable and the decree shall not affect the remainder of the AGREEMENT. The remainder of the 
AGREEMENT shall be in full force and effect.

Section 18. Venue.  The parties agree that all disputes that arise of this AGREEMENT are governed
by the laws of the State of Texas and venue for all purposes herewith shall be in Milam County, Texas.

Section 19. of The ENTITY agrees to provide a certificate of insurance
for liability and worker’s compensation insurance or letter of self-insurance on its letterhead indicating
its self-insured status before any event awarded funding under this AGREEMENT. The cost of the
insurance herein mentioned to be secured and maintained by the ENTITY shall be borne solely by the
ENTITY.

IN  WITNESS   the  CITY  and  ENTITY make  and  execute  this
AGREEMENT to be effective this day of , 2020.

CITY OF TEXAS

City Manager (Title)

ATTEST:

City Secretary (Title)



PAGE 5 OF 5

EXHIBIT 

Demo of Metal Awning - $4000
Bricking entire Front Building - $6000
New Clear Garage Doors to match facade of 816 Main - $8000



539 Main

820 Main



Agenda No. 3.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: City Secretary
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-S-37 - Consideration and/or action upon a request to amend the

Comprehensive Land Use Plan by changing approximately 40 acres of the Future
Land Use Map from the Estate Neighborhood and Agricultural Conservation land
use designations to the Single-Family Residential land use designation, generally
located approximately 4,000 feet east of the intersection between FM 1518 and
Lower Seguin Road, also known as Bexar County Property Identification
Numbers 310024 and 310031, City of Schertz, Bexar County,
Texas. Final Reading (B. James/L. Wood/ N. Koplyay)

BACKGROUND
Proposed Amendment: The applicant is requesting to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan by
changing approximately 40 acres of the Future Land Use Map from the Estate Neighborhood and
Agricultural Conservation land use designations to the Single-Family Residential land use designation.

The Future Land Use Map for the subject area was evaluated as part of the Sector Plan amendment to
the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, adopted by City Council on July 16, 2013. The subject properties
are currently designated under the Mixed Use Neighborhood and Agricultural Conservation future land
use categories. The Estate Neighborhood future land use designation is intended to address residential
development patterns in Southern Schertz by requiring a minimum lot size of 0.5 acres. This leaves two
potential options for zoning for development in the Estate Neighborhood designated areas: R-A zoning
with mandated minimum 0.5 acres per lot, or the ENPDD zoning alternate development option that
mandates an equivalent overall density to the R-A zoning district, while also allowing for residential
clustering to preserve larger open spaces and reduce infrastructure costs. The goal ENPDD zoning
alternative development option is to allow more flexibility in lot size, while requiring quality open
space and neighborhood design under the same overall destiny of the R-A zoning district.

The Agricultural Conservation land use designation is intended to preserve much of South Schertz in a
rural/agricultural state. This area is less attractive for more intense uses due to its distance from the
Interstate and limited street connectivity. Some character-defining elements recommended are mainly
large-lot (5 acre minimum lot size) residential and agricultural uses with some agricultural related
commercial uses being permitted (landscaping business, metal workshop, farmers market, convenience
store, etc., with appropriate design and transition standards).

The applicant is proposing to change the future land use designation of the subject properties to
Single-Family Residential. This proposed future land use designation is intended to be comprised of
primarily conventional detached dwellings. In areas proposed to utilize a traditional neighborhood
design the single-family residential use may include a mix of lot sizes and single-family residential
uses, as well as limited commercial development to support the daily activities of the development. In
all single-family residential use areas, public and semi-public development such as schools and
churches are encouraged as neighborhood focal points.

Public Hearing Notices: The public hearing notice mailers were sent out to surrounding property



owners prior to the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing, and a public hearing notice was
published in the "San Antonio Express" prior to this City Council public hearing. At the time of this
staff report, staff has received (3) responses in favor of the proposed amendment and (1) response
opposed to the proposed amendment.

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: The Planning and Zoning Commission met on
October 14, 2020 and made a recommendation of denial to the City Council by a 7-0 vote. The
Commissioners spoke at length regarding the increased traffic in Southern Schertz with the addition of
the single-family residential land use designations, the impact of the proposal to the Master
Thoroughfare Plan, and whether they should recommend approval of changes to individual parcels on
the Comprehensive Land Use Plan given the impending full Comprehensive Land Use Plan update. 

GOAL 
The project goal is to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan by changing approximately 40 acres of
the Future Land Use Map from the Estate Neighborhood and Agricultural Conservation land use
designations to the Single-Family Residential land use designation.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City’s desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City’s vision of future growth.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The proposed development plan that led to the filing of this Comprehensive Land Use Plan involves the
potential construction of approximately 125 single-family residential homes, sized at roughly 60'x120',
which would be commensurate to other subdivisions established in the City's Single-Family Residential
(R-7) zoning district. The proposed subdivision does not fit within the Agricultural Conservation and
Estate Neighborhood future land use designations given the required open space and density minimums
required in the land use categories, therefore the applicant moved forward with this proposed
Comprehensive Plan amendment to reclassify the properties under the Single-Family Residential future
land use designation.

The 2013 Sector Plan Amendment of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan sought to establish future
development objectives that balance the traditionally rural and agricultural identity that has shaped the
character of Southern Schertz with the opportunity for growth as the City continues to develop south of
FM 78. The Schertz City Council has recently approved property owner requested Future Land Use
Plan amendments to allow for development under the single-family residential land use designation, as
opposed to the various, originally planned single-family residential and agricultural land use
designations that regulated development based on additional mixed-use form, density, and/or minimum
open space preservation. Staff agrees with City Council that property owners in Southern Schertz
should have significant influence in the development of the future development goals for Southern
Schertz; therefore Staff defers to City Council regarding their approbation of modifications to the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan in order to allow property owners to developer their properties in
accordance with current market conditions, which in this case promotes the addition of traditional
single-family residential developments.
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment.

The final approval of the FY 2020-21 City of Schertz Budget last month at the September 8, 2020 City
Council Meeting should also be considered when making a recommendation to City Council regarding
this Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment. The FY2020-21 Budget, in effect as of October 1,
2020, allocates funding for a full Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment, which will involve
contributions from all the City of Schertz stakeholders, including the residents of Southern Schertz. The



contributions from all the City of Schertz stakeholders, including the residents of Southern Schertz. The
revamp of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan will allow us to tailor the future plans for Schertz to the
evolving needs of our residents. The full amendment would enable City Staff to make modifications to
the Future Land Use Map that are the most appropriate for each area within Schertz. For instance, the
lack of residential options for families in Southern Schertz has engendered several development
proposals, such as the plan prompting this Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment, which focus on
the construction of a variety of housing options through a mix of lot sizes and product types. The
upcoming Comprehensive Plan rework would allow Staff to reconcile these gaps between our future
plan, the residents' desires, and current market conditions, and would be the most appropriate time to
modify the plan on an area by area basis.

FISCAL IMPACT 
None

RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: The Planning and Zoning Commission met on
October 14, 2020 and made a recommendation of denial to the City Council by a 7-0 vote. The
Commissioners spoke at length regarding the increased traffic in Southern Schertz with the addition of
the single-family residential land use designations, the impact of the proposal to the Master
Thoroughfare Plan, and whether they should recommend approval of changes to individual parcels on
the Comprehensive Land Use Plan given the impending full Comprehensive Land Use Plan update. 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment to
change approximately 40 acres of the Future Land Use Map from the Estate Neighborhood and
Agricultural Conservation land use designations to the Single-Family Residential land use designation.

Attachments
Ordinance 20-S-37 
Ordinance 20-S-37 Exhibit A 
Ordinance 20-S-37 Exhibit B 
Aerial Map 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment Request Letter 
Comprehensive Plan (Schertz Sector Plan) - South Schertz Future Land Use Map 
Public Hearing Notice Map 
Public Hearing Notice Responses 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-S-37

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE LAND USE PLAN BY CHANGING 
APPROXIMATELY 40 ACRES OF THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP FROM THE 
ESTATE NEIGHBORHOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CONSERVATION LAND USE 
DESIGNATIONS TO THE SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL LAND USE 
DESIGNATION, GENERALLY LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 4,000 FEET EAST OF 
THE INTERSECTION BETWEEN FM 1518 AND LOWER SEGUIN ROAD, ALSO
KNOWN AS BEXAR COUNTY PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS 310024 AND
310031, CITY OF SCHERTZ, BEXAR COUNTY, TEXAS

WHEREAS, an application to amend the Comprehensive Land Use Plan by changing 
approximately 40 acres of the Future Land Use Map from the Estate Neighborhood and 
Agricultural Conservation land use designations to the Single-Family Residential land use 
designation, and more specifically described in the Exhibit A and Exhibit B attached herein 
(herein, the “Property”) has been filed with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.4.6.D. provides for certain criteria
to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations to City 
Council and by City Council in considering final action on an amendment to the Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan (the “Criteria”); and

WHEREAS, a total of 14 public hearing notices were mailed out to property owners in the subject 
areas and to surrounding property owners within two hundred (200) feet of the subject areas on 
October 2, 2020 and a public hearing notice was published in the San Antonio Express News 
on October 21, 2020; and

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 
hearing and, after considering the Criteria, made a recommendation to City Council to deny the 
requested Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment; and

WHEREAS, on November 10, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 
considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
determined that the requested Comprehensive Land Use Plan amendment be approved as provided 
for herein.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS:
THAT:

Section 1.  The current Comprehensive Land Use Plan is hereby amended to change the 
Future Land Use Map of the Property, as shown and more particularly described in the attached 
Exhibit A, from the Mixed Use Neighborhood and Agricultural Conservation land use designations 
to the Single-Family Residential land use designation.



Section 2.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the Council.

Section 3.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 6.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code.

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 
publication required by law.

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed.

Approved on first reading the 10th day of November, 2020.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 1st day of December, 2020.

____________________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary
(SEAL OF THE CITY) 



NK1309
Architect
Exhibit A





Mixed Use
Neighborhood

Agricultural
Conservation

Estate
Neighborhood

Single
Family

Residential

SAVERNE WAY

LOWER SEGUIN RD

VE
SO

UL
 VA

LL
EY

M IRE COURT WAY

SE
LE

ST
AT

 P
T

SARREBOURG ST

ST

LOUIS WAY

Mixed Use
Neighborhood

Estate
Neighborhood

Agricultural
Conservation

Single
Family

Residential

SAVERNE WAY

LOWER SEGUIN RD

VE
SO

UL
 VA

LL
EY

M IRE COURT WAY

SE
LE

ST
AT

 P
T

SARREBOURG ST

ST

LOUIS WAY

RuralFrontage
Sector Boundary
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction

Land Use Description
Agricultural Conservation
Air Installation Compatible
Air Installation Impact
Civic, Schools

Commercial Campus
Estate Neighborhood
Highway Commercial
Industrial
Industry, Technology and R&D

Main Street Commercial
Manufactured Housing
Mixed Use Core
Mixed Use Neighborhood
Multi-Family Residential

Parks, Open Space
Single Family Residential
TND/TOD
Transition ²0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500250

Feet

Proposed Land UseCurrent Land Use

NK1309
Architect
Exhibit B



[Ú

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P
!P !P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P
!P

!P

!P!P!P

!P

!P

!P

U

U

U

U
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U
U

U

U

U

U
U

U

U

1314874

1314924

1314922
1314923

1314907

1314875

1314879
13148801314881

131
492

1

1314876
1314877

1314878

1103091
THURLOW STEVEN

WILLIAM

310022
FRIESENHAHN

MILTON & BILLIE,
BASHA ELIZABETH

ANN, ZWIEKE

310025
ASHER

DORIS L/E

310031
FLUITT

ALFRED L

310027

GARZA

CARLOS JR &

310028
CARTY

JAMES B

310030
LINDORFER
JANICE S &

310021
GUAJARDO GUILLERMO

J & MARTHA C

310024
FLUITT

ALFRED LEON

1091215

ALVAREZ

SALVADOR P

310002
REYES

MARK M

310032
HOLTZ SEANNA

FRASER

1103092
THURLOW

STEVEN WILLIAM

309842
SCHNEIDER ALTON

B & EILEEN

1207560
THURLOW

STEVEN WILLIAM

1225628
BARSNESS

DARREN & SANDY

310011
FISCHER DONNIE

K & CINDY A

1133073
SCUC ISD
SCHOOL

BOARD OF
TRUSTEES

310004
FAIRLEY
GARY R

310006
FAIRLEY LLOYD
R & JENNIFER

309999
DAHLE

KAREN L

310019

FISCHER KAREN MARX

310045
KRICKHAHN ETC

ENTERPRISES LLC

1219941
RHINE VALLEY

HOMEOWNERS ASSOC INC

309811
FRIESENHAHN

MILTON & BILLIE,
BASHA ELIZABETH

ANN, ZWIEKE

Bexar
County

4"
WL
8"

WL

8" WL

8" WL

8" WL

2" WL

2" WL

8"
 W

L

8" WL

8" WL

1" WL

4"
 W

L

8"
 W

L

8" WL

8" WL

12
" W

L

2" WL

PVT RD AT

12201 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

LOWER SEGUIN RD

STRASBOURG WAY

E FM
1518 N

LONG
LEAF

PKWY

VE
SO

UL
VA

LL
EY

LOWER SEGUIN RD
PVT RD AT

12820 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

AR
CH

ES
VA

LL
EY

MU
NS

TE
R 

DR

MIRECOURT WAY

SE
LE

ST
AT

 P
T

SARREBOURG ST

ROTHAU DR

MU
LH

OU
SE

 DR

BARR
WAY

PVT RD AT12310 LOWERSEGUIN RD

SAVERNE WAY

PVT RD AT

8702 E FM
1518 N

ST LOUIS WAY

ER
ST

EIN
VA

LLE
Y

PVT RD AT

12180 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

PVT RD AT

12424 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

PVT RD AT

12000 RAY

CORBETT DR

6" 
Du

cti
le

Iro
n

6" HDPE

8" PVCSDR 26

8" PVC

SDR 26

8"
 PV

C
SD

R 
26

8" PVC

SDR 26

8" PVC SDR 26

8"
 PV

C S
DR

 26

8" PVC SDR 26

8" 
PV

C
SD

R 2
6

8" PVC

SDR 26

8"
 PV

C
SD

R 2
6

8" PVC SDR 26

8" PVC

SDR 26

(70' ROW)' Residential
Collector (SAVERNEWAY)

(120' - 130' ROW)'

Principal Arterial

(E FM 1518 N)

(70' ROW)'

Residential Collector

(ALSATIAN WAY)
(70' ROW)'

Residential Collector

(MULHOUSE DR)

(120' - 130' ROW)'

Planned Principal

Arterial (NORTH &

SOUTH CONNECTOR)

(90' ROW)'Secondary Arterial(LOWER SEGUIN RD)

(90' ROW)' Planned

Secondary Arterial

(LOWER SEGUIN RD)

(70' ROW)' Planned

Residential Collector

(NORTH & SOUTH CONNECTOR)

4 1 Inch = 300 FeetFLUITT TRACTS
0 300 600 900 1,200150

Feet

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes

60' Expansion
60' Proposed
60' Extension
86' Expansion

86' Extension
86' Proposed
120' Expansion
120 ' Extension

120' Proposed
Abandoned
Future TxDOT
Highway

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"

8"
10"
12"
16"
18"

g Unknown

Neighboring Main
Private Main

20"
24"
30"
36"



12770 Cimarron Path, Suite 100 San Antonio, Texas  78249 
Phone: (210) 698-5051  ·  Fax: (210) 698-5085 

TBPELS: Engineering F-5297  · Surveying F-10131500 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
August 26,2020 
 
 
 
Planning & Community Development Department 
Attn.: Lesa Wood, Director Planning &  
Community Development Department  
City of Schertz 1400 Schertz Parkway  
Schertz, Texas 78154 
 
 
Re: Fluitt Tract Comprehensive Plan 

 Amendment Request Letter 
 
Dear Ms. Wood: 

In connection with the proposed rezoning and development of the Fluitt Tracts, we are 
requesting that the City’s Future Land Use Plan be amended. The subject property is +/- 39.98-
Acres and is located at 12610 Lower Sequin Road (See Exhibit “1”). 

 
The City of Schertz Sector Plan lists the current Land Use for the Subject Property as a mix 

of ‘Estate Neighborhood’ and ‘Agricultural Conservation’ land use designations.  We are 
requesting that these land uses be amended to ‘Single-Family Residential’ (See Exhibit “2”).  
Additionally, the owners of the Subject Property will be submitting annexation and zoning 
requests pursuant to their existing Development Agreements with the City. 
 
  The proposed rezoning for the Subject Property will be to the ‘Planned Development 
District’. That application will be filed within the next two weeks. The proposed Planned 
Development District will match the Master Plan for the Fluitt Tract Subdivision and will be 
submitted at a later time following approval of the Sector Plan revision. 
 

The existing ‘Estate Neighborhood’ and ‘Agricultural Conservation’ land use designations 
for the Subject Property may have been appropriate in 2013, but seven years later they are not 
what is appropriate under today’s market and citizen/end-user needs.  The ‘Agricultural 
Conservation’ designation effectively prices the average Schertz citizen out of the market.  
Additionally, the ‘Estate Neighborhood’ designation cannot be considered optimal given the 
surrounding existing and proposed residential developments in the area.  

 



12770 Cimarron Path, Suite 100 San Antonio, Texas  78249 
Phone: (210) 698-5051  ·  Fax: (210) 698-5085 

TBPELS: Engineering F-5297  · Surveying F-10131500 
Page 2 of 2 

 

The nearby large single-family residential developments, both existing (Rhine Valley and 
Sedona Hills) and proposed (Saddlebrook Ranch), in this area have produced the necessary 
infrastructure to support larger density developments. Therefore, making the ‘Agricultural 
Conservation’ and ‘Estate Neighborhood’ land use designations obsolete.   
 

We believe that this amendment request for the Subject Property is appropriate, and ask 
for your support in amending the Future Land Use Plan in this regard. 

I appreciate your consideration of our proposed plan amendment. Please do not hesitate 
to contact me regarding any questions about the request. 

 
Sincerely,  
Moy Tarin Ramirez Engineers, LLC. 
 
 
________________________________                 
Paul Landa, P.E., CFM     
Vice President 
 
 
 
 
Enclosures: As Stated 
 



EXHIBIT 1: LOCATION MAP



EXHIBIT 2: EXISTING COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

NK1309
Architect
Mixed Use Neighborhood



EXHIBIT 3: PROPOSED LAND USE

NK1309
Architect
Mixed Use Neighborhood



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 64       | P a g e  

 
South Schertz Framework Map showing Land Use/Character Areas and  

Future Transportation Network 
 

10.1  South Schertz LandUse and Character Areas  
Based  on  the  market  assessment,  design  workshop,  stakeholder  and  staff 
input, the  following  land use/character area descriptions were developed.    In 
addition  these descriptions  form  the basis  for  the proposed  amendments  to 
the Unified Development Code included in Appendix 3 of this document. 

   
A. Agricultural Residential 

This  land  use/character  area  is  intended  to  preserve  much  of  South 
Schertz  in a rural/agricultural state.   This area  is  less attractive for more 
intense  uses  due  to  its  distance  from  the  Interstate  and  limited  street 
connectivity.    Some  of  the  character‐defining  elements  recommended 
are:  
• Use Mix: Mainly large‐lot (5 acre min lot size) residential and 

agricultural with some AG related commercial uses to be permitted 
(landscaping business, metal workshop, farmers market, convenience 
store, etc., with appropriate design and transition standards)   

• Alternative Development option: Provide  incentives for development 
of conservation subdivisions within  this  land use/character area due 
to potential  for  lower  infrastructure  (streets and utilities)  costs and 



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 65       | P a g e  

greater  preservation  of  open  space  associated  with  clustered 
development with the following recommended standards: 

– Minimum  assembled  acreage  required  to  apply  for 
conservation subdivision zoning (over 30 acres) 

– Maintain  gross density of 0.2 DU/Ac; but  allow  varying  lot 
sizes (no lot size minimum) 

– Minimum  open  space  (public  or  private)  or  conservation 
easement required (70% minimum) 

– Open  space  to  be  in  a  natural  state  or may  be  used  for 
agricultural uses 

– Preserve  rural  frontages  along  Trainer  Hale/ Ware  Seguin 
and Weir Roads with deeper setbacks, trails, and  low fence 
design standards 

 

 
Images showing desirable development character within the Agricultural Conservation Land 

Use/Character areas 

 
Possible development outcome using a Conservation Subdivision approach in the 

Agricultural Conservation Land Use/Character area 
 



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 66       | P a g e  

B. Commercial Campus 
The  Campus  Commercial  land  use/character  area  is  intended  to 
encourage  the  development  of  lower  intensity  commercial  and  office 
uses  in  the  locations between major  intersections  as  a buffer between 
the  Interstate  Highway  and  adjoining  neighborhoods.    Given  the 
significant linear frontage along IH‐10 in South Schertz, there are several 
opportunities  to  accommodate  low  impact  campus  development  that 
takes advantage of  the highway  frontage and any major environmental 
assets  (such  as  creeks,  flood  plains,  steep  grades,  and  significant  tree 
cover)  as  an  aesthetic  amenity  on  the  site.    This  category  could  also 
accommodate light manufacturing or flex office uses set in a campus like 
environment  in addition  to multi‐family  residential  located at mid‐block 
locations  and  as  transitions  between  office/light  industrial  uses  and 
adjoining  single‐family  residential uses.   Some of  the character‐defining 
elements recommended are: 

• Land Use Mix: Mostly office, research, flex‐office, and supporting 
uses,  light  industrial  and  assembly  uses,  educational  and  other 
institutional uses.    This  category may  include  some multi‐family 
uses at mid‐block  locations and as a buffer between the highway 
and  single‐family  neighborhoods  only.    Generally,  multi‐family 
should  only  be  considered  in  locations  that may  not  be  ideally 
suited  for  retail, office, or  light  industrial uses such as mid‐block 
locations,  behind  major  commercial  uses,  and  on  sites  with 
environmental constraints.    In addition, multi‐family uses  should 
be  incorporated  and/or  phased  in  with  other  retail  and  office 
uses. 

• Building  Scale/Height:  May  vary  from  low  rise  to  taller  office 
buildings with scale transitions to adjoining development  

• Create  an  overlay  district  with  standards  to  implement  the 
campus commercial design elements: 
o Building articulation – Some building articulation required; 

simple building and roof forms 
o Materials: Allow a range of building materials including but 

not limited to articulated tilt wall, masonry, stucco, synthetic 
stone, concrete panels, concrete block, cinder block, metal 
and tile. 

o Building Orientation:  
- Buildings shall be set in a campus environment with 

landscaping and natural features 
- Pedestrian linkages and trails to be provided 
- Development to be auto oriented along highway and 

service street frontages and pedestrian oriented along 
other internal connector streets (hybrid) 



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 67       | P a g e  

- Emphasis on key linkage streets for more pedestrian 
oriented development 

o Transitions to adjoining uses:  
- Smaller scale garden office and multi‐family as transitions 

to single‐family 
- Buffer/screen loading, unloading and service areas 

o Civic/Open Space: 
- More natural and unstructured spaces 
- Generally private yards (areas within front, side, and rear 

setbacks, courtyards, etc.) 
o Landscaping: 

- Soften highway frontage with landscaping and screening of 
surface parking 

- Combination of private and public landscaping 
- Low impact infrastructure for storm water and water 

quality such as bio swales, rain gardens, pervious pavers, 
etc. 

o Signage: Unified wayfinding program with a palette of 
monument and building signs 
 

     
Images showing desirable development character within the Campus Commercial Land 

Use/Character areas 
 

C. Estate Neighborhood 
The  Estate  Neighborhood  Land  Use/Character  area  designation  is 
intended  to  address  residential  development  patterns  within  the  RA 
(Residential  Agriculture)  zoned  property  within  South  Schertz.    A 
significant amount of  the RA zoned properties within South Schertz are 
already developed with subdivisions with min. ½ acre lots.  Some of these 
existing neighborhoods areas have a unique and desirable development 
quality with  large wooded  lots  and  streets.    The  goal within  this  Land 
Use/Character area is to incentivize an alternative development outcome 
with more  flexibility  in  lot  size while  requiring  quality  open  space  and 
neighborhood design. 

• Base Zoning and Land Use:  RA (1/2 acre min lot size) with single‐
family residential uses only 



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 68       | P a g e  

• Alternative  Development  option:    Estate  Neighborhood  to 
encourage  cluster  neighborhood  with  the  same  overall  gross 
density  with  more  open  space  and  neighborhood  design 
standards due  to potential  for  lower  infrastructure  (streets and 
utilities) costs and greater preservation of open space associated 
with  clustered  development.    The  following  are  some 
recommended elements within  this alternative  incentive zoning 
district: 

– Minimum  assembled  acreage  to  apply  for  alternative  Estate 
Neighborhood Zoning  

– Maintain gross density of 2 DU/Ac 
– Range  of  single‐family  detached  residential  uses  (lot  sizes 

vary; no minimum lot size) 
– Minimum  50%  open  space  (public  or  private)  requirement 

(with  design  and  location  criteria  for  open  space  ‐‐  to  be 
located along rural  frontage roads and along creeks/drainage 
ways or with agricultural/conservation easements) 

– Design  criteria  for  neighborhood  streets  and  residential 
buildings based on the specific context of the neighborhood 

 

   
Images showing desirable development character within the Estate Neighborhood 

 Land Use/Character areas 
 

D. Highway Commercial 
This  land  use/character  area  designation  is  intended  for  regional  scale 
retail  and  commercial  uses  that  can  take  advantage  of  the  highway 
frontage.    This  land  use/character  area  is  located  at  major  highway 
intersections  to  maximize  access  to  the  region  and  adjoining 
neighborhoods.  Some of the character‐defining elements recommended 
are: 

• Land  Use Mix: Mostly  large  format  retail  with  restaurants  and 
entertainment  uses  or  mid‐rise  office  buildings;  may  include 
lodging and related uses. 

• Building Scale: generally low rise with some taller office buildings. 



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 69       | P a g e  

• Design Elements: 
o Building Articulation:  

- Focus on minimizing the impact of a ‘big box’ look by 
articulating the building mass horizontally and vertically 

- Horizontal and vertical articulation to break up the 
building mass 

o Building Materials: 
- Allow a range of building materials; primarily masonry 

(brick, stone, stucco, synthetic stone) for retail/restaurant 
and masonry, glass, and more flexible materials for office 
buildings (including, but not limited to masonry, curtain 
glass, glass block, concrete panels, concrete blocks, 
architectural metal, tile, etc.). 

• Soften highway frontage with landscaping 
• Signage: Larger highway facing monument signs; smaller building 

signs along other streets; limit new billboard signs 
 

Images showing desirable development character within the Highway Commercial Land 
Use/Character areas 

 
E. Mixed Use Neighborhood Center 

This  land use/character area designation  is  intended  to accommodate a 
higher  intensity,  walkable,  mixed  use  neighborhood  center  at  the 
intersection of FM 1518 and Lower Seguin Road.  Such a mixed use node 
would  anchor  adjoining  residential  neighborhoods  in  addition  to 
providing much needed neighborhood commercial services.  Some of the 
character‐defining elements recommended are: 

• Land Use: Mix of  retail,  restaurant, office, civic, and multi‐family 
residential uses  

• Generally low to medium scale buildings  
• Create  a  PD  type mixed  use  zoning  district  with  the  following 

elements:  
o Require  a  phased  conceptual  plan  framework  over multiple 

properties  (minimum of  10  acres) based on  a market‐driven 
assessment 



Ord. 13‐S‐21 
July 16, 2013 70       | P a g e  

o Establish a set of key performance criteria for the core Mixed 
Use area and transitions including integration with residential 
neighborhoods and regional roadways.   

o Minimum performance standards  for key elements to ensure 
walkable mixed use including:  
- Building  Articulation:  Building  base  is  articulated  at  a 

pedestrian  rhythm/scale  (20’  to  30’  bay/demarcation 
width).    Ground  floors  designed  with  a  high  quality 
pedestrian realm with active uses at key locations 

- Building Materials:  
 Higher standards for building materials apply only to 
pedestrian‐oriented streets 

 Materials to be masonry or comparable high quality 
materials of primary facades of buildings 

- Building Orientation:  
 Buildings built to the edge of the sidewalk establishing 
a strong street wall along internal streets with any 
parking lots screened along FM 1518 and Lower Seguin 
Road  

 Ground floors of buildings along  internal streets to be 
of higher quality design  

- Civic spaces: plazas, paseos, and squares 
- Landscaping: mostly  in the public realm (street trees) and 

in civic spaces; buffering of surface parking along FM 1518 
and Lower Seguin Road. 

- Signage:  establish  a  palette  of more  pedestrian‐oriented 
signs 

o Street and Block Standards:  
− Urban block standards – generally block face dimensions 

not to exceed 400’ (see table on page 50 based on the ITE 
Manual for Context Sensitive Urban Thoroughfares) 

− Street network should be based on the required and 
recommended streets on the framework plan and city’s 
Thoroughfare Plan 

 

 
Images showing desirable development character within the Mixed 

Use Land Use/Character areas 



8702 E FM
1518 N

(1103091)

12606 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310025)

12740 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310031)

12746 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

(310027)

12746 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

(310028)

12818 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310030)

12610 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310024)

12610 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

(1091215)

12330 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310002)

12820 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310032)

13011 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310011)

12310 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(310004)

12573 LOWER
SEGUIN RD
(1314874)

D
B

I

K

F

12691 LOWER
SEGUIN RD

(309811)

C
12585 LOWER

SEGUIN RD

(1314907)E

J

A

G H

A  - 12708 MIRECOURT WAY (1314921)
B  - 12714 MIRECOURT WAY (1314922)
C  - 12720 MIRECOURT WAY (1314923)
D  - 12726 MIRECOURT WAY (1314924)
E  - 12738 MIRECOURT WAY (1314875)
F  - 12744 MIRECOURT WAY (1314876)
G  - 12750 MIRECOURT WAY (1314877)
H  - 12756 MIRECOURT WAY (1314878)
 I  -  12762 MIRECOURT WAY (1314879)
J  - 9906 SARREBOURG ST (1314880)
K  - 9912 SARREBOURG ST (1314881)

MU
LH

OU
SE

DR

LOWER SEGUIN RD

ST
VINCENT

WAY

MIRECOURT WAY

ARCHES VALLEY

MU
NS

TE
R 

DR

SE
LE

ST
AT

 PT

SARREBOURG ST

ROTHAU DR

BARR WAY

LOWER SEGUIN RD

ST

LOUIS WAY

SAVERNE WAY

4
0 500 1,000 1,500250 Feet

City o f Schertz
FLU ITT TRACTSLast U p date: Sep tem ber 22, 2020

“Th e City o f Sch ertz p ro vides th is Geo g rap h ic Info rm atio n System  p ro duct "as is" w ith o ut any exp ress o r im p lied
warranty o f an y kin d in cludin g  but n o t lim ited to  the im p lied warran ties o f m erch an tab ility an d fitn ess fo r a p articular purp o se.
In  n o  even t shall Th e City o f Schertz be liab le fo r any sp ecial, indirect o r co n sequential dam ag es o r an y dam ag es wh atso ever arisin g  o ut o f o r in  co n n ectio n
w ith  th e use o f o r p erfo rm an ce o f th ese m aterials. Info rm atio n p ub lished in th is p ro duct co uld include tech n ical in accuracies o r typ o g rap h ical erro rs. Perio dical
chan g es m ay be m ade an d info rm atio n  m ay b e added to  the in fo rm atio n  herein .  Th e City o f Schertz m ay m ake im p ro vem ents and/o r ch an g es in th e p ro duct(s)
described h erein at an y tim e.”

City o f Sch ertz, GIS Sp ecialist:  Bill Gardner, g is@sch ertz.co m  (210) 619-1185

Sch ertz Mun icip al Bo undary
Parcel Bo un daries

200' No tificatio n  Buffer











Agenda No. 4.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: City Secretary
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-K-35 - Consideration/or action upon an Ordinance requesting to

close and abandon to the abutting property owners a portion of Urban Lane
Right-of-Way between Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 1, Block 55 (Guadalupe
County Property ID: 32206) and Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 18, Block 54
(Guadalupe County Property ID: 32205); and establishing an effective date
hereof. Final Reading (B.James/L. Wood/E. Delgado)

BACKGROUND
The Live Oak Hills Subdivision is a legally platted subdivision that was filed in 1963, prior to the
property being annexed by the City of Schertz in 1984. When the subdivision was platted, while in
Guadalupe County, the public infrastructure improvements (streets, water and sewer) were not installed
to serve the lots. This is commonly referred to as a "paper subdivision." Freeway Manor is also a "paper
subdivision."

The owner of Lot 1, Block 55 and Lot 1, Block 18 of the Live Oak Hills Subdivision has requested that
the Urban Lane right-of-way between their two lots be abandoned by the City of Schertz. Currently, the
property owner resides at 3625 Diamond Falls within the Carolina Crossing Subdivision. This property
abuts the lots in question and the section of right-of-way proposed to be abandoned. The requesting
property owner, would like to utilize Lot 1, Block 55 and Lot 1, Block 18 along with the abandoned
right-of-way as one large area that connects to their existing residential backyard. 

After being approached by the owner about the requesting the abandonment to increase their backyard,
staff researched the situation and provided the property owner with several options in order to achieve
the outcome of having a larger backyard for his family. These options included 1) the proposed
right-of-way abandonment via ordinance with a requirement to replat the abandoned right-of with the
Live Oak Hills Lots, 2) the proposed right-of-way abandonment via ordinance with a requirement to
vacate the Live Oak Hills properties and replat with their Carolina Crossing property and a new to
Schertz concept of a License Agreement that would be approved / denied by the City Council (no
abandonment).

After discussing the pros and cons of each option the property owner/requestor ultimately decided to
request that the City of Schertz abandon the portion of Urban Lane right-of-way that is in between their
lots within the Live Oak Hills Subdivision via an abandonment ordinance without having to replat the
right-of-way. 

A public hearing notice was published in the San Antonio Express News on October 21, 2020.
Additionally, twenty public hearing notice mailers were sent on October 14, 2020 to the property
owners within 200 feet of the property requested to be abandoned. At this time staff has received no
responses in favor or opposed to this request. 
 

GOAL 



The property owner of Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 1, Block 55 (Guadalupe County Property ID:
32206) and Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 18, Block 54 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32205) has
requested that the unused section of Urban Lane right-of-way between Lot 1 and Lot 18 be released by
the City in order for them to utilize this section as a part of their backyard. 
The City has the goal of trying to increase the benefit of the property to the owners while not creating
negative consequences of current and future owners of property and the City.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The abandonment and release of the ROW segment to the property owner will enable the property
owner to add additional land to their lot that is currently undeveloped right-of-way. 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The primary objection staff has in abandoning the right-of-way and not requiring a replat is that the
owner can sell the abandoned right-of-way separately from the adjacent lots in Live Oak Hills. While
staff does not doubt the owner's intent to not do this- rather they would sell all of the adjacent properties
they own, including the lot in Carolina Crossing, there  is not a requirement that this occur. That applies
to future owners as well. The only way to ensure the lots in Live Oak Hills be sold together is to require
they be replatted. 

The difficulty in requiring a replat of the abandoned right-of-way into one or both of the Live Oak Hills
lots, is this triggers the requirement to construct public improvements - street, water and sewer. This
would likely be cost prohibitive. The owner could request a waiver to not install those as part of the
replat, which is considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Staff would not support that
waiver request. The City has significant issues with the existing "paper subdivisions" not having
infrastructure - people buying those lots assuming they can be developed, when without the extension of
public improvements, that cannot occur. While we have to deal with these situations that occurred prior
to annexation into the City, staff cannot support adding to that problem or perpetuating it. If we were to
approve this without a replat, how do we respond to future requests? Also, how does it alter the City's
response to owners of property in these subdivisions that these situations were created before the
properties were under the control of the City.

The requirement to vacate the portion of the Live Oaks Hills plat owned by the property owner Lot 1,
Block 55 and Lot 1, Block 18 and replat that area, along with the abandoned right-of-way with the lot in
Carolina Crossing would avoid the problems of not constructing the public improvements as access via
an improved road and water and sewer would be via the Carolina Crossing Subdivision. The problem
with this option is that per State Law, in order to vacate a portion of a plat, all of the owners of property
within that plat, the Live Oak Hills Subdivision, must sign off on that action - this is something that is
highly highly unlikely to be obtained by the owner. Thus, this option is not very viable. 

Staff is very supportive of a license agreement. With a license agreement, the City essentially leases this
area of right-of-way to the property owner, so they can use it as a backyard. By retaining ownership,
the City can end the license agreement if it needs to. Staff feels this could be a model for dealing with
similar situations in Live Oak Hills and with some ordinance amendments some other challenges
- limitation on fence heights allowing accessory structures, for example could be overcome. Staff will
likely pursue developing a process to do this regardless of this particular situation.     

FISCAL IMPACT 
The requestor would be required to pay the appraised value for the property as the City cannot make a



The requestor would be required to pay the appraised value for the property as the City cannot make a
gift of public property. The property owner has provided an appraisal indicating the property to be
abandoned is worth $3,600. Normally the City would contract for the appraisal, but we could accept
this appraisal.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends denial of Ordinance No. 20-K-35  which does not require a replat as part of the
vacation approval given the reasons outlined in the staff report. The ordinance attached is consistent
with the applicants request to vacate the portion of right-of-way and not require a replat in case Council.
Staff is still supportive of license agreement with the property owner.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 20-K-35 
Public Hearing Notice Map 
Public Hearing Notice Letter 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 20-K-35 

 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS, 
CLOSING AND ABANDONING TO THE ABUTTING PROPERTY OWNERS A 
PORTION OF URBAN LANE RIGHT-OF-WAY BETWEEN LIVE OAK HILLS 
SUBDIVISION LOT 1, BLOCK 55 AND LIVE OAK HILLS SUBDIVSION LOT 18, 
BLOCK 54; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Schertz, Texas, a home rule municipality, has established a public right- 
of-way between Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 1, Block 55 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 
32206) and Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 18, Block 54 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32205) 
described in the Exhibit A attached herein (herein after, the “Subject Area”); and 

 
WHEREAS, The Subject Area is located entirely within the Live Oak Hills Subdivision and is 
between Lot 1, Block 55 and Lot 18, Block 55; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of the Live Oak Hills Subdivision being platted prior to being annexed 
into the City of Schertz the construction of Urban Lane did not occur; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Subject Area is abutted to the north by platted right of way, and to the south by 
platted property as part of the Carolina Crossing Subdivision; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 311.007 of the Texas Transportation Code, a home-rule 
municipality may vacate, abandon, or close a street or alley; and 

 
WHEREAS, no detriment or hazard to the City of Schertz or its citizens has been found; and 

 
WHEREAS, on November 10, 2020, a Public Hearing was held to allow members of the public 
to give testimony, and comment, on the merits of the Subject Area abandonment. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the recitals contain in the preamble hereto are hereby found to be true and 

such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgement and findings of the Council. 

 
Section 2. That the City Council finds that such closure and abandonment as requested 

will cause no harm or injury to the City of Schertz or its citizens, said portion of right of way is 
not needed for public purpose and it is in the public interest to abandon said portion of right of 
way. 

 
Section 3. That the Subject Area as depicted on Exhibit “A”, is hereby closed, abandoned 

and vacated insofar as the right, title or easement of the public is concerned and shall only extend 
to the public right, title and easement that the City may legally and lawfully abandon, subject to 
the conditions of Section 4. 



 
Section 4. That the Subject Area is abandoned to the abutting owners, as authorized by 

Section 311.007 of the Texas Transportation Code and Section 272.001 (b)(2) of the Texas Local 
Government Code, conditioned upon the abutting property owners payment based on the appraised 
value of the property. 

 
Section 5. All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 

with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

 
Section 6. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 7. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

 
Section 8. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 9. This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 

publication required by law. 
 

Section 10. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Approved on first reading the 10th day of November, 2020. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 1st day of December, 2020. 

 
 
 
 

 

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 
(SEAL OF THE CITY) 



 
Exhibit “A” 

Subject Property 
 

 
 

Area to be abandoned via Ordinance No. 20-K-35 



3612 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17796)

3616 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17795)

3629 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17742)

3632 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17791)

3625 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17741)

3628 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17792)

3621 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17740)

3620 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17794)

3637 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17744)

3636 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17790)

3609 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17737)

3645 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17746)

3613 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17738)

17490
WIEDERSTEIN RD
(110161)

4728 TROY LN

(32191)

4720 TROY LN

(32189)

4716 TROY LN

(32188)

4802 URBAN LN

(32206)

4801 URBAN LN

(32205)

4810 URBAN LN

(32208)

4806 URBAN LN

(32207)

4724 TROY LN

(32190)

4818 URBAN LN

(32210)

4814 URBAN LN

(32209)

4817 URBAN LN

(32201)

4809 URBAN LN

(32203)

4805 URBAN LN

(32204)

4813 URBAN LN

(32202)

3617 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17739)

3641 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17745)

3633 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17743)

3624 DIAMOND

FALLS
(17793)

URBAN LN

WIEDERSTEIN RD

GAMBLE ST

TROY LN

PRAIRIE LN

SHADY LN

DIAMOND FALLS

4
0 50 100 150 200 25025 Feet

Last U p date: Sep tem ber 29, 2020
“Th e City o f Sch ertz p ro vides th is Geo g rap h ic In fo rm atio n  System  p ro duct "as is" w ith o ut any exp ress o r im p lied
warran ty o f an y kin d in cludin g  b ut n o t lim ited to  th e im p lied warran ties o f m erch an tab ility an d fitn ess fo r a p articular p urp o se.
In  n o  even t sh all The City o f Sch ertz b e liab le fo r an y sp ecial, in direct o r co n sequen tial dam ag es o r an y dam ag es w h atsoever arisin g  o ut of o r in  co n n ectio n
w ith  th e use o f o r p erfo rm an ce o f these m aterials. In fo rm atio n  p ublish ed in  th is p ro duct co uld in clude tech n ical in accuracies o r typ o g rap h ical erro rs. Perio dical
ch an g es m ay b e m ade an d in fo rm atio n  m ay b e added to th e in fo rm atio n  h erein.  Th e City o f Sch ertz m ay m ake im p ro vem en ts an d/o r chan g es in  th e p ro duct(s)
describ ed h erein  at an y tim e.”

City o f Schertz, GIS Adm in istrato r:  To n y McFalls, g is@sch ertz.co m  (210) 619-1184

Parcel Bo un daries
200' No tificatio n  Buffer

City o f Schertz
U rban  Lane
Abando n m en t



PLANNING & COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
October 14, 2020

Dear Property Owner,

The Schertz City Council will conduct a public hearing on Tuesday November 10, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. located at the 
Municipal Complex Council Chambers, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Building #4, Schertz, Texas to consider and act upon
on the following item: 

Ord. No. 20-K-35 � A request to close and abandon to the abutting property owners a portion of Urban Lane Right -of-
Way between Live Oak Hills Subdivision Lot 1, Block 55 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32206) and Live Oak Hills 
Subdivision Lot 18, Block 54 (Guadalupe County Property ID: 32205); and establishing an effective date hereof.

The City Council would like to hear how you feel about this request and invites you to attend the public h earing. This 
form is used to calculate the percentage of landowners that support and oppose the request. You may return the reply 
form below prior to the public hearing date by mail or personal delivery to Emily Delgado, Planner, 1400 Schertz 
Parkway, Schertz, Texas 78154, by fax (210) 619-1789, or by e-mail edelgado@schertz.com. If you have any 
questions please feel free to call Emily Delgado, Planner directly at (210) 619-1784.

Sincerely,

Emily Delgado
Senior Planner
-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Reply Form

I am: in favor of ® opposed to ® neutral to ® the request for Ord. No. 20-K-35

COMMENTS: _______________________________________________________________________________

NAME: _____________________________________SIGNATURE___________________________________
(PLEASE PRINT)

STREET ADDRESS: ________________________________________________________________________

DATE: _____________________________     



Agenda No. 5.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Finance
Subject: Resolution 20-R-140 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, awarding a professional services
contract to Avant Strategic Partners for required bond arbitrage calculations
and filing. (B. James/J. Walters)

BACKGROUND
The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) puts certain requirement on tax exempt bonds. When a
municipality issues tax exempt bonds, it has to spend funds down within a set amount of time and make
sure it does not make more money by holding the bonds in an investment account than what the city
pays in debt service. This calculation must be done every 5 years at minimum and submitted to the IRS.

In 2016, the City contracted with Avant Strategic Partners to provide this service and has been satisfied
with thier performance and customer service.

GOAL 
To ensure compliance with tax exempt bond rules set by the Internal Revenue Services (IRS).

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
N/A

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
To receive approval of resolution and award a contract to Avant Strategic Partners for bond abritrage
calculation and filing.

FISCAL IMPACT 
This contract award is estimated to cost $43,500 over a 5 year period. These funds have been identified
in the budget planning process and have been a part of the Finance budget for the past 5 years as well.
If these reports are not done timely and accurately the City could face additional costs in the form of
IRS penalties. Avant will ensure the City will avoid any of those issues.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of resolution 20-R-140 to award a contract to Avant Strategic Partners.

Attachments
Resolution 20-R-140 
Avant Services Agreement 



 

RESOLUTION NO.  20-R-140 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH AVANT STRATEGIC PARTNERS, AND OTHER 
MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, the City staff of the City of Schertz (the “City”) has determined that the City 
requires professional services relating to bond arbitrage calculation and report submission; and 

WHEREAS, City staff has determined that Avant Strategic Partners is uniquely qualified 
to provide such services for the City; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 252.022(a)(4), the City is not required to seek bids or 
proposals with respect to a procurement for personal, professional, or planning purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to 
contract with Avant Strategic Partners pursuant to the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A 
(the “Agreement”).   

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute and 
deliver the Agreement with Avant Strategic Partners in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit 
A. 

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 



50077397.1 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 1st day of December, 2020. 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
 
 
  
      Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
    Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 

 

(CITY SEAL) 



 

50077397.1  A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

________________ SERVICES AGREEMENT 



















Teresa E. Clune
Partner























Agenda No. 6.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Parks, Recreation & Community Servic
Subject: Resolution No. 20-R-119 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with AG|CM
Inc, in an amount not to exceed $32,663 for the construction management of the
Schertz Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lanes Project and the Live Oak Road Turn
Lane Addition. (B. James/L. Shrum)

BACKGROUND
In 2016 the City of Schertz applied for federal funding from the Transportation Alternatives Program
through a call for projects from the Alamo Area Metropolitan Planning Organization.  The total
estimated project cost at the time of application was $1,158,266.  The City's local cash match was 20% -
$231,653, and the federal reimbursement was $926,613.  The city contracted with Ford Engineering to
prepare the plans and specifications and the environmental clearance work.  Once the design phase got
underway, city staff determined that a right turn lane was needed from Live Oak Road on to FM 3009
and it would be more efficient to do the design for the turn lane at the same time as the sidewalks and
curb and gutter.  When it came time for the construction bidding phase, the city added the construction
of the turn lane as an alternate to the base bid.  The contract being recommended for approval is the
base bid plus the turn lane alternate with a total construction cost of $1,256,960.95.
Because of the extensive reporting requirements required by TxDOT, it became clear to city staff that
we would need assistance on this project to manage it.  This is our first project utilizing this federal
funding source and staff did not have the ability to manage this with the current workload.

AG/CM has an existing master agreement to provide on-call owner's rep services on behalf of hte City.
This task order falls under the scope of the master agreement established and approved by council on
resolution 19-R-112.

GOAL 
The goal of the construction management contract is to have the oversight needed to meet the extensive
TxDOT reporting requirements, manage DBE requirements, and keep city staff informed of progress in
the field.

The goal of the project is to add more opportunities for pedestrian and bicycle connectivity in Central
Schertz. This project will add bike lanes along Savannah Drive and Woodland Oaks Dr;  The project
also includes a10 foot wide decomposed granite trail between Schertz Parkway and Wiederstein Road
which will create a safe pedestrian access to the parkway and pedestrians can avoid traveling on the
shoulder of Wiederstein on a blind hill.  The project will also add sidewalks (and curb and gutter) to
both sides of Live Oak Road between Schertz Parkway and FM 3009, again enhancing pedestrian safety
in this heavily-used area for walkers, joggers, and bicyclists. The additional goal is to add a dedicated
right turn lane onto FM 3009 from Live Oak Road to ease traffic congestion.

 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT



The community benefits from having well run projects that are completed on-time and on-budget, to
ensure that taxpayer funds are utilized wisely.  The construction management company will work for
the city to accomplish those goals.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution No. 20-R-119.

FISCAL IMPACT 
Construction management for this project totals $32,663.00.  The total construction cost of the project is
$1,256,960.95 (Resolution 20-R-118.) Because the construction and construction management are tied
together, the combined funding sources are shown here.  The funding breakdown is as follows:   Total 3
Cost: $1,256,960.95 — MPO Contribution: $926,613.00 — City Contribution for Construction:
$330,347.95 --- AG|CM Construction Management Costs: $32,663.00 — Total Outstanding Funding:
$363,010.95   — Existing Funding in Project C11: $190,744.00 — 2018 Parks Bonds: $72,959.00
— SPAM Funds: $99,307.95

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution No. 20-R-119.

Attachments
Resolution 
AG|CM Proposal 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-119 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCHERTZ, TEXAS AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH AG/CM INC, 

IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $32,663.00 FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT OF THE SCHERTZ PEDESTRIAN 

ROUTES & BIKE LANES PROJECT AND LIVE OAK ROAD TURN 

LANE ADDITION AND RELATED MATTERS IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Schertz In 2016 the City of Schertz applied for federal funding from 

the Transportation Alternatives Program through a call for projects from the Alamo Area 

Metropolitan Planning Organization; and 

 

WHEREAS, Because of the extensive reporting requirements required by TxDOT, staff 

recommends hiring and outside firm for construction management services; and  

 

WHEREAS, AG/CM,is an approved project management firm for the City of Schertz; and  

 

WHEREAS, funding is being provided from a variety of sources for the overall construction 

project, with construction management costs being provided from the original City project match 

funds; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCHERTZ, TEXAS THAT: 

 

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes expenditures with AG/CM in an amount 

not to exceed $32,663.00 (Thirty-two thousand six hundred sixty-three and zero cents) for 

construction management services for the Schertz Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lane Project and Live 

Oak Road Turn Lane Addition.   

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 

and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 

part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 

any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 



Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 

or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 

of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 

Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 

provision. 

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 

this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 

given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 

passage, and it is so resolved. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 1st day of December, 2020. 

 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Exhibit A 

Scope Proposal 

 



July 24, 2020 

Mr. Scott McClelland, EIT 
Project Manager – City of Schertz 
10 Commercial Place, Bldg 2 
Schertz, TX 78154 

SUBJECT:  CONSTRUCTION MGMT/QA SERVICES 
LGPP Sidewalk/Trail/Bike Lane/Parks Project 

Mr. McClelland: 

AG|CM. Inc. is pleased to provide a proposal for CM/QA Services on The LGPP Sidewalk/Trail/Bike 
Lane/Parks Project , in accordance with the “Owners Rep Professional Services Agreement” recently 
awarded us by The City of Schertz. 

• AG|CM, Inc. will perform Construction Management/Quality Assurance Observation duties assigned
by The City of Schertz, and other duties requested consistent with the scope awarded in the contract,
at a rate of 2020 rate of $125/Hour, estimated 7.5 hours/week, at a “Not To Exceed” amount of
$32,663 over a period of 34 weeks.

Please indicate your acceptance of this proposal by signing below.  Let me know of any questions, and 
thank you again for the opportunity.   We look forward to working with you! 

Respectfully, 

Ryan K. Rosborough 
Vice President, Central Region 
AG|CM, Inc. 

Attached:  Manpower Exhibit A 
Signature - Accepted By: ________________________________ 

Name and Title: _______________________________________ 

Date: __________________ 



Exhibit A Manpower
LGPP Sidwalks/Trail/Bike/Parks Project

Attachment 1 Manpower Exhibit 7/24/2020

Year Year Total
Title/Position/Item 2020 2021

1 Construction Manager - Marcus Garcia $12,188 $20,475 $32,663

Manhour Subtotal $12,188 $20,475 $32,663

PERSONNEL

AG|CM, Inc.
City of Schertz

LGPP Parks Project
Construction Manager/QA Inspector



Exhibit A Manpower
City of Schertz LGPP 

Parks Project

2 of 4 2020 7/24/2020

Title/Position 1/6 1/13 1/20 1/27 2/3 2/10 2/17 2/24 3/3 3/10 3/17 3/24 3/31 4/7 4/14 4/21 4/28 5/5 5/12 5/19 5/26 6/2 6/9 6/16 6/23 6/30 7/7 7/14 7/21 7/28 8/4 8/11 8/18 8/25 9/1 9/8 9/15 9/22 9/29 10/6 10/13 10/20 10/27 11/3 11/10 11/17 11/24 12/1 12/8 12/15 12/22 12/29

1 Construction Manager - Marcus Garcia 98 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5

Estimated Subtotal 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5

May June July August
Total
Hours

2020 2020
January February September October November DecemberMarch April



Exhibit A Manpower
City of Schertz LGPP 

Parks Project

3 of 4 2021 7/24/2020

Title/Position 1/4 1/11 1/18 1/25 2/1 2/8 2/15 2/22 3/1 3/8 3/15 3/22 3/29 4/5 4/12 4/19 4/26 5/3 5/10 5/17 5/24 5/31 6/7 6/14 6/21 6/28 7/5 7/12 7/19 7/26 8/2 8/9 8/16 8/23 8/30 9/6 9/13 9/20 9/27 10/4 10/11 10/18 10/25 11/1 11/8 11/15 11/22 11/29 12/6 12/13 12/20 12/27

1 Construction Manager - Marcus Garcia 158 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5

Estimated Subtotal 158 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

April May June July August
Total
Hours

2021 2021
January February September October November DecemberMarch



City of Schertz - LGPP

Attachment 3 7/24/2020

Title/Position 2020 2021

1 Construction Manager - Marcus Garcia $125.00 $130.00

General Conditions

Project Specific

Personnel

Rate Sheet
AG|CM, Inc.

January 1, 2020



Agenda No. 7.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Parks, Recreation & Community Servic
Subject: Resolution No. 20-R-118 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing a contract with D&S
Concrete, in the amount of $1,256,960.95 for the construction of the Schertz
Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lanes Project and the Live Oak Road Turn Lane
Addition. (B. James/L. Shrum)

BACKGROUND
In 2016 the City of Schertz applied for federal funding from the Transportation Alternatives Program
through a call for projects from the Alamo Area Metropolitan Planning Organization.  The total
estimated project cost at the time of application was $1,158,266.  The City's local cash match was 20% -
$231,653, and the federal reimbursement was $926,613.  The city contracted with Ford Engineering to
prepare the plans and specifications and the environmental clearance work.  Once the design phase got
underway, city staff determined that a right turn lane was needed from Live Oak Road on to FM 3009
and it would be more efficient to do the design for the turn lane at the same time as the sidewalks and
curb and gutter.  When it came time for the construction bidding phase, the city added the construction
of the turn lane as an alternate to the base bid.  The contract being recommended for approval is the
base bid plus the turn lane alternate with a total construction cost of $1,256,960.95. There is not a
higher not to exceed amount being included as part of this approval. As such, if unexpected costs occur,
staff may have to come back to coucil for approval.

An RFP was published consistent with the requirements of both the City of Schertz and TxDOT. Six
total responses were received and evaluated based on lowest qualified bid. D&S Concrete was the
lowest overall bid and was determined to be qualified to complete the project. TxDot has reviewed the
bid submission, bid tabulation and concurs with the recommendation.  

GOAL 
The goal is to add more opportunities for pedestrian and bicycle connectivity in Central Schertz. This
project will add bike lanes along Savannah Drive and Woodland Oaks Dr;  The project also includes
a10 foot wide decomposed granite trail between Schertz Parkway and Wiederstein Road which will
create a safe pedestrian access to the parkway and pedestrians can avoid traveling on the shoulder of
Wiederstein on a blind hill.  The project will also add sidewalks (and curb and gutter) to both sides of
Live Oak Road between Schertz Parkway and FM 3009, again enhancing pedestrian safety in this
heavily-used area for walkers, joggers, and bicyclists. The additional goal is to add a dedicated right turn
lane onto FM 3009 from Live Oak Road to ease traffic congestion.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The community benefits from this project by seeing reductions in traffic congestion on Live Oak Road,
and adding in more trails, sidewalks, and bike lanes which has been a high priority in the Parks Master
Plan, as well as the Citizen Satisfaction surveys.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 



Staff recommends Council approve Resolution No. 20-R-118.

FISCAL IMPACT 
The total construction cost is $1,256,960.65.  Construction management will also be needed for this
project and that cost is $32,663.00 (Resolution 20-R-119.)  Thus, the funding breakdown is as follows:

  Total 3 Cost: $1,256,960.95
— MPO Contribution: $926,613.00
— City Contribution for Construction: $330,347.95
--- AG|CM Construction Management Costs: $32,663.00
— Total Outstanding Funding: $363,010.95
 
— Existing Funding in Project C11: $190,744.00
— 2018 Parks Bonds: $72,959.00
— SPAM Funds: $99,307.95

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution No. 20-R-118.

Attachments
Resolution 20-R-1118 D&S Concrete 
Overall Exhibit 
Draft Agreement 



RESOLUTION NO.  20-R-118

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, TEXAS AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH D&S 
CONCRETE FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SCHERTZ 
PEDESTRIAN ROUTES & BIKE LANES PROJECT AND THE LIVE 
OAK TURN LANE ADDITION.

WHEREAS, the City staff of the City of Schertz (the “City”) went through the 
competitive bid process for construction services for the Schertz Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lanes 
Project and the Live Oak Turn Lane Addition; and

WHEREAS, City staff has determined that D&S Concrete was the lowest bid to provide 
such services for the City; and

WHEREAS, TxDOT has provided a Letter of Concurrence to proceed with the award to 
D&S Concrete; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interest of the City to 
contract with D&S Concrete pursuant to the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
“Agreement”).  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute and 
deliver the Agreement with D&S Concrete, in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A, 
totaling no more than $1,256,960.95 for construction services to complete the Schertz Pedestrian 
Routes & Bike Lanes Project and Live Oak Turn Lane Addition..

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 
of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision.



Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 
passage, and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 1st day of December, 2020.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary

(CITY SEAL)



A-1

EXHIBIT A

CONTRACT WITH D&S CONCRETE



0000000

SCALE: 1" = 1000'

1000 2000

S
E

W
N

(R-2) SINGLE-FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

(R-6) SINGLE-FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

(NS) NEIGHBORHOOD

SERVICES

(PUB) PUBLIC USE

(R-1) SINGLE-FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

(R-4) SINGLE-FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

(R-7) SINGLE-FAMILY

RESIDENTIAL

(GH) GARDEN HOME

S
C

H
E

R
T

Z
 
C

I
T

Y
 
L

I
M

I
T

PROPOSED PROJECT

TRAIL/ SIDEWALK/ BIKE LANE

PROPOSED HIKE/BIKE TRAIL

TO BE CONSTRUCTED  BY

JUNE 2017

NORMA J. PASCHAL

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

LAURA INGALLS WILDER

INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL

FOREST RIDGE

PARK

WOODLAND OAKS PARK

SAMUEL CLEMENTS

HIGH SCHOOL

SCHERTZ

CITY HALL

SCHERTZ

DOG PARK

SCHERTZ

LIBRARY

SCHERTZ

YMCA

SCHERTZ

SENIOR CENTER

PROPOSED

PEDESTRIAN TRAIL

SAVANNAH DR

PROPOSED

BIKE LANES

WOODLAND OAKS DR

PROPOSED BIKE

LANES

E LIVE OAK RD

PROPOSED SIDEWALK

(GB) GENERAL BUSINESS

(PDD) PLANNED

DEVELOMENT

EXISTING SIDEWALK

S
C

H
E

R
T

Z
 
P

K
W

Y

F
M

 
3
0
0
9

D

I

E

T

Z

 

C

R

E

E

K

S
C

H
E

R
T

Z
 
C

I
T

Y
 
L

I
M

I
T

FORD ENGINEERING, INC.

SCHERTZ PEDESTRIAN ROUTE / BIKE LANE PROJECT OVERALL

S
C

H
E

R
T

Z
 
C

I
T

Y
 
L
I
M

I
T

IH-35



Page A-1 of 7 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between City of Schertz (“Owner”) and 

 (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work 
is generally described as follows: 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as 
follows: Pedestrian Routes and Bike Lanes 

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The part of the Project that pertains to the Work has been designed by Ford Engineering Inc. 

3.02 The Owner has retained the City of Schertz Engineering Department (“Engineer”) to act as 
Owner’s representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority 
assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 
Contract Times: Days 

B. The Work is expected to be substantially completed within 120 calendar days after the date 
when the Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General 
Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 
of the General Conditions within 30 calendar days after the date of substantial completion.   

4.02 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above 
and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and 
Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor acknowledges 
and recognizes that the Owner is entitled to full and beneficial occupancy and use of the 
completed work following expiration of the Contract Time.  The Contractor further 
acknowledges and agrees that, if the Contractor fails to substantially, or cause the Substantial 
Completion of any portion of the Work within the Contract time, the Owner will sustain 



Page A-2 of 7 

actual damages as a result of such failure.  The exact amount of such damages will be difficult 
to ascertain.  Therefore, the Owner and Contractor agree that, if the Contractor shall neglect, 
fail, or refuse to achieve substantial completion of the Work by the Substantial Completion 
date, subject to proper extension granted by the Owner, then the Contractor agrees to pay 
the Owner the sum of: 

1. Six hundred dollars ($600.00) per day for each day in which such Work is not completed, 
not as penalty, but as liquidated damages, for the damages (“Liquidated Damages”) that 
would be suffered by Owner as a result of delay for each and every calendar day that 
the Contractor shall have failed to have completed the Work as required herein.  The 
Liquidated Damages shall be in lieu of any and all other damages which may be incurred 
by Owner as a result of the failure of Contractor to complete within the Contract Time. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

 

A. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices (established for 
each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price times the 
actual quantity of that item) and according to the price list attached as “Exhibit A” 

 

The extended prices for Unit Price Work set forth as of the Effective Date of the Contract are 
based on estimated quantities.  As provided in Paragraph 13.03 of the General Conditions, 
estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and 
classifications are to be made by Engineer. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General 
Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the 
General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 30th day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of Values 
established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based 
on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as 
provided elsewhere in the Contract. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal to 
the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not 
limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage); and 



Page A-3 of 7 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with 
the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to Contractor to the full amount of the contract, less such amounts set off by 
Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less such amounts as 
the Engineer shall determine for incomplete Work, retainage applicable to such work and 
unsettled claims. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the maximum rate allowed by law, not to 
exceed 1% per month. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site 
conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, 
progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing 
surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) 
reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent 
to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect 
to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such 
information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the 
Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be 
employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and programs. 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 



Page A-4 of 7 

or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all 
terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing 
and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages A-1 to A-7, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond (pages PB-1 to PB-3, inclusive). 

3. Payment bond (pages PYB-1 to PYB-3, inclusive). 

4. General Conditions consisting of 73 pages of a modified version of EJCDC C-700, having 
a title page with the general title: STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE 
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT. 

5. Supplementary Conditions (pages SC-1 to SC-16, inclusive). 

6. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

7. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of __ sheets with each 
sheet bearing the following general title: ___________. 

8. Addenda (numbers ___ to ___, inclusive). 

9. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages BF-1 to BF-7, inclusive). 

10. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

d. Field Orders. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 



Page A-5 of 7 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without 
the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, 
money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned without such 
consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and 
unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the 
Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any 
Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be 
valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall 
be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable 
provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value 
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract 
execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 
Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect 
the execution of the Contract. 



Page A-6 of 7 

10.06 Other Provisions 

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are 
based on EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract, 
published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee®, and if Owner is the party 
that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly shown all modifications 
to the standard wording of such published document to the Contractor, through a process 
such as highlighting or “track changes” (redline/strikeout), or in the Supplementary 
Conditions. 



Page A-7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on __________ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

   

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  
(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a 
joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

   

   

   

  License No.:  

   
(where applicable) 

(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of authority 
to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach evidence of 
authority to sign and resolution or other documents 
authorizing execution of this Agreement.) 

  

 



Agenda No. 8.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Emergency Medical Services
Subject: Resolution No. 20-R-134 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution by the City Council of the

City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement with Stryker
Flex Financial for the acquisition of sixteen (16) Stryker Life Pak monitor/defibrillators, associated
equipment and service plan.  (C. Kelm/J. Mabbitt)

BACKGROUND
The EMS Department responds to over 10,000 requests for service annually. On each and every one of these responses, the
piece of equipment that is utilized from the moment we make contact with the patient until that contact is complete is our
Monitor/Defibrillator.  The Fire Department also uses these monitors prior to an ambulance arrival or if there are multiple
patients on a scene.  

The majority of our current devices have been in service for over seven years.  In June 2020, we were notified by Stryker that
components used on several of our monitors are no longer available in the market (see attached discontinuance letter). 
Without these components, Stryker may not be able to repair one of our monitors that needs serviced.  We were also informed
that our monitors will no longer be able be preventively maintained once they reach eight years old.  

Along with the Fire Department (4), we have a total of sixteen (16) devices that will need to be replaced.  

Stryker has provided a quote that includes the opportunity to lease/purchase these units.  This lease agreement has a finance
rate of 0% and will last sixty months.  In addition, Stryker has placed an additional incentive on trade-in values of
LifePak monitors that is valid until mid-December.

We are also asking to pre-purchase six years of the Stryker preventive maintenance and repair service plan on all of our
monitors.  We currently have this plan in place on our current monitors, and due to their importance in patient care, we need
to continue it to insure our devices are always properly functioning and calibrated appropriately.  This plan covers on-site
maintenance and repair, an annual service call to re-calibrate and test each device and replacement batteries as needed.  

EMS and the Fire Department plan to keep two monitors that are not part of the discontinuance letter.  
 

GOAL 
To enter into a lease agreement with Stryker Flex Financial for the acquisition of sixteen (16) Stryker Life Pak
monitor/defibrillators, associated equipment and service plan.  

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The Stryker LifePak 15 has the ability to monitor blood pressure, pulse, respiratory rate, oxygen and carbon dioxide levels in
the blood, the patient’s temperature, the patient’s EKG rhythm, the 12-lead EKG and, when needed, the ability to deliver
therapeutic electricity to the patient to correct life threatening cardiac dysrhythmias.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a lease agreement with
Stryker for the purchase of sixteen LifePak monitors.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
The cost for the monitors is $523,981.12 and the service plan is $110,0160.00 for a total of $634,141.12 in purchases.

We will utilize a down payment for FY21 using funds from the CARES Act in the amount of $20,000.  

We have a trade-in value of $88,000 on our current monitors, therefore:

The Fire Department annual lease payment beginning in FY22 will be $26,719.06     



The EMS Department annual lease payment beginning in FY22 will be $78,509.17

  
                   

                   

      Cost for one monitor and accessories   $32,748.82  

      Cost for service plan for one monitor   $6,120  

                   

        Fire   EMS   Total   

      # of monitors to purchase 4   12   16   

      Total cost of monitors $130,995.28   $392,985.84   $523,981.12  

                   

      # of service plans 5   13   18  

      Total cost of service plans $30,600   $79,560   $110,160.00  

                   

      Total Expense $161,595.28   $472,545.84   $634,141.12  

                   

      # of monitors traded in 3   11   14  

      Trade in values $  18,000.00    $  70,000.00    $  88,000.00  

                   

      Total Costs$143,595.28   $402,545.84      

      Deposit$10,000.00   $10,000.00      

      Total   $133,595.28   $392,545.84      

      Annual Lease Amounts$26,719.06   $78,509.17      

                   

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council approve Resolution No. 20-R-134

Attachments
Resolution 20-R-134 
Lease Agreement 
Discontinuance Letter 
Sole Source Letter 
Quote 



RESOLUTION NO. 20-R-134

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ,
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH STRYKER FLEX FINANCIAL FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF SIXTEEN (16) STRYKER LIFE PAK 
MONITOR/DEFIBRILLATORS, ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT AND 
SERVICE PLAN AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION 
THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City of Schertz (the “City”) requires the purchase of Stryker Life Pak 
monitor/defibrillator, associated equipment and service plan; and

WHEREAS, staff has requested approval authorizing the City Manager to enter 
into a lease agreement with Stryker.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter into a lease  
agreement with Stryker for the purchase of sixteen Stryker Life Pak monitor/defibrillators set forth
on Exhibit A not to exceed $546,141.12 for the entire lease agreement.

Section 2.    The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true,
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3.  All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4.  This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws
of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5.      If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application



of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the
City Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such
invalid provision.

Section 6.   It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and
subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this
Resolution, was given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage,
and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 1st day of December 2020.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

City Secretary, Brenda Dennis



 
Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corporation 
1901 Romence Road Parkway
Portage, MI 49002
t: 1-888-308-3146 f: 877-204-1332
www.stryker.com

 

 

  
Date: November 23, 2020    RE: Reference no: 0010122551  
 
  
CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
1400 SCHERTZ PKWY 
SCHERTZ, Texas 78154-1634 
 
 
Thank you for choosing Stryker for your equipment needs. Enclosed please find the documents necessary to enter into the arrangement. Once all of the
documents are completed, properly executed and returned to us, we will issue an order for the equipment.
 
PLEASE COMPLETE ALL ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS TO EXPEDITE THE SHIPMENT OF YOUR ORDER.
 
 Short Form Lease Agreement 
 Exhibit A - Detail of Equipment
 Insurance Authorization and Verification
 State and Local Government Rider
 Addendum
 
**Conditions of Approval: Insurance Authorization and Verification,State and Local Government rider 
 
 
PLEASE PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING WITH THE COMPLETED DOCUMENTS:
 Federal tax ID number: ____________________________   AP address: _______________________________

 Purchase order number: ____________________________   Contact name: _______________________________

 Phone number: ____________________________   Email address: _______________________________
 
Please fax completed documents to (877) 204-1332. Return original documents to 1901 Romence Road Parkway Portage, MI 49002 (using
Fed-Ex Shipping ID# 612-309469)
 
Your personal documentation specialist is Michelle Warren  and can be reached at 269-389-1909  or by email michelle.warren@stryker.com for any
questions regarding these documents.
 
The proposal evidenced by these documents is valid through the last business day of  November, 2020 
 
Sincerely,
 
 
Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corporation
 
Notice: To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, U.S. Federal law requires financial institutions
to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each person (individuals or businesses) who opens an account. What this means for
you: When you open an account or add any additional service, we will ask you for your name, address, federal employer identification
number and other information that will allow us to identify you. We may also ask to see other identifying documents. For your records, the
federal employer identification number for Flex Financial, a Division of Stryker Sales Corporation is 38-2902424.

Agreement #: 0010122551  



Owner ("we" or "us") :
Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corporation
1901 Romence Road Parkway
Portage, MI 49002

  

  Customer name and address ("You" and "Your"):
  CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS  
  1400 SCHERTZ PKWY 
  SCHERTZ, Texas 78154-1634 

Equipment location:1400 SCHERTZ PKWY, SCHERTZ, Texas 78154-1634  
Supplier: Stryker Sales Corporation, 3800 E. Centre Avenue, Portage, MI
49002 
Equipment description: (see attached Exhibit A which is a part of this
Agreement.)

Payment information
# of lease
payments

Payment
frequency

Lease payment

1 Monthly $20,000.00 (First payment due 30 days after
Agreement is commenced),  (plus applicable
sales/use taxes - see "Taxes" section below)
followed by:

11 Monthly $0.00  (plus applicable sales/use taxes - see
"Taxes" section below) followed by:

5 Annual $105,228.23  (plus applicable sales/use taxes - see
"Taxes" section below)

 Terms of Agreement in months: 61  
Equipment purchase option: $1 Buyout Option 
 Equipment purchase option shall be FMV unless another option is stated above.

Security                First period                      Other                     Total payment
deposit                   payment                                                              enclosed

 $0.00                  +   $0.00                       +   $  0.00                      =        $  0.00 

1. Lease: You ("Customer") agree to lease from us ("Owner") the equipment (including software and/or software license fees ("Software"), if any, "Equipment")
listed aboveand on any attached schedule in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (this "Agreement"). This Agreement starts on the day the Equipment is
delivered to you ("Commencement Date") and continues for the number of months described above (the "Term"). The Lease Payments ("Payments") shall be
payable beginning on the Commencement Date or any later date we designate and thereafter until all fully paid. Your obligations under this Agreement
("Obligations") are absolute, unconditional, and are not subject to cancellation, defense, recoupment, reduction, setoff or counterclaim. If a Payment is
not made when due, you will pay us a late charge of 5% for each Payment or $10.00, whichever is greater. We may charge you a fee of $55.00 for any check that
is returned. You authorize us to adjust the Payments at any time if taxes included in the Payments differ from our estimate. You agree that the Payments were
calculated by us based, in part, on an interest rate equivalent as quoted on the Intercontinental Exchange website, at https://www.theice.com/marketdata/reports/
180, under the USD Rates 1100 Series, that would have a repayment term equivalent to the Term (or an interpolated rate if a like-term is not available) as
reasonably determined by us and in the event the Term of this Agreement starts more than 30 days after we send this Agreement to you, we may adjust the
Payments once to compensate us, in good faith, for any increase in such rate. You shall be deemed to have accepted the Equipment for lease hereunder upon the
date that is ten (10) days after it is shipped to you by the Supplier and, at our request, you shall confirm for us such acceptance. No acceptance of any item of
Equipment may be revoked by you.
2. Title and laws: Unless you have a $1.00 purchase option, we own the Equipment and you have the right to use the Equipment during the Term, provided you
comply withthe terms of this Agreement. If you have a $1.00 purchase option or this Agreement is deemed to be a security agreement, you grant us a security
interest in the Equipment and all proceeds therefrom, and authorize us to file financing statements on your behalf. You agree not to permit any lien, claim or
encumbrance to be placed upon the Equipment. You shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and manufacturer's specifications and instructions
concerning the operation, ownership, use and/or possession of the Equipment.
3. Equipment use,  maintenance and warranties: Any assignee (as defined below) is leasing the Equipment to you "AS-IS" AND MAKES NO
WARRANTIES,EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. You must, at
your cost, keep the Equipment in good working condition. If Payments include maintenance and/or service costs, you agree that (i) no Assignee is responsible to
provide the maintenance or service, (ii) you will make all maintenance and service related claims to the persons providing the maintenance, service or warranty,
and (iii) any maintenance, warranty or service claims will not impact your Obligations. The Equipment cannot be moved from the location above without our prior
written consent. STRYKER SALES CORPORATION  (INCLUDING  FLEX  FINANCIAL, A DIVISION OF STRYKER SALES CORPORATION,  ITS  DIVISION) 
MAKES  NO  IMPLIED  WARRANTIES  OF  MERCHANTABILITY  ORFITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE REGARDING ANY EQUIPMENT. This
Agreement will not impair any express warrantees or indemnifications or other obligations of Stryker Corporation or any of its subsidiaries to you
regarding the Equipment and we hereby assign all of our rights in any Equipment warrantees to you.
4. Assignment: You agree not to transfer, sell, sublease, assign, pledge or encumber the Equipment or any rights under this Agreement without our prior written
consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, and if you do, even with our consent, you will still be fully responsible for all your Obligations. You shall
provide us with at least 45 days' prior written notice of any change to your principal place of business, organization or incorporation. You agree that we may,
without notice to you, sell, assign, or transfer ("Transfer") this Agreement to a third party (each, an "Assignee"), and each Assignee will have our Transferred rights,
but none of our obligations, and such rights will not be subject to any claims, recoupment, defenses, or setoffs that you may have against us or any
supplier even though an Assignee may continue to bill and collect all of your Obligations in the name of "Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corporation".
5. Risk of loss, insurance and reimbursement: Effective upon delivery to you and continuing until the Equipment is returned to us in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement, you shall bear all risk of Equipment loss or damage. If any such loss or damage occurs you still must satisfy all of your Obligations. You will (i)
keep the Equipment insured against all risks of loss or damage for an amount equal to its replacement cost, (ii) list us as the insurance sole loss payee and (iii)
give us written proof of the insurance. If you do not provide such insurance, we have the right, without obligation, to obtain such insurance and add an insurance
fee (which may include a profit) to the amount due from you. You will obtain and maintain comprehensive public liability insurance naming us as an additional
insured with coverages and amounts acceptable to us. To the extent not expressly prohibited by applicable law, you will reimburse and defend us, including each
Assignee for and against any losses, injuries, damages, liabilities, expenses, claims or legal proceedings asserted against or incurred by us, including any
Assignee, relating to the Equipment and which relate to or arise out of your act or omission or the act or omission of your agents or employees or others (excluding
us) with access to the Equipment. The terms of this paragraph will continue after the termination, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement.
6. Taxes: You agree to pay when due, either directly or as reimbursement to us, all taxes (i.e., sales, use and personal property) and charges in connection with
ownership and use of the Equipment. We may charge you a processing fee for administering property tax filings. To the extent not expressly prohibited by
applicable law, you will indemnify us on an after-tax basis, on demand, against the loss or unavailability of any of our anticipated equipment ownership tax benefits
caused by your act or omission.
7. Default remedies: You are in default under this Agreement if: a) you fail to pay a Payment or any other amount when due; or b) you breach any other obligation
under this Agreement or any other agreement with us; or c) your principal owner or any guarantor of this Agreement dies; d) you or any guarantor dissolves,

 

 

Short Form Lease Agreement No. 0010122551  

Agreement #0010122551  



ceases to do business as a going concern, becomes insolvent, bankrupt, merges, or is sold; or e) You or any guarantor fails to pay any other material obligation
owed to us or any of our affiliates. Upon default, we may: a) declare the entire balance of unpaid Payments for the full Term immediately due and payable; b) sue
you for and receive the total amount due plus the Equipment's anticipated end-of-Term fair market value ("FMV") or fixed price purchase option (the "Residual")
with future Payments and Residual discounted to the date of default at the lesser of (i) a per annum interest rate equivalent to that of a U.S. Treasury constant
maturity obligation (as reported by the U.S. Treasury Department) that would have a repayment term equal to the remaining Term, all as reasonably determined by
us; or (ii) 3% per annum, but only to the extent permitted by law; c) charge you interest on all monies due at the rate of 18% per year from the date of default until
paid; and/or d) require you to immediately return the Equipment to us or we may peaceably repossess it. Upon default, you will also pay all expenses including but
not limited to reasonable attorneys fees, legal costs, cost of storage and shipping incurred by us in the enforcement and attempted enforcement of any remedies
under this Agreement. Any return or repossession will not be considered an Agreement termination or cancellation. If the Equipment is returned or repossessed
we may sell or re-rent the Equipment at terms we determine, at one or more public or private sales, with or without notice to you, and apply the net proceeds (after
deducting any related expenses) to your obligations. You remain liable for any deficiency with any excess being retained by us.
8. End of term: You will give us at least 90 days but not more than 180 days written notice (to our address above) before the initial Term (or any renewal term)
expiration of your intention to purchase or return the Equipment, whereupon you may: a) purchase all, but not less than all, of the Equipment as indicated above or
b) return all of the Equipment in good working condition at your cost how, when and where we direct. Any FMV purchase option amount will be determined by us
based on the Equipment's in place value. If you don't notify us, or if you don't a) purchase or b) return the Equipment as provided herein, this Agreement will
automatically renew at the same Payment amount for consecutive 60-day periods. If any Software license ("License") included hereunder passes title to you, such
title shall automatically, and without further action, hereby vest in us, and you hereby agree to relinquish any subsequent Software title, purchase or use right
claim. If, in connection with our Software rights, licensor's consent is required, you will assist us in obtaining such consent. If the $1.00 Buyout is selected above,
the first three sentences of this section 8 shall be void and upon expiration of the Term, you shall pay all amounts owed by you hereunder but unpaid as of such
date plus $1.00 (and any applicable taxes). Any purchase of the Equipment by you pursuant to a purchase option or $1.00 Buyout shall be "AS IS, WHERE IS"
without representation or warranty of any kind from us.
9. Miscellaneous: You acknowledge we have given you the Equipment supplier's name. We hereby notify you that you may have rights under the supplier's
contract and may contact the supplier for a description of these rights. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of Michigan.
You agree (i) to waive any and all rights and remedies granted to you under Uniform Commercial Code Sections 2A-508 through 2A-522, and (ii) that the
Equipment will only be used for business purposes and not for personal, family or household use. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and any
facsimile, photographic or other electronic transmission and/or electronic signing of this Agreement by you and when manually countersigned by us or attached to
our original signature counterpart and/or in our possession shall constitute the sole original chattel paper as defined in the UCC for all purposes and will be
admissible as legal evidence thereof.  No security interest in this Agreement can be perfected by possession of any counterpart other than the counterpart bearing
our original signature. You agree not to raise as a defense to the enforcement of this Agreement or any related documents hereto the fact that such documents
were executed by electronic means. We may inspect the Equipment during the Term. No failure to act shall be deemed a waiver of any rights hereunder. If you fail
to pay (within thirty days of invoice date) any freight, sales tax or other amounts related to the Equipment which are not financed hereunder and are billed directly
by us to you, such amounts shall be added to the Payments set forth above (plus interest or additional charges thereon) and you authorize us to adjust such
Payments accordingly. If you are required to report the components of your payment obligations hereunder to certain state and/or federal agencies or public health
coverage programs such as Medicare, Medicaid, SCHIP or others, and such amounts are not adequately disclosed in any attachment hereto, then Stryker Sales
Corporation will, upon your written request, provide you with a detailed outline of the components of your payments which may include equipment, software,
service and other related components. You acknowledge that you have not received any tax or accounting advice from us. You agree that you shall upon request
from us, promptly provide to us a copy of your most recent annual financial statements and any of your other financial information (including interim financial
statements) that we may request. You authorize us to share such information with our affiliates, subsidiaries and Assignees. This Agreement, any schedules
hereto, any attachments to this Agreement or any schedules and any express warrantees made by Stryker Sales Corporation constitute the entire
agreement between the parties hereto regarding the Equipment and its use and possession and supersede all prior agreements and discussions
regarding the Equipment and any prior course of conduct. You waive all rights to any indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages in
connection with the Equipment or this Agreement. There are no agreements, oral or written, between the parties which are contrary to the terms of this
Agreement and such other documents. YOU AGREE THAT THIS IS A NON-CANCELLABLE AGREEMENT AND WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY.
 

I CERTIFY THAT I AM AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS AGREEMENT FOR CUSTOMER

Customer signature
 

Signature:
 

Date:

Print name:
 

Title:
 

Accepted by Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales
Corporation

  Signature: Date:
 

  Print name:
 

  Title:
 

  
 

 

 

Short Form Lease Agreement No. 0010122551  

Agreement #0010122551  



Exhibit A to Short Form Lease Agreement Number 0010122551 
Description of equipment 

 
Customer name: CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS  
Delivery address: 1400 SCHERTZ PKWY, SCHERTZ, Texas 78154-1634   
 
Part I - Equipment/Service Coverage (if applicable)
Model number  Equipment description  Quantity
99577-001957  LP15,EN,SPO2CO,3L/12L,EX,NIBP,CO2,TR,VR,BT,V4  16 
41577-000288  LP15 ACCRY SHIPKIT,AHA,S  16 
21330-001176  BATTERY PACK-LI-ION  32 
11171-000049  RAINBOW DCI ADT REUSABLESENSOR, REF 2696,ROHS  16 
11171-000050  RAINBOW DCIP PED REUSABLE SENSOR, REF 2697,ROHS  16 
11577-000002  KIT - CARRY BAG, MAIN BAG  16 
11220-000028  TOP POUCH  16 
11260-000039  KIT - CARRY BAG, REAR POUCH, 3RD EDITION  16 
50994-000105  LP15 (4+ features) Trade-in  12 
TR-LP12B-LP15  TR-SYK LP 12B TO LP15  2 
 
 
 
Total equipment: $435,981.12 
 
 
      
 
 
Service coverage:
Model number  Service coverage description  Quantity  Years
78000008  LP15 On Site Prevent w batt  18  4.0 

 
Total service coverage: $110,160.00
 
Total Amount: $546,141.12
 
 Customer signature
 Signature:

 
Date:
 

 Print name:
 

 Title:
 

Accepted by Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corp.

Signature:
 

Date:
 

Print name:
 

Title:
 

 
 
 

 

Agreement #:  0010122551  



 

Insurance Authorization and Verification
 
 

 

Date: November 23, 2020 Short Form Lease Agreement Number 0010122551 
  
To: CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS ("Customer")

1400 SCHERTZ PKWY  
SCHERTZ , Texas  78154-1634   

From: Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corporation ("Creditor")
1901 Romence Road Parkway
Portage, MI 49002
 

TO THE CUSTOMER: In connection with one or more financing arrangements, Creditor may require proof in the form of this document, executed by both
Customer* and Customer's agent, that Customer's insurable interest in the financed property (the "Property") meets the requirements as follows, with coverage
including, but not limited to, fire, extended coverage, vandalism, and theft:
 
 Creditor, and its successors and assigns shall be covered as both ADDITIONAL INSURED and LENDER'S LOSS PAYEE with regard to all equipment

financed or acquired for use by policy holder through or from Creditor.

 Customer must carry GENERAL LIABILITY (and/or, for vehicles, Automobile Liability) in the amount of no less than $1,000,000.00 (one million
dollars).

 Customer must carry PROPERTY Insurance (or, for vehicles, Physical Damage Insurance) in an amount no less than the 'Insurable
Value' $435,981.12 with deductibles no more than $10,000.00.

*PLEASE PROVIDE THE INSURANCE AGENTS INFORMATION REQUESTED BELOW & SIGN WHERE INDICATED

 By signing, Customer authorizes the Agent named below: 1) to complete and return this form as indicated; and 2) to endorse the policy and subsequent
renewals to reflect the required coverage as outlined above.

 

  
Insurance agency:

 
 

 
Agent name:

 
 

 
Address:

 

 
Phone/fax:

 

 
Email address:

 

 CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

  Signature:
 

Date:
 

  Print name:
  

  Title:
  
 

 

 

*Customer: Creditor will fax the executed form to your insurance agency for endorsement. In Lieu of agent endorsement, Customer's agency may submit
insurance certificates demonstrating compliance with all requirements. If fully executed form (or Customer-executed form plus certificates) is not provided within
15 days, we have the right but not the obligation to obtain such insurance at your expense. Should you have any questions please contact Michelle  Warren  at  
269-389-1909.
 

TO THE AGENT: In lieu of providing a certificate, please execute this form in the space below and promptly fax it to Creditor at 877-204-1332 . This
fully endorsed form shall serve as proof that Customer's insurance meets the above requirements.
 

                     Agent hereby verifies that the above requirements have been met in regard to the Property listed below.

Agent signature
 

  Signature: Date:
 

  Print name:
 

  Title:
 

  Carrier name:
 

  Carrier policy number :
 

  Policy expiration date:
 
 

Insurable value: $435,981.12  

ATTACHED: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION FOR Short Form Lease Agreement Number 0010122551  

See Exhibit A to Short Form Lease Agreement Number 0010122551  

TOGETHER WITH ALL REPLACEMENTS, PARTS, REPAIRS, ADDITIONS, ACCESSIONS AND ACCESSORIES INCORPORATED THEREIN OR AFFIXED
OR ATTACHED THERETO AND ANY AND ALL PROCEEDS OF THE FOREGOING, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, INSURANCE RECOVERIES.

Agreement #:  0010122551  



State and Local Government Customer Rider 
 
 
This State and Local Government Customer Rider (the "Rider") is an addition to and hereby made a part of  Short Form Lease Agreement Number
0010122551  (the "Agreement") between Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corporation ("Owner") and CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS  ("Customer") to be
executed simultaneously herewith and to which this Rider is attached. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Rider shall have the respective
meanings provided in the Agreement. Owner and Customer agree as follows:    
 
1.  Customer represents and warrants to Owner that as of the date of, and throughout the Term of, the Agreement: (a) Customer is a political subdivision of the
state or commonwealth in which it is located and is organized and existing under the constitution and laws of such state or commonwealth; (b) Customer has
complied, and will comply, fully with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, and regulations governing open meetings, public bidding and appropriations required in
connection with the Agreement, the performance of its obligations under the Agreement and the acquisition and use of the Equipment; (c) The person(s) signing
the Agreement and any other documents required to be delivered in connection with the Agreement (collectively, the "Documents") have the authority to do so, are
acting with the full authorization of Customer's governing body, and hold the offices indicated below their signatures, each of which are genuine; (d) The
Documents are and will remain valid, legal and binding agreements, and are and will remain enforceable against Customer in accordance with their terms; and (e)
The Equipment is essential to the immediate performance of a governmental or proprietary function by Customer within the scope of its authority and will be used
during the Term of the Agreement only by Customer and only to perform such function. Customer further represents and warrants to Owner that, as of the date
each item of Equipment becomes subject to the Agreement and any applicable schedule, it has funds available to pay all Agreement payments payable thereunder
until the end of Customer's then current fiscal year, and, in this regard and upon Owner's request, Customer shall deliver in a form acceptable to Owner a
resolution enacted by Customer's governing body, authorizing the appropriation of funds for the payment of Customer's obligations under the Agreement during
Customer's then current fiscal year.
 
2.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Customer agrees to take all necessary and timely action during the Agreement Term to obtain and maintain funds
appropriations sufficient to satisfy its payment obligations under the Agreement (the "Obligations"), including, without limitation, providing for the Obligations in
each budget submitted to obtain applicable appropriations, causing approval of such budget, and exhausting all available reviews and appeals if an appropriation
sufficient to satisfy the Obligations is not made.
 
3.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary provided in the Agreement, if Customer does not appropriate funds sufficient to make all payments due during any
fiscal year under the Agreement and Customer does not otherwise have funds available to lawfully pay the Agreement payments (a "Non-Appropriation Event"),
and provided Customer is not in default of any of Customer's obligations under such Agreement as of the effective date of such termination, Customer may
terminate such Agreement effective as of the end of Customer's last funded fiscal year ("Termination Date") without liability for future monthly charges or the early
termination charge under such Agreement, if any, by giving at least 60 days' prior written notice of termination ("Termination Notice") to Owner.
 
4.  If Customer terminates the Agreement prior to the expiration of the end of the Agreement's initial (primary) term, or any extension or renewal thereof, as
permitted under Section 3 above, Customer shall (i) on or before the Termination Date, at its expense, pack and insure the related Equipment and send it freight
prepaid to a location designated by Owner in the contiguous 48 states of the United States and all Equipment upon its return to Owner shall be in the same
condition and appearance as when delivered to Customer, excepting only reasonable wear and tear from proper use and all such Equipment shall be eligible for
manufacturer's maintenance, (ii) provide in the Termination Notice a certification of a responsible official that a Non-Appropriation Event has occurred, (iii) deliver to
Owner, upon request by Owner, an opinion of Customer's counsel (addressed to Owner) verifying that the Non-Appropriation Event as set forth in the Termination
Notice has occurred, and (iv) pay Owner all sums payable to Owner under the Agreement up to and including the Termination Date.
 
5.  Any provisions in this Rider that are in conflict with any applicable statute, law or rule shall be deemed omitted, modified or altered to the extent required to
conform thereto, but the remaining provisions hereof shall remain enforceable as written.
 
 
 
 Customer signature
 Signature:

 
Date:
 

 Print name:
 

 Title:
 

Accepted by Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corp.

Signature:
 

Date:
 

Print name:
 

Title:
 

 

 

Agreement #:  0010122551     



ADDENDUM TO SHORT FORM LEASE AGREEMENT NO. 0010122551 BETWEEN FLEX FINANCIAL, A
DIVISION OF STRYKER SALES CORPORATION AND CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

 
 
     This Addendum is hereby made a part of the agreement described above (the "Agreement").  In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Addendum
and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of this Addendum shall control.
 
The parties hereby agree as follows:
 
1. The third sentence of Section 9 of the Agreement is hereby amended in its entirety to read as follows: 
 
"This Agreement shall be governed and construed accordance with the laws of Texas."
 
 
 Customer signature
 Signature:

 
Date:
 

 Print name:
 

 Title:
 

Accepted by Flex Financial, a division of Stryker Sales Corp.

Signature:
 

Date:
 

Print name:
 

Title:
 

 
 

 



 

 
 

Emergency Care 
11811 Willows Road NE, Redmond, WA 98052 USA  |  P +1 425 867 4000  |  Toll-free +1 800 442 1142  |  stryker.com 

June 2020 

LIFEPAK® 15 monitor/defibrillator service   

Stryker has been notified by our global parts providers that some components used on certain LIFEPAK 15 
monitor/defibrillator models (Part Numbers beginning with V15-2) are no longer available in the market, which 
limits the service support available for this product. Service on the LIFEPAK 15 with Part Numbers beginning with 
v15-5 or v15-7 are unaffected.  

Stryker will continue to offer service support for this subset of the LIFEPAK 15 as follows: 

• All service parts with available inventory can be purchased by our end users 

• Transactional service (time and material) is available for non-contract customers 

o If a component has failed on your device, your local Sales Representative should be contacted for 
support. 

• Contractual service 

o Stryker will continue to offer contractual service on a yearly basis only. 

o Preventive maintenance will continue to be done on devices less than eight (8) years old. After this 
point, we will cease to conduct preventative maintenance and shift to device inspections. 

o If a component fails on your device, please contact your local Sales Representative for support. A pro-
rated credit for any pre-paid service will be provided should a unit become non-serviceable due to 
part availability. 

It is important to note that the LIFEPAK 15 has an expected life of eight (8) years from the date of manufacture. If 
you are uncertain of the manufacture date of your products, please contact your local Sales Representative for a full 
fleet assessment.  

Stryker does not contract nor provide service parts to any third-party service providers, but instead has a 
dedicated ProCare Service team who is the only approved service provider for our products.  

As such, we cannot guarantee the safety and efficacy of any device that is repaired by a third-party service agency. 

We thank you for your business and continued partnership. We are committed to providing high-quality, clinically 
supported products so that you can be confident in the care you are providing to your communities. Please contact 
your local Stryker sales representative if you have additional questions or to discuss trade-up and flexible 
financing options for our current LIFEPAK 15 device.  

 

 

 
 

Copyright © 2020 Stryker. GDR 3344126_A 



 

 

 

Emergency Care 

11811 Willows Road NE, Redmond, WA 98052 USA  |  P +1 425 867 4000  |  Toll-free +1 800 442 1142  |  stryker.com 

To whom it may concern: 

 

Stryker is the sole-source provider in the Hospital (hospitals and hospital-owned facilities), Emergency Response Services and Emergency 

Response Training (paramedics, professional and volunteer fire) markets in the U.S. and Canada for the following products:  

• New Emergency Relief Patient Cover 

• New LIFEPAK® 15 monitor/defibrillators 

• New LIFEPAK 20e defibrillator/monitors 

• New LIFEPAK 1000 automated external defibrillators 

• New LUCAS® chest compression system 

• TrueCPR® coaching devices  

• CODE-STAT™ data review software and service 

• Power-PRO XT ambulance cot 

• Performance-PRO XT ambulance cot 

• Power-LOAD cot fastener 

• Stair-PRO stair chair 

• Performance-LOAD cot fastener 

• LIFEPAK CR2 automated external defibrillator 

• LIFEPAK CR Plus automated external defibrillator 

•   
Stryker is the sole-source provider in all markets for the following products and services:  

• RELITM (Refurbished Equipment from the Lifesaving Innovators) devices 

• LIFENET® system and related software 

• Factory-authorized inspection and repair services which include repair parts, upgrades, inspections and repairs 

• HealthEMS® Software 

• HomeSolutions.net® Software 

• ACLS (non-clinical) LIFEPAK defibrillator/monitors 

• Heart Safe SolutionSM Government Campus Solution 

• MultiTech 4G and Titan III gateways 

Stryker is also the sole-source distributor of the following products for EMS customers in the U.S. and Canadian markets:   

• McGRATH™ MAC EMS video laryngoscope 
 

Stryker does not authorize any third parties to sell these products or services in the markets listed above. We will not fulfill orders placed by 

non-authorized businesses seeking to resell our products or services. If you have questions, please feel free to contact your local Stryker 

customer service representative at 800.442.1142.    

Sincerely,  

 

Matt Van Der Wende, Senior Director, Americas Sales  

Copyright © 2020 Stryker  

 
Stryker or its affiliated entities own, use, or have applied for the following trademarks or services marks: LIFEPAK, LUCAS, TrueCPR, CODE-STAT, RELI, LIFENET, HealthEMS, 

HomeSolutions.net, Heart Safe Solution, Stryker. All other trademarks are trademarks of their respective owners or holders. The absence of a product, feature, or service name, or 

logo from this list does not constitute a waiver of Stryker’s trademark or other intellectual property rights concerning that  name or logo. 



Quote Summary

Delivery Address
 

End User - Shipping - Billing
 

Bill To Account
 

Name:
 

SCHERTZ EMS
 

Name:
 

SCHERTZ EMS
 

Name:
 

SCHERTZ EMS
 

Account #:
 

1120530
 

Account #:
 

1120530
 

Account #:
 

1120530
 

Address:
 

1400 SCHERTZ PKWY BLDG 7
 

Address:
 

1400 SCHERTZ PKWY BLDG 7
 

Address:
 

1400 SCHERTZ PKWY BLDG 7
 

 

 SCHERTZ
 

 

SCHERTZ
 

 

SCHERTZ
 

 

 Texas 78154-1673 
 

 

Texas 78154-1673 
 

 

Texas 78154-1673
 

Equipment Products:
#
 

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Sell Price
 

Total
 

1.0 
 

99577-001957
 

LIFEPAK 15 V4 Monitor/Defib - Manual & AED, Trending,
Noninvasive Pacing, SpO2, SpCO, NIBP, 12-Lead ECG,
EtCO2, BT. Incl at N/C: 2 pr QC Electrodes
(11996-000091) & 1 Test Load (21330-001365) per
device, 1 Svc Manual CD (26500-003612) per order

 

16
 

$30,491.81
 

$487,868.96 
 

2.0 
 

41577-000288
 

Ship Kit -QUIK-COMBO Therapy Cable; 2 rolls100mm
Paper; RC-4, Patient Cable, 4ft.; NIBP Hose, Coiled;
NIBP Cuff, Reusable, adult; 12-Lead ECG Cable, 4-Wire
Limb Leads, 5ft; 12-Lead ECG Cable, 6-Wire Precordial
attachment

 

16
 

$0.00
 

$0.00 
 

3.0 
 

21330-001176
 

LP 15 Lithium-ion Battery 5.7 amp hrs
 

32
 

$395.25
 

$12,648.00 
 

4.0 
 

11171-000049
 

Masimo™Rainbow™ DCI Adult Reusable Sp02, SpC0,
SpMet Sensor, 3 FT. For use with RC Patient Cable.

 

16
 

$512.06
 

$8,192.96 
 

5.0 
 

11171-000050
 

Masimo™Rainbow™ DCIP Pediatric Reusable Sp02,
SpC0, SpMet Sensor, 3 FT. For use with RC Patient
Cable.

 

16
 

$564.07
 

$9,025.12 
 

6.0 
 

11577-000002
 

LIFEPAK 15 Basic carry case w/right & left pouches;
shoulder strap (11577-000001) included at no additional
charge when case ordered with a LIFEPAK 15 device

 

16
 

$269.63
 

$4,314.08 
 

7.0 
 

11220-000028
 

LIFEPAK 15 Carry case top pouch
 

16
 

$49.41
 

$790.56 
 

8.0 
 

11260-000039
 

LIFEPAK 15 Carry case back pouch
 

16
 

$71.34
 

$1,141.44 
 

10.0 
 

TR-LP12B-LP15
 

TRADE-IN-STRYKER LIFEPAK 12B TOWARDS PURCHASE
OF LIFEPAK 15

 

2
 

-$5,000.00
 

-$10,000.00 
 

 

Equipment List Price:
 

$622,768.00
 

 

Equipment Total:
 

$513,981.12
 

Trade In Credit:

 

  

2021 LP15s
 

  

Quote Number:
 

10257027
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Medical
 
P.O. Box 93308
 

Version:
 

1
 

 

Chicago, IL  60673-3308
 

Prepared For:
 

SCHERTZ EMS
 

Rep:
 

Chad Lewis
 

 

Attn:  
 

Email:
 

chad.lewis@stryker.com
 

 

 
 

Phone Number:
  

 

 
 

  

    

Quote Date:
 

11/20/2020
 

  

Expiration Date:
 

12/10/2020
 

  

1 
Stryker Medical - Accounts Receivable - accountsreceivable@stryker.com - PO BOX 93308 - Chicago, IL 60673-3308

http://mailto:accountsreceivable@stryker.com


Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Credit Ea.
 

Total Credit
 

50994-000105
 

Trade in of LIFEPAK 15 4+ features towards the purchase
of a Stryker device

 

12
 

-$6,500.00
 

-$78,000.00
 

ProCare Products:
#

 

Product
 

Description
 

Qty
 

Sell Price
 

Total
 

 11.1 
 

78000008
 

On Site Prevent for LIFEPAK 15 V4 Monitor/Defib -
Manual & AED, Trending, Noninvasive Pacing, SpO2,
SpCO, NIBP, 12-Lead ECG, EtCO2, BT. Incl at N/C: 2 pr
QC Electrodes (11996-000091) & 1 Test Load
(21330-001365) per device, 1 Svc Manual CD
(26500-003612) per order

 

18
 

$6,120.00
 

$110,160.00
 

 

ProCare List Price:
 

$129,600.00 
 

 

ProCare Total:
 

$110,160.00 
 

Price Totals:
 

  

 

Grand Total:
 

$546,141.12
 

Comments/Terms/Signatures

 

 

Prices: In effect for 60 days.
 

Terms: Net 30 Days
 

 
Ask your Stryker Sales Rep about our flexible financing options.
 

 

    ________________________________________
         AUTHORIZED CUSTOMER SIGNATURE    

 
 

 

  

2021 LP15s
 

  

Quote Number:
 

10257027
 

Remit to:
 

Stryker Medical
 
P.O. Box 93308
 

Version:
 

1
 

 

Chicago, IL  60673-3308
 

Prepared For:
 

SCHERTZ EMS
 

Rep:
 

Chad Lewis
 

 

Attn:  
 

Email:
 

chad.lewis@stryker.com
 

 

 
 

Phone Number:
  

 

 
 

  

    

Quote Date:
 

11/20/2020
 

  

Expiration Date:
 

12/10/2020
 

  

2 
Stryker Medical - Accounts Receivable - accountsreceivable@stryker.com - PO BOX 93308 - Chicago, IL 60673-3308

http://mailto:accountsreceivable@stryker.com


 
Deal Consummation: This is a quote and not a commitment. This quote is subject to final credit, 
pricing, and documentation approval. Legal documentation must be signed before 
your equipment can be delivered. Documentation will be provided upon completion of our review 
process and your selection of a payment schedule. 
Confidentiality Notice: Recipient will not disclose to any third party the terms of this quote or any 
other information, including any pricing or discounts, offered to be provided by Stryker 
to Recipient in connection with this quote, without Stryker’s prior written approval, except as may 
be requested by law or by lawful order of any applicable government agency. 
Terms: Net 30 days. FOB origin. A copy of Stryker Medical’s standard terms and conditions can be 
obtained by calling Stryker Medical’s Customer Service at 1-800-Stryker. 
In the event of any conflict between Stryker Medical’s Standard Terms and Conditions and any 
other terms and conditions, as may be included in any purchase order or purchase 
contract, Stryker’s terms and conditions shall govern. 
Cancellation and Return Policy: In the event of damaged or defective shipments, please notify 
Stryker within 30 days and we will remedy the situation. Cancellation of orders must be received 
30 days prior to the agreed upon delivery date. If the order is cancelled within the 30 day window, a 
fee of 25% of the total purchase order price and return shipping charges 
will apply. 
 

3



Agenda No. 9.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Finance
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-T-38 - Consideration and/or action approving an Ordinance by the

City Council of the City of Schertz, Texas, authorizing an adjustment to the fiscal
year 2020-2021 budget, repealing all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in
conflict with this Ordinance; and providing an effective date. First Reading (M.
Browne/B. James/J. Walters)  

BACKGROUND
This budget amendment ordinance is meant to move unused budgeted amounts from FY 2019-20 to FY
2020-21. This adjustment is for departments that had unused budgeted amounts due to delays in
manufacturing, back ordered/out of stock items, or project schedules that run through multiple fiscal
years. The identified items and amounts to be rolled forward amount to $895,860. A list of items are
outlined below:

1. The Engineering department has $35,000 left on its Municipal Facility and Stormwater Control
Inventory and City Operations Assessment Study.
2. The Parks department has $146,714 from the previous year for the Senior Center Parking Lot and
Ashley Park Concrete Trial projects and to use unused special events budget for additional holiday
lighting.
3. The Human Resources department has $41,962 remaining from their employee wellness program
funded by BlueCross BlueShield and will be used on additional wellness programs in FY 2020-21.
4. The Facility Maintenance department has $224,000 remaining from the Police, Fire, EMS bathroom
and shower repairs project.
5. The Fleet Maintenance department has $4,503 remaining to complete the outfitting of a service truck
purchased in FY 2019-20.
6. The Water & Sewer budget has $83,287 remaining to purchase a new truck budgeted in FY 2019-20
that was delayed and complete the Water System Risk and Resilience Assessment and Emergency
Response Plan.
7. The Drainage Fund budget has $35,120 remaining to purchase a new truck budgeted in FY 2019-20
that was delayed.
8. The Streets budget has $81,515 remaining to purchase a new truck budgeted in FY 2019-20 and to
finish the Westchester Sidewalk Phase II project.
9. The EMS budget has $261,612 remaining to purchase a new ambulance that was budgeted in FY
2019-20.
10. The Police budget has $13,047 remaining to finish purchasing the remaining vehicle equipment and
pistols that were budgeted in FY 2019-20.
11. The Fire department has $18,062 remaining to purchase uniforms/boots and a fire hose and
complete a deck for Station #2 that was from FY 2019-20.

Staff is also requesting transferring the budget for mowing contract services from Parks to Drainage as
part of an internal reorganization of duties and responsibilities. This transfer will have no fiscal impact
and all budgets were approved in FY 2020-21.



GOAL 
To move forward unused budget amounts on approved programs from FY 2019-20 to prevent expenses
from the previous fiscal year from inhibiting the operating budgets for FY 2020-21.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
N/A

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-T-38.

FISCAL IMPACT 
This adjustment will use budgeted amounts from FY 2019-20. Those unused funds increased fund
balance at the end of the fiscal year. This adjustment will use $895,860 of fund balance that will be
reported on the annual financial report.

The transfer of the mowing contract budget from Parks to Drainage will have no fiscal impact.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-T-38.

Attachments
Ordinance 20-T-38 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-T-38 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, 

TEXAS AUTHORIZING AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 

BUDGET, REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 

CONFLICT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 20-T-31, the City of Schertz (the “City”) adopted the 

budget for the City for the fiscal year 2020-2021 (the “Budget), which provides funding for the 

City’s operations throughout the 2020-2021 fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the City needs to increase the budget and re-encumber $944,822 in 

previously approved expenditures; and 

WHEREAS, the City needs to transfer $17,229 from Parks to Drainage due to the change 

in department overseeing the mowing contracts; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the City Council of the City adjust the Budget 

and approve the ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City has determined that it is in the best interest of 

the City to adjust the Budget and approve the budget for expenses approved in FY 2019-2020 

and to transfer the budget related to mowing contracts from Parks to Drainage, as more fully set 

forth in this Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  The City shall increase Engineering’s budget by $35,000 for the remaining 

amount of the Municipal Facility and Stormwater Control Inventory and City Operations 

Assessment Study. 

Section 2.  The City shall increase Parks’ budget by $146,714 to complete the Senior 

Center Parking Lot and Ashley Park Concrete Trail projects and to use remaining special events 

budget for additional holiday lighting. 

Section 3.  The City shall increase Human Resources budget by $41,962 to use the 

remaining funds from the BlueCross BlueShield $50,000 wellness fund the city receives for 

related activities such as fun runs, water bottle stations, and advanced health screenings. 

Section 4.   The City shall increase Facility Maintenance budget by $224,000 to complete 

the budgeted Police, Fire, and EMS restroom and shower repairs. 

Section 5.  The City shall increase Fleets’ budget by $4,503 to complete the outfitting of 

a service truck purchased in FY 2019-20. 



50558021.1  - 2 - 

Section 6.  The City shall increase Water & Sewer’s budget by $83,287 to purchase a 

truck and complete a Water System Risk and Resilience Assessment and Emergency Response 

Plan budgeted from FY 2019-20. 

Section 7.  The City shall increase the Drainage Fund budget by $35,120 to purchase a 

truck budgeted from FY 2019-20. 

Section 8.  The City shall increase Streets’ budget by $81,515 to purchase a truck and 

complete the Westchester Sidewalk Phase II project budgeted for FY 2019-20. 

Section 9.  The City shall increase EMS’ budget by $261,612 to purchase an ambulance 

budgeted from FY 2019-20. 

Section 10.  The City shall increase Police’s budget by $13,047 to purchase additional 

vehicle equipment and pistols budgeted from FY 2019-20. 

Section 11.  The City shall increase Fire’s budget by $18,062 to purchase uniforms, 

boots, a fire hose, and complete a deck for Station #2 budgeted from FY 2019-20. 

Section 12.  The City shall transfer $17,229 from Parks’ to the Drainage Fund. 

Section 13.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 

and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a 

part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 

Section 14.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or 

inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters 

resolved herein. 

Section 15.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 

of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 16.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 

such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 

hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

Section 17.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was 

given, all as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

Section 18.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and 

any publication required by law. 

 



50558021.1  - 3 - 

 

PASSED ON FIRST READING, the 1st day of December, 2020. 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED ON SECOND READING, the 8th day of 

December, 2020.   

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

 

 

  

Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

City Secretary 

(CITY SEAL) 



Agenda No. 10.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Human Resources
Subject: Resolution 20-R-141 - Consideration and/or action approving a Resolution adding

Christmas Eve to the City's Holiday Schedule and authorizing Education Pay for
Eligible Full-Time City Employees. (C. Kelm/J. Kurz)

BACKGROUND
Addition of Christmas Eve to the City's Official Holiday Schedule
The City's Holiday Policy was last approved by Council on August 27, 2019, and lists the following
days as Official City Holidays:
New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents’ Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day,
*Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans’ Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. *Fire employees
(operations) work on Labor Day and recognize 9/11 as the holiday.

City staff is requesting to add Christmas Eve to the official holiday schedule effective December 24,
2020. This day is normally a 'dead day' given the number of employees who take vacation; the lack of
customers or resident interactions; and because many other businesses and entities are closed in our area.

Education Pay for City Employees
The City of Schertz encourages and endorses professional development and supports formal education
through a Tuition Reimbursement program. Incentive pay programs, such as Education Pay, can
positively impact teamwork, lead to increased engagement, reduce turnover, and improve employee
morale. Public Safety employees (PD/Fire/EMS) currently receive compensation for 2 and 4-year
degrees. Staff is requesting to extend this benefit to all eligible full-time City employees. In order to
receive compensation, the education level must be above the minimum requirement for the employee’s
position as listed in the job description. Employees will only be paid for the highest level of education
achieved. Education pay shall be forfeited if an employee moves into a position where education for
which they are currently receiving compensation is a minimum requirement of the position as listed in
the job description. Additionally, staff is requesting to add graduate degrees to the approved Education
Pay list.

Education Pay Schedule
Associate's Degree: $25.00 per pay period
Bachelor's Degree: $30.00 per pay period
Master's Degree: $45.00 per pay period

GOAL 
Approval of Resolution 20-R-141 - Adding Christmas Eve to the City's Official Holiday Schedule and
Authorizing Education Pay for All Eligible Full-time City Employees

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
Incentive pay programs, such as Education Pay, can positively impact teamwork, lead to increased



Incentive pay programs, such as Education Pay, can positively impact teamwork, lead to increased
engagement, reduce turnover, and improve employee morale. Reduced turnover results in lower staff
employment costs. Additionally, incentive pay programs can be highly effective recruitment and
retention tools, thereby allowing the City to attract highly qualified talent.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approval of Resolution 20-R-141 - Adding Christmas Eve to the City's Official Holiday Schedule and
Authorizing Education Pay for All Eligible Full-time City Employees

FISCAL IMPACT 
Addition of Christmas Eve to the City's Official Holiday Schedule
The cost to add Christmas Eve is approximately $32,000 (weighted cost includes taxes and retirement).
Costs were estimated using 2019 payroll data. For all employees who would normally be working on
the day of the week in which the holiday fell, there is no additional cost. The additional cost comes from
paying shift workers who actually work the holiday. 

Education Pay for City Employees
The annual cost to extend Education Pay to all eligible full-time employees is approximately $31,400
(weighted cost includes taxes and retirement). Since this will be a mid-year adjustment (effective
1/1/2021), the 9 month cost is approximately $23,500 (weighted). These costs were estimated using
current employee educational information. Benefit contingent upon Council approval each year.

These costs can be paid from contingency in FY 20-21 budget.

RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of Resolution 20-R-141 - Adding Christmas Eve to the City's Official Holiday Schedule and
Authorizing Education Pay for All Eligible Full-time City Employees

Attachments
Resolution 20-R-141 



RESOLUTION NO.  20-R-141

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, 
TEXAS ADDING CHRISTMAS EVE TO THE CITY�S OFFICIAL 
HOLIDAY SCHEDULE AND AUTHORIZING EDUCATION PAY FOR 
ELIGIBLE FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES AND OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the City of Schertz (the “City”) seeks to amend its official holiday schedule 
by adding Christmas Eve as an approved holiday; and

WHEREAS, the City of Schertz encourages and endorses professional development and 
supports formal education, and seeks to offer Education Pay to all eligible full-time employees, 
and

WHEREAS, the cost of these programs can be paid for with contingency in the FY 20-21 
budget and added to the permanent base budget in FY 21-22.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
THAT:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves Resolution 20-R-141 adding Christmas 
Eve to the City of Schertz official holiday schedule and authorizing Education Pay for all eligible 
full-time employees.

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 
and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 
part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.

Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 
any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 
or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended.



Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, 
and it is so resolved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 1st day of December, 2020.

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS

Mayor, Ralph Gutierrez

ATTEST:

City Secretary, Brenda Dennis

(CITY SEAL)



Agenda No. 11.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Planning & Community Development
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-S-41 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon

a request to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from Neighborhood Services
District (NS) to Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU), located at 603 Main
Street, City of Schertz, Guadalupe County, Texas. First Reading (B. James/L.
Wood/N. Koplyay).

BACKGROUND
The applicant is proposing to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from Neighborhood Services
District (NS) to Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU). The property is located at 603 Main Street
and is currently developed with one residential structure and an accessory detached garage.

Twenty-four (24) public hearing notices were mailed to surrounding property owners within two
hundred (200) feet of the subject property on November 6, 2020, and a public hearing notice was
published in the “San Antonio Express” on November 11, 2020. At the time of this report staff has
received four neutral responses to the public hearing notices. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on November 18, 2020 and made a recommendation to City
Council to approve the proposed zone change by a 7-0 vote. 
 

GOAL 
The project goal is to rezone the subject property from Neighborhood Services District (NS) to Main
Street Mixed Use District (MSMU) in order to re-purpose the existing house on-site into a counseling
office.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City’s desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City’s vision of future growth.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Sector Plan amendment to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan designates the subject property as
part of Historic Downtown Schertz. The objective for Historic Downtown Schertz is to leverage
Schertz’s history and heritage to create a unique destination with local independent businesses, while
encouraging the use of existing buildings. The Main Street Mixed-Use District (MSMU) was created to
help achieve these objectives. The MSMU zoning district is intended to provide a base zoning district to
the area along Main Street. In light of the history of the area and variety of land uses that exist, this
zoning district allows for both single-family residential uses and low intensity commercial uses.
Reduced setbacks and parking requirements are also provided as part of this district due to physical
constraints. The proposed zone change to MSMU at 603 Main Street is in conformance with the
Comprehensive Plan, because MSMU will allow the subject property to accomplish the goals
established for Historic Downtown Schertz; the MSMU zoning district will allow the applicant to take



advantage of the existing improvement on-site by repurposing the existing house to develop a
counseling office.

The proposed zone change should also have a minimal impact on infrastructure and public facilities.The
subject property is currently surrounded by single-family dwellings and right-of-way, with commercial
businesses in the vicinity along Main Street, so the proposed zone change should also have a minimal
impact on the existing and future adjacent land uses. 

Based on the new zoning district's compatibility with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the land
uses of the adjacent properties, the MSMU zoning district is the most appropriate zoning district for the
subject property. Staff recommends approval of the zone change application as submitted.

FISCAL IMPACT 
None

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed zone change to Main Street Mixed Use District as
submitted. 

Attachments
Ordinance 20-S-41 
Ordinance 20-S-41 Exhibit A 
Aerial Map 
Public Hearing Notice Map 
Public Hearing Notice Responses 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-S-41

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.35 
ACRES OF LAND FROM NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES DISTRICT (NS) TO MAIN 
STREET MIXED USE DISTRICT (MSMU), LOCATED AT 603 MAIN STREET, CITY 
OF SCHERTZ, GUADALUPE COUNTY, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, an application to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land located at 603 Main Street,
and more specifically described in the Exhibit A attached herein (herein, the “Property”) has been 
filed with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.5.4.D. provides for certain criteria
to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations to City 
Council and by City Council in considering final action on a requested zone change (the 
“Criteria”); and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 
hearing and, after considering the Criteria, made a recommendation to City Council to approve the 
requested rezoning; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 
considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
determined that the requested zoning be approved as provided for herein.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS:
THAT:

Section 1.  The Property as shown and more particularly described in the attached Exhibit 
A, is hereby zoned Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU).

Section 2.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of Schertz, described and referred to in 
Article 2 of the Unified Development Code, shall be revised to reflect the above amendment.

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the Council.

Section 4.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America.



Section 6.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 7.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code.

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 
publication required by law.

Section 9.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed.

Approved on first reading the 1st day of December, 2020.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 8th day of December, 2020.

____________________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary
(SEAL OF THE CITY) 



GB

R-2

MSMU

GB

MSMU

GB

R-2
EX C
HAN
GE A
VE

RAN DOLP H AVE

MAIN
 ST

MAIN ST

FM 78

EXCHANGE AVE

RANDOLPH AVE

CURTISS AVE PFEIL ST

4

GB

R-2

NS

GB

GB

MSMU

EX C
HAN
GE A
VE

RAN DOLP H AVE

MAIN
 ST

CURREN T

0 50 100 150 200 25025
Fe e t

P ropose d  Z oning Change

P ROP OSED

ABS: 221 SUR: G MALPAZ  0.3400 AC.
603 Main Street

Classification
(P RE) P re -De ve lopm e nt
(P DD) P lanne d  De ve lopm e nt
(P UB) P ublic  Use
(R-A) Single -fam ily Re sid e ntial/Agric ultural
(R-1) Single -Fam ily Re sid e ntial
(R-2) Single -Fam ily Re sid e ntial
(R-3) Two-Fam ily Re sid e ntial
(R-4) Apartm e nt/Multi-Fam ily Re sid e ntial
(R-6) Single -fam ily Re sid e ntial
(R-7) Single -fam ily Re sid e ntial
(GH) Gard e n Hom e /Single -Fam ily Re sid e ntial (Z e ro Lot Line )

(TH) Townhom e
(MHS) Manufacture d  Hom e  Subd ivision
(MHP ) Manufacture d  Hom e  P arks
(GB) Ge ne ral Busine ss
(GB-2) Ge ne ral Busine ss II
(N S) N e ighborhood  Se rvic e s
(OP ) Offic e  and  P rofe ssional
(MSMU) Main Stre e t Mixe d  Use
(M-1) Manufacturing (Light)
(M-2) Manufacturing (He avy)
(DVL) De ve lopm e nt Agre e m e nt (De laye d Anne xation)

Last Upd ate :  N ove m be r 4, 2020

“The  City of Sc he rtz provid e s this Ge ographic  Inform ation Syste m  prod uct "as is" without any e xpre ss or im plie d
warranty of any kind  inc lud ing but not lim ite d  to the im plie d  warrantie s of m e rc hantability and  fitne ss for a partic ular purpose .
In no eve nt shall The City of Sc he rtz be  liable  for any spe c ial, ind ire c t or c onse que ntial d am age s or any dam ages whatsoe ve r arising out of or in c onne c tion
with the  use  of or pe rform anc e  of the se  m ate rials. Inform ation publishe d  in this prod uc t c ould  inc lud e  te c hnic al inac c urac ie s or typographic al e rrors. P e riod ic al
c hange s m ay be  m ad e  and  inform ation m ay be  ad d e d  to the inform ation he re in.  The City of Sc he rtz m ay m ake  im prove m e nts and /or c hange s in the prod uc t(s)
d e sc ribe d he r e in at any tim e .”

City of Sc he rtz, GIS Coord inator:  Tony Mc Falls, gis@sc he rtz.c om  (210) 619-1184

NK1309
Architect
Exhibit A



!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

67546

PKM VENTURES

LLC

67716

SD APPLE

PROPERTIES

III LLC

18913
MBD

PARTNERSHIP

33322
6776867496

67749
33323

67750
MM STX

LLC

17353
LISAM CAR

WASHES LLC

17355
LISAM CAR

WASHES LLC

67683

FAIN'S LEASING

HOMES LLC

29009

29010

29013 67574

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF

THE CITY OF SCHERTZ

67555

67660

MAPUS INVESTMENT

GROUP #2 LTD

67426

67715

PKM VENTURES

LLC
67570

PKM VENTURES

LLC

67616

67688

21464

67719
SOUTHERN

PACIFIC

21466

21467

67459

67547

67721
67571

67418

67691

67754

67681

67427
OLD MAIN

SHERTZ LLC

67558

67732
67572

MAIN STREET

LEGACY LLC

67697
SCHERTZ BANK

& TRUST

15661

IRONCLAD EQUITY

GROUP LLC67458

67431
NIDO INC

67500
6K PROPERTIES

LLC

21443
HSMR

INC

21445

67735
MACINT

LLC

21458

21461
HSMR

INC

129977
VESCOTT

INVESTMENTS LLC

67439
NIDO INC

67579

67734
MACINT

LLC

67565

165587

168552

21460
HSMR

INC

67568
67756

67451Guadalupe
County

8" WL

12" WL

6"
 W

L

6" WL

6"
 W

L

2"
 W

L

12"WL

12" W
L

8" WL

8" WL

12" WL

2" WL

12" WL

2" WL

6"
WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL

10"
WL 18"WL

8" WL

3" WL

6" WL

2" WL

1ST ST

CURTISS AVE

MILL ST

WILLIAMS

PFEIL ST

MAIN ST
WILLIAMS

LEE

RANDOLPH AVE

FM 78

LINDBERGH AVE

WRIGHT AVE

EXCHANGE AVE

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifie
d

Clay

6" Vitrified

Clay

8" 
PV

C S
DR 3

5

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrified Clay

8" Vitrified Clay

6" Vitrified Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

12" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

(90' ROW)'

Secondary

Arterial (1ST ST)

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(E FM 1518 N)

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(MAIN ST)

(120' - 130'

ROW)' Principal

Arterial (FM 78)Union Pacific R.R.

4 1 Inch = 100 Feet603 MAIN ST
0 100 200 300 40050

Feet

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes

60' Expansion
60' Proposed
60' Extension
86' Expansion

86' Extension
86' Proposed
120' Expansion
120 ' Extension

120' Proposed
Abandoned
Future TxDOT
Highway

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"

8"
10"
12"
16"
18"

g Unknown

Neighboring Main
Private Main

20"
24"
30"
36"



!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

67546

PKM VENTURES

LLC

67716

SD APPLE

PROPERTIES

III LLC

18913
MBD

PARTNERSHIP

33322
6776867496

67749
33323

67750
MM STX

LLC

17353
LISAM CAR

WASHES LLC

17355
LISAM CAR

WASHES LLC

67683

FAIN'S LEASING

HOMES LLC

29009

29010

29013 67574

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF

THE CITY OF SCHERTZ

67555

67660

MAPUS INVESTMENT

GROUP #2 LTD

67426

67715

PKM VENTURES

LLC
67570

PKM VENTURES

LLC

67616

67688

21464

67719
SOUTHERN

PACIFIC

21466

21467

67459

67547

67721
67571

67418

67691

67754

67681

67427
OLD MAIN

SHERTZ LLC

67558

67732
67572

MAIN STREET

LEGACY LLC

67697
SCHERTZ BANK

& TRUST

15661

IRONCLAD EQUITY

GROUP LLC67458

67431
NIDO INC

67500
6K PROPERTIES

LLC

21443
HSMR

INC

21445

67735
MACINT

LLC

21458

21461
HSMR

INC

129977
VESCOTT

INVESTMENTS LLC

67439
NIDO INC

67579

67734
MACINT

LLC

67565

165587

168552

21460
HSMR

INC

67568
67756

67451Guadalupe
County

8" WL

12" WL

6"
 W

L

6" WL

6"
 W

L

2"
 W

L

12"WL

12" W
L

8" WL

8" WL

12" WL

2" WL

12" WL

2" WL

6"
WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL

10"
WL 18"WL

8" WL

3" WL

6" WL

2" WL

1ST ST

CURTISS AVE

MILL ST

WILLIAMS

PFEIL ST

MAIN ST
WILLIAMS

LEE

RANDOLPH AVE

FM 78

LINDBERGH AVE

WRIGHT AVE

EXCHANGE AVE

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifie
d

Clay

6" Vitrified

Clay

8" 
PV

C S
DR 3

5

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrified Clay

8" Vitrified Clay

6" Vitrified Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

12" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

(90' ROW)'

Secondary

Arterial (1ST ST)

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(E FM 1518 N)

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(MAIN ST)

(120' - 130'

ROW)' Principal

Arterial (FM 78)Union Pacific R.R.

4 1 Inch = 100 Feet603 MAIN ST
0 100 200 300 40050

Feet

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes

60' Expansion
60' Proposed
60' Extension
86' Expansion

86' Extension
86' Proposed
120' Expansion
120 ' Extension

120' Proposed
Abandoned
Future TxDOT
Highway

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"

8"
10"
12"
16"
18"

g Unknown

Neighboring Main
Private Main

20"
24"
30"
36"







SCIHI]T]R:IV,

N'dr.o,5:i, ["tk'O

COMMUNIW
SERVICE
OPPOBTUNIW

PLANNING& COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

November 6,2020

Dear Property Owner,

The Schertz Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing on Wednesdav, November 18, 2020 at

6:00 p.m. located at the Municipal Complex Council Chambers, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Building #4, Schertz, Texas to
consider and make recommendation on the following item:

2C2020-011 - A request to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from Neighborhood Services District (NS) to Main

Street Mixed Use District (IVISIUU), located at 603 Main Street, City of Schertz, Guadalupe County, Texas.

The Planning and Zoning Commission would like to hear how you feel about this request and invites you to attend the
public hearing, Ihrs form is used fo calculate the percentage of landowners that support and oppose fhe requesf. You

may return the reply form below prior to the first public hearing date by mail or personal delivery to Nick Koplyay,
Planner, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Schertz, Texas 78154, by fax (210) 619-1789, or by e-mail nkoplvav@schertz.com,
lf you have any questions please feel free to call Nick Koplyay, Planner directly at (210) 619-1782.

Sincerely,

Nick Koplyay
Planner

I am: in favor of

COMMENTS:

NAIVE

(PLEAS

STREET ADDRESS:

opposed to E

Reply Form

neutralto i)

SIGNATU

the request for 2C2020-011

,"

E PRrNT)

3
fr

,)',

1400 Schertz Parkway Schertz, Texas 78154 210.619.1000

iS





Agenda No. 12.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Planning & Community Development
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-S-42 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon

request to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from General Business
District (GB) to Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU), located at 539 Main
Street, City of Schertz, Guadalupe County, Texas. First Reading (B. James/L.
Wood/N. Koplyay).

BACKGROUND
The applicant is proposing to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from General Business District
(GB) to Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU). The property is located at 539 Main Street and is
currently developed with one residential structure and one accessory structure.

Twenty-four (24) public hearing notices were mailed to surrounding property owners within two
hundred (200) feet of the subject property on November 6, 2020, and a public hearing notice was
published in the “San Antonio Express” on November 11, 2020. At the time of this report staff has
received four neutral responses and one favorable response to the public hearing notices. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on November 18, 2020 and made a recommendation to City
Council to approve the proposed zone change by a 7-0 vote. 

GOAL 
The project goal is to rezone the subject property from General Business District (GB) to Main Street
Mixed Use District (MSMU) in order to re-purpose the existing house and accessory structure on-site
into two commercial businesses.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City’s desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City’s vision of future growth.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
The Sector Plan amendment to the Comprehensive Land Use Plan designates the subject property as
part of Historic Downtown Schertz. The objective for Historic Downtown Schertz is to leverage
Schertz’s history and heritage to create a unique destination with local independent businesses, while
encouraging the use of existing buildings. The Main Street Mixed-Use District (MSMU) was created to
help achieve these objectives. The MSMU zoning district is intended to provide a base zoning district to
the area along Main Street. In light of the history of the area and variety of land uses that exist, this
zoning district allows for both single-family residential uses and low intensity commercial uses.
Reduced setbacks and parking requirements are also provided as part of this district due to physical
constraints. The proposed zone change to MSMU at 539 Main Street is in conformance with the
Comprehensive Plan, because MSMU will allow the subject property to accomplish the goals
established for Historic Downtown Schertz; the MSMU zoning district will permit the applicant to take
advantage of the existing improvement on-site by utilizing the existing house to develop two



commercial businesses.

The proposed zone change should also have a minimal impact on infrastructure and public facilities.The
subject property is currently surrounded by single-family dwellings and right-of-way, with commercial
businesses in the vicinity along Main Street, so the proposed zone change should also have a minimal
impact on the existing and future adjacent land uses. 

Based on the new zoning district's compatibility with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the land
uses of the adjacent properties, the MSMU zoning district is the most appropriate zoning district for the
subject property. Staff recommends approval of the zone change application as submitted.

FISCAL IMPACT 
None

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed zone change to Main Street Mixed Use District as
submitted. 

Attachments
Ordinance 20-S-42 
Ordinance 20-S-42 Exhibit A 
Aerial Map 
Public Hearing Notice Map 
Public Hearing Notice Responses 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-S-42

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.35 
ACRES OF LAND FROM GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (GB) TO MAIN STREET 
MIXED USE DISTRICT (MSMU), LOCATED AT 539 MAIN STREET, CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, GUADALUPE COUNTY, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, an application to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land located at 539 Main Street,
and more specifically described in the Exhibit A attached herein (herein, the “Property”) has been 
filed with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.5.4.D. provides for certain criteria
to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations to City 
Council and by City Council in considering final action on a requested zone change (the 
“Criteria”); and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 
hearing and, after considering the Criteria, made a recommendation to City Council to approve the 
requested rezoning; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 
considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
determined that the requested zoning be approved as provided for herein.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS:
THAT:

Section 1.  The Property as shown and more particularly described in the attached Exhibit 
A, is hereby zoned Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU).

Section 2.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of Schertz, described and referred to in 
Article 2 of the Unified Development Code, shall be revised to reflect the above amendment.

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the Council.

Section 4.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America.



Section 6.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 7.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code.

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 
publication required by law.

Section 9.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed.

Approved on first reading the 1st day of December, 2020.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 8th day of December, 2020.

____________________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary
(SEAL OF THE CITY) 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-S-42

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 0.35 
ACRES OF LAND FROM GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (GB) TO MAIN STREET 
MIXED USE DISTRICT (MSMU), LOCATED AT 539 MAIN STREET, CITY OF 
SCHERTZ, GUADALUPE COUNTY, TEXAS.

WHEREAS, an application to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land located at 539 Main Street,
and more specifically described in the Exhibit A attached herein (herein, the “Property”) has been 
filed with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.5.4.D. provides for certain criteria
to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations to City 
Council and by City Council in considering final action on a requested zone change (the 
“Criteria”); and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 
hearing and, after considering the Criteria, made a recommendation to City Council to approve the 
requested rezoning; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 
considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
determined that the requested zoning be approved as provided for herein.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS:
THAT:

Section 1.  The Property as shown and more particularly described in the attached Exhibit 
A, is hereby zoned Main Street Mixed Use District (MSMU).

Section 2.  The Official Zoning Map of the City of Schertz, described and referred to in 
Article 2 of the Unified Development Code, shall be revised to reflect the above amendment.

Section 3.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the Council.

Section 4.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America.



Section 6.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 7.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code.

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 
publication required by law.

Section 9.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed.

Approved on first reading the 1st day of December, 2020.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 8th day of December, 2020.

____________________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary
(SEAL OF THE CITY) 



!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P

!P
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

Guadalupe
County

67546
PKM

VENTURES LLC

67716

SD APPLE

PROPERTIES III LLC

67496
67749

67750
MM STX

LLC

67683

FAIN'S LEASING

HOMES LLC

67555

67657

RANDOLPH

LODGE #1268

67660
MAPUS

INVESTMENT

GROUP #2 LTD

67426

67715
PKM

VENTURES LLC
67570

PKM

VENTURES LLC

67549

SCHERTZ

BANK & TRUST 67616

LONGORIA

MINISTRIES INC

67688

MWBDLR LIMITED

LIABILITY COMPANY

41118
E S SCHERTZ

78 LLC

21464
21466

67459

67571
67418

67691

67754

67681
67588

67558

PKM VENTURES

LLC

67732
67572

MAIN STREET

LEGACY LLC67697
SCHERTZ

BANK & TRUST

67458

67431
NIDO INC

67500

6K PROPERTIES

LLC

21443
HSMRINC

67735
MACINT

LLC

21461
HSMRINC

129977
VESCOTT

INVESTMENTS LLC

67439
NIDO INC

67579

67445
LNG PROPERTIES

INC

67445
LNG PROPERTIES

INC

67734
MACINT

LLC

67565

21467

21460
HSMRINC

67768

33323

17353
LISAM CAR

WASHES LLC

67719
SOUTHERN

PACIFIC
67547

32861
WALTEL

LLC32859
WALTEL

LLC

21458

165587

168552

8" WL

12" WL

6"
 W

L

6" WL

6"
 W

L

8" WL

2"
 W

L

12" W
L 12" WL

2" WL

2" WL

12" WL

8" WL

6" WL

8" WL

6" WL
8" WL

6" WL

8" WL 6" WL
6" WL

3"
WL

6" WL

8" WL

8" WL

6" WL

6"WL4" W
L

8" WL

18" WL

3" WL

10" WL

2" WL

6" WL

1ST ST

WRIGHT AVE

E A
VIA

TIO
N B

LV
D

WUEST ST

MAIN ST

WILLIAMS

PFEIL ST

MILL ST

WILLIAMS

CURTISS AVE

LINDBERGH AVE

LEE

RANDOLPH AVE

EXCHANGE AVE

FM 78
8" Vitrified

Clay

8" 
PV

C
SD

R 3
5

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed

Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrified Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrified Clay

12" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

8" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

6" Vitrifi
ed Clay

(90' ROW)'

Secondary

Arterial (1ST ST)

(90' ROW)'
Secondary Arterial

(E FM 1518 N)

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(MAIN ST)

(120' - 130'

ROW)' Principal

Arterial (FM 78)Union Pacific R.R.

4 1 Inch = 100 Feet539 MAIN ST
0 100 200 300 40050

Feet

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes

60' Expansion
60' Proposed
60' Extension
86' Expansion

86' Extension
86' Proposed
120' Expansion
120 ' Extension

120' Proposed
Abandoned
Future TxDOT
Highway

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"

8"
10"
12"
16"
18"

g Unknown

Neighboring Main
Private Main

20"
24"
30"
36"



WILLIAMS ST

MAIN ST

FM 78

1ST ST

MILL ST
EXCHANGE AVE RANDOLPH AVELINDBERGH AVE

CURTISS AVE

607 MAIN ST

(67496)

609 MAIN ST

(67749)

603
MAIN ST

(67750)

301

RANDOLPH AVE

(67683)
204 RANDOLPH

AVE
(67555)

305

RANDOLPH AVE

(67660)

307

RANDOLPH AVE

(67426)

539 MAIN ST

(67688)

528
MAIN ST

(21464)

530
MAIN ST

(21466)

534
MAIN ST

(21467)

536
MAIN ST

(67459)

517 EXCHANGE AVE

(67571)
519 EXCHANGE AVE

(67418)

521 EXCHANGE

AVE
(67691)

302

RANDOLPH AVE

(67754)

304

RANDOLPH AVE

(67681)

306

RANDOLPH AVE

(67588)

537 MAIN ST

(67558)

524

EXCHANGE AVE

(67732)
533 MAIN ST

(67572)

519 MAIN ST
(67697)

605

EXCHANGE AVE

(67458)

602
MAIN ST

(67579)

606 MAIN ST

(67565)

Union
 Pac i
fic

4200' Buffe r Parc e l Bound arie sCity of Sc h e rtz
539 MAIN ST

ABS: 221 SUR : G MALPAZ 0.3340 AC. 0 150 300 45075
Fe e t

Last Upd ate : Nove m be r 4, 2020
“T h e  City of Sc h e rtz provid e s th is Ge ograph ic  Inform ation Syste m  prod uc t "as is" w ith out any e xpre ss or im plie d
w arranty of any k ind  inc lud ing but not lim ite d  to th e im plie d  w arrantie s of m e rc h antability and  fitne ss for a partic ular purpose .
In no e ve nt sh all T h e  City of Sc h e rtz be  liable  for any spe c ial, ind ire c t or c onse que ntial dam ages or any d am age s w h atsoe ve r arising out of or in c onne c tion
w ith  th e  use  of or pe rform anc e of th e se  mate rials. Inform ation publish e d  in th is prod uc t c ould  inc lud e  te c h nic al inac c urac ie s or typograph ic al e rrors. Pe riod ic al
c h ange s m ay be  mad e  and  inform ation m ay be  ad d e d  to th e  inform ation h e re in.  T h e  City of Sc h e rtz may mak e  im prove m e nts and /or c h ange s in th e  prod uc t(s)
d e sc ribe d  h e re in at any tim e .”

City of Sc h e rtz, GIS Spe c ialist:  Bill Gard ne r, gis@sc h e rtz.c om  (210) 619-1185









ScnnuRnrz

N,&,f,e-{,hk'O

COMMUNIW
SERVICE
OPPOBTUNITY

PLANNING& COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
November 6,2020

Dear Property Owner,

The Schertz Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing on Wednesdav, November 18. 2020 at
6:00 p.m, located at the Municipal Complex Council Chambers, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Building #4, Schertz, Texas to
consider and make recommendation on the following item:

2C2020-012- A request to rezone approximately 0.35 acres of land from General Business District (GB) to Main Street
lVixed Use District (MSMU), located at 539 Main Street, City of Schertz, Guadalupe County, Texas,

The Planning and Zoning Commission would like to hear how you feel about this request and invites you to attend the
public hearing. Iitis form is used fo calculate the percentage of landowners that support and oppose fhe reguest. You
may return the reply form below prior to the first public hearing date by mail or personal delivery to Nick Koplyay,
Planner, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Schertz, Texas 78154, by fax (210) 619-1789, or by e-mail nkoplyav@schertz.com.
lf you have any questions please feel free to call Nick Koplyay, Planner directly at (210) 619-1782,

Sincerely

Nick Koplyay
Planner

Reply Form

I am: in favor of tr opposed to E
trft-

COI\4M t) 8r\

rest for 2C2020-012;\e ;;;;, i',i,t-, t npius't
V tt v'i t'( ttllv r r..J-, C ' i r (i

,Tr
&

the requ
r ee{
tX-

neec{f
tf ,teS

.vt*;
NAIVIE: ftQ* GNATU

(PLEASE PRTNT)

STREET ADDRESS:

DATE

sy

I

fL*

1400 Schertz Parkway Schertz, Texas 78154 210.619.1000

WL
+a



SCIHT]T]RTru,

N,*,b {,hk'o

COMMUNIW
SERVICE
OPPORTUNIry

PLANNING & COMMLNITY
DEVELOPMENT

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
November 6,2020

Dear Property Owner,

The Schertz Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing on Wednesdav, November 18, 2020 at

6:00 p.m, located at the lMunicipal Complex Council Chambers, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Building #4, Schertz, Texas to
consider and make recommendation on the following item:

2C2020-012- A request to rezone approximately 0,35 acres of land from General Business District (GB) to lMain Street
lt/ixed Use District (lVlStUU), located at 539 lt/ain Street, City of Schertz, Guadalupe County, Texas.

The Planning and Zoning Commission would like to hear how you feel about this request and invites you to attend the
public hearing. Ihls form is used fo calculate the percentage of landowners that support and oppose fhe requesf. You

may return the reply form below prior to the first public hearing date by mail or personal delivery to Nick Koplyay,

Planner, 1400 Schertz Parkway, Schertz, Texas 78154, by fax (210) 619-1789, or by e-mail nkoplyay@schertz,com,
lf you have any questions please feel free to call Nick Koplyay, Planner directly at (210) 619-1782.

Sincerely

Nick Koplyay
Planner

lam: in favor ofT"
COIVIVENTS:

J"d)

NAI\4E:

STREET ADDRESS

DATE:

LEASE PRINT)

opposed to n
<.

C, r-r

Reply Form

SIGNATU

M
irt* "l nerds'

a^{S

the

eJ

I

- d'; t-t'rrl€ ,

5V

1400 Schertz Parkway Schertz, Texas 78154 2.10.619.1000



Agenda No. 13.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Planning & Community Development
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-S-40 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon a

request for a Specific Use Permit to allow the ‘Commercial Amusement, Outdoor’
land use on approximately 17.5 acres of land, located at 18658 Interstate
Highway 35 N, City of Schertz, Guadalupe County, Texas, also known as
Wiederstein Ranch Lot 1, Block 1. First Reading (B. James/L. Wood/N. Koplyay)

BACKGROUND
The applicant is requesting a Specific Use Permit to allow the ‘Commercial Amusement, Outdoor’ land
use on approximately 17.5 acres of land, located at 18658 IH-35 N. The applicant would like to utilize
the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use in order to operate outdoor paintball facilities on the
northeast side of the property.

The subject property is located at 18658 IH-35 North, also known as Wiederstein Ranch Lot 1, Blk 1,
and is currently developed with an approximately 70,000 square foot indoor commercial amusement
center (EVO Entertainment) containing movie theaters, bowling alleys, arcade games, etc.

Three (3) public hearing notices were mailed to surrounding property owners within two hundred (200)
feet of the subject property on November 6, 2020, and a public hearing was published in the “San
Antonio Express” on November 11, 2020. At the time of this report staff has received one response in
favor of the Specific Use Permit.

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on November 18, 2020 and made a recommendation to City
Council to approve the proposed Specific Use Permit by a 7-0
vote. The following project representatives spoke at the Planning & Zoning Commission public hearing: 

Chris Cline, EVO Entertainment, CDO, answered the Commission's questions regarding specifics
of the proposed paintball facilities

GOAL 
The goal of the proposed Specific Use Permit is to allow the Commercial Amusement Outdoor land use
on approximately 17.5 acres of land, located at 18658 IH-35 N.

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
It is the City’s desire to promote safe, orderly, efficient development and ensure compliance with the
City’s vision of future growth.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Impact on Adjacent Development



Impact on Adjacent Development
The subject property is currently surrounded by an approximately 73 acre tract of land zoned General
Business District (GB) and Manufacturing Light District (M-1) that is largely undeveloped with some
minor agricultural uses, an approximately 21 acre tract of land zoned General Business District (GB)
that is developed with an outdoor flea market plus some residential dwellings towards the rear of the
property, and the Interstate Highway 35 Right-Of-Way. The site plan associated with this Specific Use
Permit request to allow the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use shows that the paintball
courses are planned to be situated along the eastern property boundary, which would place the paintball
facilities adjacent to the outdoor flea market and the residential dwellings towards the rear of the
property. While the property owner is taking all the necessary precautions associated with a paintball
facility, including the installation of 20 foot tall, professional grade paintball netting around the entirety
of both paintball courses, thus preventing the paintballs from leaving the subject property and
interfering with the surrounding properties, there could still be potential impacts on the adjacent land
uses in terms of noise. However, the subject property and the potentially affected adjacent properties
are along Interstate Highway 35, so some noise traffic should be expected from the roadway and any
commercial businesses that operate along the roadway. Therefore, the addition of a paintball facility
with the necessary precautions in the area should not have a major noise impact on the surrounding
properties beyond what
should be expected along an interstate highway. The property owner of the Bussey's Flea Market also
reached out to staff to and has no objections to the proposed paintball facilities being constructed next to
his property.

Conformance with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan
In addition, the proposed Specific Use Permit to allow the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use
should not have an adverse impact on any potential adjacent development, because the proposed land
use is in conformance with the North Schertz Sector Plan. The subject property and the adjacent
properties along IH-35 are all identified under the Commercial Campus land use designation within the
North Schertz Sector Plan. The Commercial Campus land use designation is intended to allow for a
variety of commercial uses and should also accommodate light manufacturing or flex office spaces;
therefore, the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use, and the paintball facilities more specifically,
should not impede the redevelopment of any adjacent properties in accordance with the Comprehensive
Land Use Plan.

Conceptual Site Plan  

Architectural Standards: The proposed Specific Use Permit would not make any modifications to
the existing 70,000 square foot indoor commercial amusement center (EVO Entertainment),
which already complies with the architectural feature requirements (i.e. horizontal and vertical
articulations) defined in Schertz Unified Development Code (UDC) Sec. 21.9.5 Exterior
Construction and Design Standards
Parking: The applicant is proposing no changes to the current parking facilities with the addition
of the proposed 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use. The applicant believes that the peak
traffic hours for the existing indoor commercial amusement facility and the proposed paintball
courses operate during different times of the day, and that the existing parking is sufficient for the
current number of daily customers. The COVID-19 pandemic has reduced the daily traffic within
the EVO facility, and if additional parking is required to meet consumer expectations or traffic
standards following the attenuation of the pandemic, then the applicant will install more parking
spaces on site in any of the available space.
Screening requirements: The applicant is proposing to screen the paintball courses with 20 foot
tall, professional grade paintball netting that will prevent any of the paintballs from leaving the
designated facilities and encroaching into the remainder of the subject property or onto adjacent
properties. The existence of residential dwellings in the rear of the General Business District



(GB) zoned property that also houses the outdoor flea market, would typically require the
applicant to install an 8' masonry fence along with a 20' landscape buffer including the necessary
tree and shrub plantings in accordance with UDC Sec. 21.9.7.G & Sec. 21.9.8.B.3; however, the
applicant is already installing a 20' screening net that will obstruct the paintball facility from the
neighboring properties. Therefore, due to the unique screening precautions already being taken
given the proposed land use, the applicant is requesting to not install the masonry wall and
associated landscape buffer along the southeast portion of the property line adjacent to the
residential dwellings.
Landscaping: The proposed Specific Use Permit would not make any modifications to the
existing landscaping on-site, and the applicant is not planning to remove any trees on site since
the heavily wooded nature of the southeast portion of the subject property will be utilized as part
of one of the paintball courses. The removal of any Protected/Heritage class trees on-site will
require a Tree Removal Permit and any necessary tree mitigation fees.
Access and circulation: The subject property's access to the IH-35 frontage road is not proposed to
change under the requested Specific Use Permit. The addition of the paintball facilities will also
not have a major impact on the subject property's site circulation given that the drive aisles and
parking spaces are proposed to remain as they exist today.

A Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use in association
with the attached Site Plan would permit the applicant to construct two paintball courses over
approximately 10 acres of land on the eastern subject property boundary. Staff recommends approval of
the proposed SUP given the request's compatibility with the Comprehensive Plan, the minimal
additional impact to the existing and potential adjacent land uses beyond what would be expected along
Interstate Highway 35, and the benefit the land use would provide to the community. 

The North Schertz Sector identifies the subject property as Commercial Campus, which is
intended primarily for a wider variety of commercial land uses. The requested 'Commercial
Amusement, Outdoor' land use is compatible with the Commercial Campus future land use
designation; therefore, the proposed SUP is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan.
The proposed 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use should also have a minimal impact
on the existing and potential surrounding land uses. The paintball courses proposed under this
SUP would be constructed along the eastern property boundary and adjacent to the property
zoned General Business District (GB) and developed with the outdoor flea market and residential
houses; however, the applicant is taking precautionary measures, including installing 20 foot tall
screening and protection netting around both courses to ensure there is as little adverse impact to
the neighbors as possible. The North Schertz Sector Plan identifies the neighboring properties as
Commercial Campus as well, so the development of the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land
use should also have a limited impact on the potential land uses that will develop under the
Commercial Campus future land use designation.
The addition of the paintball courses would also provide an amenity that is not currently present
in the City of Schertz. There are very limited commercial properties that offer outdoor
entertainment facilities such as the paintball courses proposed under this SUP, and the allowance
of the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor' land use through the associated site plan would allow
for increase the variety of commercial businesses available to our residents, especially along
IH-35.

FISCAL IMPACT 
None

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the Specific Use Permit to allow the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor'



Staff recommends approval of the Specific Use Permit to allow the 'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor'
land use alonng with the attached site plan, conditioned upon the following:  

A building permit is approved within one year of the adoption of the SUP ordinance; and1.
The use begins operation within two years of the issuance of the necessary building permit(s).2.

Attachments
Ordinance 20-S-40 
Ordinance 20-S-40 Exhibit A 
Aerial Map 
Public Hearing Notice Map 
Public Hearing Notice Response 



ORDINANCE NO. 20-S-40

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS TO 
APPROVE A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT TO ALLOW FOR OPERATION OF A
COMMERCIAL AMUSEMENT OUTDOOR LAND USE AT 18658 INTERSTATE 
HIGHWAY 35 NORTH, CITY OF SCHERTZ, GUADALUPE COUNTY, TEXAS, ALSO 
KNOWN AS WIEDERSTEIN RANCH LOT 1, BLOCK 1. 

WHEREAS, an application for Specific Use Permit to allow a Commercial Amusement Outdoor
land use at 18658 Interstate Highway 35 North, more particularly described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, (hereinafter, the “Property”) has been filed with the 
City; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Unified Development Code Section 21.5.11.E. provides for certain 
conditions to be considered by the Planning and Zoning Commission in making recommendations 
to City Council and by City Council in considering final action on a requested specific use permit 
(the “Conditions”); and

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public 
hearing and, after considering the Conditions, hereby makes a recommendation of approval of a 
Specific Use Permit for an Commercial Amusement Outdoor land use; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the City Council conducted a public hearing and after 
considering the Criteria and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission, 
determined that the requested Specific Use Permit be approved as provided for herein.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS:
THAT:

Section 1.  A Specific Use Permit for 18658 Interstate Highway 35 North, more particularly 
described in the attached Exhibit A, is hereby approved to allow a Commercial Amusement 
Outdoor land use conditioned upon the following occurring:

a) A building permit is approved within one year of the adoption of this ordinance; and
b) The use begins operation within two years of the issuance of the necessary building 

permit(s).

Section 2.  The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the Council.

Section 3.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.



Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 5.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code.

Section 7.  This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 
publication required by law.

Section 8.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed.

Approved on first reading the 1st day of December, 2020.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 8th day of December, 2020.

____________________________________
Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________
Brenda Dennis, City Secretary
(SEAL OF THE CITY) 



N
3
1
°
1
6
'
2
4
"
W

 
 
 
3
6
9
.
0
8
'

S
3
1
°
1
6
'
0
6
"
E

 
 
 
1
3
6
9
.
4
6
'

N

4

5

°

3

1

'
2

2

"

E

 
 
 
1

0

0

.
0

5

'

N

4

6

°

5

4

'
3

2

"
E

 
 
 
5

3

3

.
1

2

'

N

4

5

°

2

8

'
2

3

"

E

 
 
 
2

0

1

.
0

6

'

N45°49'28"W   102.12'

N31°11'44"W   62.74'

N
3
1
°
1
1
'
1
7
"
W

 
 
 
6
5
9
.
9
1
'

S58°48'12"W   545.88'

S58°43'54"W   244.25'

N

4

5

°

3

1

'
2

2

"

E

1

2

8

8

.
5

7

'

N

4

1

°

4

6

'
5

9

"

E

4

0

0

.

8

2

'

S
3
0
°
4
7
'
1
4
"
E

2
8
.
1
0
'

S
3
1
°
1
6
'
0
6
"
E

1
5
8
6
.
5
3
'

TITLE:

DATE:

JURISDICTION:

DRAWING BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SHEET NUMBER:

COMMENTS:

SEAL:

DEVELOPER:

PR
OJ

EC
T:

CONTACT: 

DATEREVISIONS

ENGINEER:

JOB/FILE NUMBER:

EVO ENTERTAINMENT
GROUP

1290 WONDER WORLD DRIVE
SUITE 1240
SAN MARCUS, TX 78666

o | 214.939.7123
f | 888.765.8135

w | www.fg-inc.net

TBPE Firm No. F-12878
Foresite Group, Inc.
1999 Bryan St.
Suite 890
Dallas, TX 75201
D/B/A Foresite Consulting Group  of Texas, Inc.

MITCHELL C. ROBERTS

EV
O 

EN
TE

RT
AI

NM
EN

T
SC

HE
RT

Z,
 T

EX
AS

04/05/2018

TP

FGI

CITY OF SCHERTZ

RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

04/25/20181

1075.001

CITY COMMENTS

09/14/20182 UTILITY PLAN

10/02/20183 RELOCATED DUMPSTER/TRANSFORMER

4 CITY COMMENTS 12/07/2018

SCALE IN FEET

0

1" = 80'

80 40 80 160

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

   

   

PREPARED: NOVEMBER 11, 2020

OWNER/APPLICANT:

EVO ENTERTAINMENT GROUP

ATTN: CHRIS CLINE

500 W. 2ND STREET

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701

PH: (214) 632-3358

ZONING EXHIBIT

WIEDERSTEIN RANCH

LOT 1; BLOCK 1

NORTHEAST CORNER OF OLD WEIDERSTEIN ROAD AND IH-35

SCHERTZ, TX, 78154

I

N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 

3

5

O

L

D

 

W

I

E

D

E

R

S

T

E

I

N

R

O

A

D

O

L

D

 

W

I

E

D

E

R

S

T

E

I

N

R

O

A

D

P

A

R

K

 

D

R

.

E

L

M

 

S

T

.

B

I

R

C

H

 

S

T

.

T

U

L

I

P

 

S

T

.

P

I

N

E

 

S

T

.

P

E

L

I

C

A

N

 

S

T

.

S

U

M

M

I

T

 

D

R

.

SITE

VICINITY MAP

SCALE

1" = 1000'

LAND USE: COMMERCIAL

ZONING: GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)

SUBDIVISION NAME: BUSEY'S

OWNERS NAME: BUSSEY'S LTD

RECORDING INFORMATION: VOLUME: 717; PAGE 727

LAND USE: COMMERCIAL

ZONING: GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)

SUBDIVISION NAME: BUSSEY'S

OWNERS NAME: BUSSEY'S LTD

RECORDING INFORMATION: VOLUME: 717; PAGE 727

LAND USE: EVO ENTERTAINMENT CENTER

ZONING: PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PDD)

SUBDIVISION NAME: WIEDERSTEIN RANCH

OWNERS NAME: 1290 ENTERTAINMENT, LLC

C

O

M

A

L

 

C

O

U

N

T

Y

G

U

A

D

A

L

U

P

E

 

C

O

U

N

T

Y

C

I

T

Y

 

O

F

 

C

I

B

O

L

O

C

I

T

Y

 

O

F

 

S

C

H

E

R

T

Z

EXHIBIT A
ZONING EXHIBIT

11/11/2020

LEGEND

PROPOSED COMMERCIAL

OUTDOOR AMUSEMENTS

LAND USE: VACANT

ZONING: GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)

SUBDIVISION NAME: SAN ANTONIO 1 LTD PARTNERSHIP

OWNERS NAME: SAN ANTONIO 1 LTD PARTNERSHIP

RECORDING INFORMATION: VOLUME: 979; PAGE 478

LAND USE: VACANT

ZONING: GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)

SUBDIVISION NAME: SAN ANTONIO 1 LTD PARTNERSHIP

OWNERS NAME: SAN ANTONIO 1 LTD PARTNERSHIP

RECORDING INFORMATION: VOLUME: 979; PAGE 478

500 W. 2ND STREET
AUSTIN, TX 78701

CHRIS CLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F:\1075.001 (SEC) OLD WIEDERSTEIN RD & I-35 (SCHERTZ, TX)\DWG\EXHIBITS\ZONING EXHIBIT ADJACENT.DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
92581

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAN FAULKNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

NK1309
Architect
SUP EXHIBIT

NK1309
Architect
SUP EXHIBIT



� �� � � � � � � � �	
 	 � 	 
 	 � 	 � � 
 	 �

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

� � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � � � �

� � � �  � � !"  � � # $ %& ' ( ) *! � + � $ , � � �"- # + � . /  � ! � + � $ , � 0 � 1 /) ) 2 3 � - - � � . , 1 . / � � � /& . 4 # / � ' ( '5 4 1 / . + # $ $ �&  $ 6 7 * ( )8 , 1 /  8 /" 0 �9 0  8 $ # 1 . 0 # / 5� 5" : ' ( 7 ; < % (= 7 ' 2 ( � � $ # 8  1 /"- , � � . # / � > � , 4 �& # 1 89) % % % ? � @  1 . / � � � /& . 4 # / � * % (!  $ $  .& / A B 7 ' ( )8 , 1 /  8 /" 0 �9 / �  + # . � � 4 � / /� 5" : ' ) < ; % 6 %= B ) ' 6 . 4 � + � @ , �". � , , 1 � �  1 !  . . , 8 #  / � .6 ( % ? @ � � . . / � � � /& . 4 # / � ) ( (� 4 $ � . .& / � A  . B 2 ( 6 %8 , 1 /  8 /" 0 �9 � � # 8 . � � , 1 � �& �9 �9 $9 .9� 5" : * ) B ; 2 * 7= * < < *- # � 0 � � > # . / �  / # , 1 1 ,9 ) ( ( 7 < % ( (. 4 � + � @ � � � �  � � !  � � # $ ' ( ) *
C D E F G H I J F K L D M D EN O P Q Q R S T U V WX Y Z [ Z \ ]̂ Z Y _ \̀ _ a bc d̂ ef g c d a h ei j k l m n o p l q j k i n k j r j s t u n v t n k p l n v i k j o t o i t v mw x yp q m n k l z{ l |{ } ~ � y �

� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � � ������ �� ���  �� ¡¢£¤¥

¦ § ¨ © ª ¨« ¬  ® ¯ °±² ³ ´ µ ¶ · ¸¹º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿ ºÀÁ Â Ã Ä Å ÆÇÈ É Ê Ë Ì Í Î Ï ÐÑÒ Ó Ô Ô Õ Ö × ØÙ
Ú Û Ü Ý Þ ß à ß á ß â ã ä å æç à å è éê ëì ê í í í îï ð ñ ï ñ Ú Ý ò ó ô õ ö ÷ ÷ Ý Ú Ú Ý ö Ú Ý ø Ý ù Ü

úû ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � � � � � � � ý ü	 � þ � þ 
 � 
 � þ � � ý ü � � � � þ � � � � 
 � � � � ÿ � � � � � � þ þ ý � � � � � � � � � �� � þ � � � þ ý � � � � � � � � � � � ü � ÿ� � � � � ÿ � þ 
 � þ � � � � ý � � � þ � � � ü � � � � � ú � � � ý 
 � � � � �û ü ý þ ÿ � � � � � � � � � � � � ý ü	 � þ � þ 
 � 
 � þ � � ý ü � � � � þ � � � � 
 � � � � ÿ � � � � � � þ þ ý � � � � � � � � � � �� � þ � � � þ ý � � � � � � � � � � � ü � ÿ� � � � � ÿ � þ 
 � þ � � � � ý � � � þ � � � ü � � � � � ú � � � ý 
 � � � �. # / � � $  1  � � � , +  $ � ô ô õ � Ý Ü � Ý Ý ù ï ð ñ ï ñ Ú Ý òò ð Û � Ý � ö � ö ù ò ö ò � ö ÷ Ý ù Üò ð Û � Ý � ö �

Ú Û Ü Ý ò ö Ü ö Ú � ø ø ö ð �� � � , � , . � ! 4 . �" / 5 �  / � �& ? , ! $ # 1 >  $ $ � @& # 1 ! , , �  0 4 . � 0 � 1 /'9 " , 1 # 1 >" > ? : > � 1 � �  $ ? 4 . # 1 � . . ;69 $ , /  � �  " � � , 3 � 8 /  � �  " ) B9 < <  89 : B 7 %& 2 * 29 < . - ;< 9 � � , � , . � ! # 0 � � � + # , 4 .  � �  " * 9 6 7  89 : 6 2 6 7 < <9 < 6 . - ; : < B9 * # ;79 ? 4 # $ ! # 1 >  � �  " 8 , 0 0 � � 8 #  $ � � /  # $ ? 4 # $ ! # 1 >$ B 6& 6 6 ( . -29 ? 4 # $ ! # 1 > 5 � # > 5 /" < 7 % /  $ $B9 - $ , , � / ,  � �  �  / # ," ( 9 ) (*9 �  � & # 1 > � � , + # ! � !" < ( 6 . �  8 � . : ) . �  8 � � � � ) * ' . - ;' � � ( 4 # � � !" < ( 6 . �  8 � . : . � � /  ? $ � - , �0 , � � ! � /  # $ ;%9 5  1 ! # 8  � �  � & # 1 >" � � , + # ! � !" % . �  8 � .' � � ( 4 # � � ! % . �  8 � .
) Ý * Ý ù ò. /  1 !  � ! ! 4 / @ 8 , 1 8 � � / � �  + # 1 >! , / . � � 8 # - # 8  / # , 1 8 , 1 8 � � / � �  + # 1 >8 , 1 8 � � / � . # ! � !  $ & �  + # 1 >� � , � � � / @ $ # 1 ��  � & # 1 > 8 , 4 1 // �  - - # 8 . # > 1�  # 1 / � ! / �  - - # 8  � � , ! ./ �  - - # 8 - $ , ! $  1 � ! � . # > 1  / # , 1+

, � - . � , � / � � 01 2 Í 3 Í Ê 2 È É Ì 4 2 Î Ð 5
, � � 0 � 6 , � 7 � � �89 :;< => 8?@A :B

ï ö ð C Û ù * Ü ö � ) Ý4 . � . # " � �  � & # 1 > �  / # , �  � & # 1 > � � ( 4 # � � !0 , + # � / 5 �  / � � ) & ) * ( . �  / . ) �  � & # 1 > . /  $ $ � � � < . �  / . ' % 7 �  � & # 1 > . /  $ $ .? , ! $ # 1 > ) 2 $  1 � . 7 . �  8 � . � � � ? , ! $ # 1 > $  1 � * ( �  � & # 1 > . /  $ $ . 0 4 . � 0 � 1 / 7& 7 ( ( . - ) . �  8 � � � � ' ( ( . - ' * �  � & # 1 > . /  $ $ .

 ! 3  8 � 1 / � � , � � � / # � .

Ú Û Ü Ý ù ñ Ü Ý Ú�  / 5 � / 5 , � , 4 > 5 -  � �  $ # > 1 0 � 1 / . . 5 , ! 1 , 1 / 5 # . � A 5 # ? # /  � � - , � # $ $ 4 . / �  / # , 1� 4 � � , . � .  1 ! ! , 1 , / . � / / 5 �  $ # > 1 0 � 1 /9  $ # > 1 0 � 1 / # . ! � / � � 0 # 1 � !  / / # 0 � , -- # 1  $ � $  /9' 9  8 8 , � ! # 1 > / , - $ , , ! # 1 . 4 �  1 8 � �  / � 0  �& �  1 � $ < * ) * B 8 ( ' ) ( -& !  / � ! 1 , + � 0 ? � � '&' ( ( B& / 5 # . . 4 ? ! # + # . # , 1 # . $ , 8  / � ! # 1 " , 1 � A  1 ! # . 1 , / ! # / 5 # 1 / 5 � ) ( ( @ �  �- $ , , ! � $  # 169 4 / # $ # / # � .& > �  ! # 1 >&  1 ! ! �  # 1  > �  � � . 5 , ! 1 , 1 8 # + # $ 8 , 1 . / � 4 8 / # , 1 � $  1 . - , �-  8 # $ # / @

ï ð ñ ï ñ Ú Ý ò ó õ Ú Û ò Ý � ö ) C DE
, ! 1 � �") ' % ( � 1 / � � /  # 1 0 � 1 /& $ $ 8) ' % ( ! , 1 ! � � ! , � $ ! ! � # + �& . 4 # / � ) ' < (.  1 0  � 8 , .& / � A  . B * 2 2 28 , 1 /  8 /" 0 �9 0 # / 8 5 � $ $ 89 � , ? � � / .� 5 " : 7 ) ' ; 6 7 6= * 7 * 2

F G H I J KL M N O M I O I M H F

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Architect
Commercial Amusement, Outdoor'

NK1309
Arrow

NK1309
Arrow



P QR S T U V W T T XYZ Y [ Y Z Y \ Y]̂ _ Z Ỳ

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

a b c d e f g h ij k i i k e i i c l

m n o p q r o r m s t t r u vwx y z { y { | } ~ � | }� � � } � � } z� � { � � � � � � � � } �� � � ~ { { z � � � | } � } � ��� � { � � � �� � � � � } � } z � � � � | � � } | | ��� � { � � z } �� y z { � } � � � z } �� � �� � � � �� � � � �� � � �� � | � �� � y z { y { | } ~ � � y } z � � { � | � z } �� � � � � � �� � � � � � � �� � � | � � � � �� � � ��� � � � � ~ � � � � z } �� � { � � } z � � � � z } � � � � � � � � ~ � � �� � �� � �   | ��� � � � � ~ � � � � } � � � �� � � ¡ � � � ��� � � { { z � { � z } � z � � � {�   � �  �� y � z ¢ � � � y z { � � ~ } ~� �   � | y � � } | � � | y � � } y } z � � � | � �£ z } ¤ � � z } ~� �   � | y � � } | � | } } � � � � } � { z� { z } ~ } � � � � ��� � � � ~ � � � y y � z ¢ � � �� y z { � � ~ } ~� � | y � � } |£ z } ¤ � � z } ~ � | y � � } |
¥ p ¦ p § q| � � � ~ � z ~ ~ � � � � { � � z } � } y � � � � �~ { � | y } � � � � � � � � { � � { � � z } � } y � � � � �� { � � z } � } | � ~ } � � � ¢ y � � � � �y z { y } z � � � � � }y � z ¢ � � � � { � � �� z � � � � � | � � �y � � � � } ~ � z � � � � � � z z { � |� z � � � � � � � { � � � � } ~ } | � � � � � � { �¨

y z } y � z } ~� � y z � � � � �   � �~ } � } � { y } z�� � � } | � � z ~ } � } � { y � } � �� � � � } � � } z | { � | � z } } �� | � � � } �   �� � � � | � � � � }� � � � � �   �� { � � � � �� � z� � � � � � � | � � � �y �� � �   � � � �  © � � �  � y y � � � � � ��� { z } | � � } � z { � y� � � ��� � � � � z � � � | � z } } �� | � � � } � �  ~ � � � � |� � ª � � �   �� { � � � � �� � z� � z � � � | y z � } � �y �� � � � � � � � �© � � � � | � z � } � { z�| y { { � } z � � ~ � | | { � � � � } |�   � � � } z | | � z } } �� | � � � } �    } � � } | |� � } ª � | � �   � �� { � � � � �� � z� } z � � | y y { � } z� z� y� �� |�y � � � � � � � � � �© � � � �� � z � z } � � | � z � � � { � � {� �     � � �    | � z � } � y z } y � z } ~ � y z � � �   � �{ � � } z�� � �   } � � } z � � � � � } � �� � � �� � �   � { � ~ } z � { z � ~ ~ z � � }� | � � � } � � �  | � � � � z � { |� � } ª � | � � � � �� { � � � � �� � z� � � � � � } � � �� z { � } z � |y � � � � � � � � � �© � � � �
« ¬  ®̄ ° ± ² ® ³́ ¬ µ ¬ ¶ ·̧ ¹ ¹ º » ¼ ½ ¾ ¿À Á Â Ã Â Ä Å Æ Â Á Ç Ä È Ç É ÊË Ì Æ ÍÎ Ï Ë Ì É Ð ÍÑ Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ô Ù Ò Ó Ñ Ö Ó Ò Ú Ò Û Ü Ý Ö Þ Ü Ö Ó Ø Ô Ö Þ Ñ Ó Ò × Ü × Ñ Ü Þ Õß à áØ Ù Õ Ö Ó Ô âã Ô äã å æ ç á è

é ê ë ì í î ë ï ë ì ð ñ
ò ó ô õ ö ÷ ô ÷ ø ù ú ÷ ö ûü ý þ ÿ��� ��� � ��� �� �	
��

� � � � � �� � � � � ��� � � � � �  !" # $ % & ' "() * + , - ./0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 89: ; < < = > ? @A
m n o p B C D C E C F G H I JK D I L MN OP N Q Q Q RST U V W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _ [̀ ] a V Ub̂ W a W c \ c [ W [̀ V U d Y Z a W [ Z Z e c d fZ Y d X a g a Z â W W V _ [ \ d Y Z [ h i Zĵ W [̀ Z W V _ [ \ d Y Z Z [ h i Z U k X[̀ ]̀̂ X a W c a W l̂̀ _ V k â W \ ĝ U Y _ [ \ m S m n o V c [ m p m pT U V W X Y Z [ \ ]̂ _ _ [̀ ] a V Ub̂ W a W c \ c [ W [̀ V U d Y Z a W [ Z Z e c d fZ Y d X a g a Z â W W V _ [ \ d Y Z Z [ h i Zĵ W [̀ Z W V _ [ \ d Y Z Z [ h i Z U k X[̀ ]̀̂ X a W c a W l̂̀ _ V k â W \ ĝ U Y _ [ \ m S m n o V c [ m p m| � � } y � � � � y y z { � � �� ~ � � � } � � y z { y } z � � } | q ò r s ó q ò t û ú uv w 5 x 5 2 w 0 1 4 y w 6 8 z

q ö ú u ò { q ö | ò ó ò}~ ���� � }��� ��
� r u � n § ¦ o r � ¥ p� | } | � � } y � z ¢ � � � z � � � { y � z ¢ � � � z } ¤ � � z } ~� { � � } � � } � � } z � � � �   | } � � | � y � z ¢ � � � | � � � � y } z � | } � � | � � � y � z ¢ � � � | � � � � |� { � � � � � � � � � � } | � | y � � } | y } z � { � � � � � � � � } �   y � z ¢ � � � | � � � � |� � � | } � } � � �� �     | � � | y � � } y } z �     | � � � y � z ¢ � � � | � � � � |m n o p § � o p mw x � � } � � { z { � � � � � z } � � � � � � } � � | | � { � � { � � � � | } ª � � � � � � z } � { z � � � � | � z � � � { �y � z y { | } | � � ~ ~ { � { � | } � � � } � � � � � � } � �� � � � � � � } � � � | ~ } � } z � � � } ~ � � � � � } { �� � � � � y � � ��� � � � � { z ~ � � � � { � � { { ~ � � | � z � � � } z � � } � � y� y � � } � � � � � � �   � �   �� ~ � � } ~ � { � } � � } z ���     � � � � � | | � � ~ � � � | � { � � | � { � � � } ~ � � � { � } ª � � ~ � | � { � � � � � � � � � } �     � } � z� � { { ~ y � � � ��� � � � � � � � } |� � z � ~ � � �� � � ~ ~ z � � � � � } � z } | � { � � { � � � � � � � { � | � z � � � � { � y � � � | � { z� � � � � � � �

� � � � � �� � � � � � � � � � �

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Architect
Commercial Amusement, Outdoor'

NK1309
Arrow

NK1309
Arrow



� �� � � � � � � � ��   ¡ ¢ £ � ¤£ � ¥ � £ �   ¦ �

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

§̈ © § ª̈ © «¬ ª §̈  ®̄ ° ± ² ³́« © µ © ® ¶ § ©̈ ¬·  µ ©̧ ¹ ª̈ « © µ © ® ¶ § º © » ¹³ ³ ¼ ½ © · · ©̧̈ ¶ »̧ ¹̈ © © ¹° ¾̧  ¹ © ± ² ±¿ ¾ » ¹̧ µ  ® ® ©° ª ® À Á́ ² ³Â ¶ » ¹ ª Â ¹¬ º̈ Ã º ª Â ®  »̧ º  ¹ ¿§ ¿¬ Ä ± ² Á Å Ǣ ²Ç Á ± ¼ ²ª § § ®  Â ª » ¹¬· ¶̈ ©̧  ¹ © È̈ ¶ ¾ §°  » ÂÃ³̄̄̄ É̈ Ê ª »̧ ¹̈ © © ¹° ¾̧  ¹ ©̄́ ²« ª ® ® ª̧ ° ¹ Ë Ì Á ± ² ³Â ¶ » ¹ ª Â ¹¬ º̈ Ã ¹̈ ª µ ̧ §̈ ¾ © ¹ ¹§ ¿¬ Ä ± ³ Æ Å̄ À̄ Ç Ì ³ ± À ¾̧̈ µ © Ê ¶̈ ¬§̧ ¶ ¶ » ©̈ ª » « ª̧̧ ¶ Â  ª ¹ ©̧À ²̄ É Ê ©̧̧̈ ¹̈ © © ¹° ¾̧  ¹ © ³ ² ²© ¾ ® ©̧̧ ° ¹ © Ë ª̧ Ì ¼ ² À̄Â ¶ » ¹ ª Â ¹¬ º̈ Ã ©̈  Â̧ § § ¶ » ©̈ ° ¨Ã §Ã ®Ã ¸Ã§ ¿ ¬ Ä́ ³ Ì Å ¼́ ÁÇ Ǽ Ǽ· ̈ º̈ © È ̧ ¹̈ ª ¹  ¶ » » ¶Ã ³ ² ² Á Ǣ ² ²¾̧̈ µ © Ê §̈ © § ª̈ © « ª §̈  ® ± ² ³́
Í Î Ï Ð Ñ Ò Ó Ô Ð Õ Ö Î × Î ÏØ Ù Ú Û Û Ü Ý Þ ß Ý àá â ã ä ã å æ ç ã â è å é è ê ëì í ç îï ð ì í ê ñ îò ó ô õ ö ÷ ø ù õ ú ó ô ò ÷ ô ó û ó ü ý þ ÷ ÿ ý ÷ ô ù õ ÷ ÿ ò ô ó ø ý ø ò ý ÿ ö� � �ù ú ö ÷ ô õ �� õ �� � � � � 	


 � �  � � � � �  � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �  !"# $%& # &'( )& %*+,-.

/ 0 1 2 3 14 5 6 7 8 9:; < = > ? @ ABC D E F G H CIJ K L M N OPQ R S T U V W X YZ[ \ ] ] ^ _ ` ab
c d e f g h i h j h k l m n op i n q rs tu s v v v w

x y z { | } ~ � � � � � ~ � � � y x� � z � z � � � ~ z ~ � y x � | } � z ~ } } � � � �} | � { � � � } � � z z y � ~ � � | } ~ � � }� � z ~ � } z y � ~ � � | } } ~ � � } x � {� ~ � � � { � z � � z � � � � y � � � z � � � x | � ~ � � � � � � y � ~ � � �
x y z { | } ~ � � � � � ~ � � � y x� � z � z � � � ~ z ~ � y x � | } � z ~ } } � � � �} | � { � � � } � � z z y � ~ � � | } } ~ � � }� � z ~ � } z y � ~ � � | } } ~ � � } x � {� ~ � � � { � z � � z � � � � y � � � z � � � x | � ~ � � � � � � y � ~ � � �

̧ ¹ © § ® ª » ª § §̈ ¶ µ ª ®
x y z { | } ~ � � y � y z �� � z � z � � � ~ z ~ � y x � | } � z ~ } } � � � �} | � { � � � } � � z z y � ~ � } y z y z � � z � � � x � { � y � � z ~ � } � � �� � z ~ � } z y � ~ � } y z y z � � z � � � x � { � y � � z ~ � } � � �� ~ � � � { � z � � z � � � � y � � � z � � � x | � ~ � � � � � � y � ~ � � �

x y z { | } ~ � � y � y z �� � z � z � � � ~ z ~ � y x � | } � z ~ } } � � � �} | � { � � � } � � z z y � ~ � } y z y z � � z � � � x � { � y � � z ~ � } � � �� � z ~ � } z y � ~ � } y z y z � � z � � � x � { � y � � z ~ � } � � �� ~ � � � { � z � � z � � � � y � � � z � � � x | � ~ � � � � � � y � ~ � � �

c d e f � � e f c�� ¹ ¿ © ¹ ¿ ¶̈ ¶ ¾ È ¿ · ª̈ © ª ®  È » º © » ¹̧̧ ¿ ¶ � » ¶ » ¹ ¿ ̧ © Ë ¿  É  ¹ ª̈ © · ¶̈  ® ® ¾̧ ¹̈ ª ¹  ¶ »§ ¾̈ § ¶̧ ©̧ ª » « « ¶ » ¶ ¹̧ © ¹ ¹ ¿ © ª ®  È » º © » ¹Ã ª ®  È » º © » ¹ ̧ « © ¹ ©̈ º  » © « ª ¹ ¹  º © ¶ ··  » ª ® § ® ª ¹Ã± Ã ª Â Â ¶̈ «  » È ¹ ¶ · ® ¶ ¶ «  »̧ ¾̈ ª » Â ©̈ ª ¹ © º ª §° § ª » © ® Ǽ ³́ Ì Â ² ± ³ ² ·° « ª ¹ © « » ¶ µ © º É ©̈ ±°± ² ² Ì° ¹ ¿ ̧̧ ¾ É «  µ ̧  ¶ » ̧ ® ¶ Â ª ¹ © «  » � ¶ » © Ë ª » « ̧ » ¶ ¹ �  ¹ ¿  » ¹ ¿ © ³ ² ² Ê © ª̈· ® ¶ ¶ « § ® ª  »ÀÃ ¾ ¹  ®  ¹  ©̧ ° È̈ ª «  » È° ª » « «̈ ª  » ª È © ª̈ ©̧ ¿ ¶ � » ¶ » Â  µ  ® Â ¶ »̧ ¹̈ ¾ Â ¹  ¶ » § ® ª »̧ · ¶̈· ª Â  ®  ¹ Ê
c d e f �   e   c ¡ ¢ ¢   £ ¤�� §̈ ¶ § ¶̧ © « ¾̧ ©¬ ¹ ¿ © ª ¹ ©̈ ° É ¶ � ®  » È ª ® ® © Ê°  » « ¶ ¶̈ ª º ¾̧ © º © » ¹±Ã � ¶ »  » È¬ È É Ä È © » ©̈ ª ® É ¾̧  » ©̧̧ ÅÀÃ ® ¶ ¹ ª̈ © ª¬ §̈ ¶ ½ © Â ¹ ª̈ © ª¬ ³ ÌÃ Æ Æ ª ÂÃ Ä Ì Á̄ ° ¼́ ¼Ã Æ̧ · ÅÆ Ã §̈ ¶ § ¶̧ © «  º § ©̈ µ  ¶ ¾̧ ª̈ © ª¬ ´ Ã À Á ª ÂÃ Ä À ¼ À Á Æ ÆÃ Æ À̧ · Å Ä Æ ÌÃ ¥́ ÅÁÃ É ¾  ® «  » È ª̈ © ª¬ Â ¶ º º ©̈ Â  ª ®̈ © ¹ ª  ® É ¾  ® «  » È¦ Ì À° À À ²̧ ·¼Ã É ¾  ® «  » È ¿ ©  È ¿ ¹¬ Æ Á § ¹ ª ® ®ÌÃ · ® ¶ ¶̈ ¹ ¶ ª̈ © ª̈ ª ¹  ¶¬ ² Ã ³ ²´Ã § ª̈̈  » È §̈ ¶ µ  « © «¬ Æ ² À̧ § ª Â ©̧ Ä ³̧ § ª Â © § ©̈ ³́ ±̧ · Å© ©̈ ª ¾ ̈ © «¬ Æ ² À̧ § ª Â ©̧ Ä̧ © © ¹ ª É ® © · ¶̈º ¶̈ © « © ¹ ª  ® Å¯Ã ¿ ª » «  Â ª § § ª̈̈  » È¬ §̈ ¶ µ  « © «¬ ¯̧ § ª Â ©̧ © ©̈ ª ¾ ̈ © «̧̄ § ª Â ©̧

« f ¬ f � �¹̧ ª » « ª̈ « « ¾ ¹ Ê Â ¶ » Â̈ © ¹ © § ª µ  » È« ¶ ¹̧ § © Â  ·  Â ª ¹  ¶ » Â ¶ » Â̈ © ¹ © § ª µ  » ÈÂ ¶ » Â̈ © ¹ ©̧  « © � ª ®̈ § ª µ  » È§̈ ¶ § ©̈ ¹ Ê ®  » ©§ ª̈̈  » È Â ¶ ¾ » ¹¹̈ ª · ·  Â̧  È »§ ª  » ¹ © « ¹̈ ª · ·  Â ª̈̈ ¶ �̧¹̈ ª · ·  Â · ® ¶ � ® ª » © « ©̧  È » ª ¹  ¶ »
® � ¯ ° � ® � ± � � ²³ ´ V µ V S ´ Q R U ¶ ´ W Y ·

® � � ² � ¸ ® � ¹ � � �º» ¼½¾¿ À ºÁÂÃ ¼Ä
Å   £ Æ d � ¬ e   Ç « f¾̧ ©̧  � © § ª̈̈  » È̈ ª ¹  ¶ § ª̈̈  » È̈ © ª ¾ ̈ © «º ¶ µ  © ¹ ¿ © ª ¹ ©̈ ³ ° ³́ ²̧ © ª ¹̧ ³ § ª̈̈  » Ȩ̀ ¹ ª ® ® § ©̈ Æ̧ © ª ¹̧ ±̄ Á § ª̈̈  » Ȩ̀ ¹ ª ® ®̧É ¶ � ®  » È ³ ¼ ® ª » ©̧ Á̧ § ª Â ©̧ § ©̈ É ¶ � ®  » È ® ª » ©́ ² § ª̈̈  » Ȩ̀ ¹ ª ® ®̧ª º ¾̧ © º © » ¹ Á° Á ² ²̧ · ³̧ § ª Â © § ©̈ ± ² ²̧ · ±́ § ª̈̈  » Ȩ̀ ¹ ª ® ®̧

¶ � » ©̈ ¬³ ±̄ ² © » ¹ ©̈ ¹ ª  » º © » ¹° ® ® Â³ ±̄ ² � ¶ » « ©̈ � ¶̈ ® « «̈  µ ©° ¾̧  ¹ © ³ ± Æ ²ª̧ » º ª̈ Â ¶̧ ° ¹ © Ë ª̧ Ì́ ¼ ¼ ¼Â ¶ » ¹ ª Â ¹¬ º̈ Ã º  ¹ Â ¿ © ® ® ÂÃ ¶̈ É ©̈ ¹̧§ ¿ ¬ Ä Á ³ ± Å À Á ÀÇ Á́́ ¼

È É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ Ï Ð Ñ Ï Ë Ñ Ë Ï Ê È

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Architect
'Commercial Amusement, Outdoor'

NK1309
Arrow

NK1309
Arrow

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line

NK1309
Line



TITLE:

DATE:

JURISDICTION:

DRAWING BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SHEET NUMBER:

COMMENTS:

SEAL:

DEVELOPER:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

CONTACT: 

DATEREVISIONS

ENGINEER:

JOB/FILE NUMBER:

EVO ENTERTAINMENT

GROUP

1290 WONDER WORLD DRIVE

SUITE 1240

SAN MARCUS, TX 78666

Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö× Ø Ù Ø × Ú Õ Ô ÙÛ Ó Ü Ü Ü × Ú Ý Þ × Ü Õ Ù Þß Óà à à × áâã äå æ × å ç èé ê ë ì í î ï ð ñ òó íô õ ö ÷ ø ÷ùú û ç ü ä è ç ý ûú þ ÿ� �å æ ×Õ Ø Ø Ø � û � �å � è ×� þ ä è ç Ü Ø �� � � � � ü� 	 
 Ú Þ Ô � Õ� �  � � �� � � � �� � �� � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � � � �  �! " � #$
MITCHELL C. ROBERTS

% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( - ' . ' ) . ' ) + . ' / 0 , / ' . % & '( 0 ) ' . 1 2 ( 2 3 , + , / / 2 . ' 4 % 2 3 , 35( ' + , 5 + 0 * 6 , ' .7 ) ' 89 : ; < =% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( + . ' . ' * ' + ( ' / 5 3 . 2 , 2 % 2 + *. ' 1 2 ' - ) 0 . ) 3 ( ' ( 3 , * >?% & 2 ( / 3 4 0 @ ' , % 2 ( ) . ' * 2 @ 2 , + . > 2 ,, + % 0 . ' + , / 2 ( , 3 % + 5 2 , + *7 ( 2 A , ' / + , /( ' + * ' / / 3 4 0 @ ' , %

E
V

O
 E

N
T

E
R

T
A

IN
M

E
N

T
S

C
H

E
R

T
Z

, 
T

E
X

A
S

04/05/2018

TP

KCN

CITY OF SCHERTZ

NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

1075.001

SEAL:% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( - ' . ' ) . ' ) + . ' / 0 , / ' . % & '( 0 ) ' . 1 2 ( 2 3 , + , / / 2 . ' 4 % 2 3 , 35( ' + , 5 + 0 * 6 , ' .7 ) ' 89 : ; < =% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( + . ' . ' * ' + ( ' / 5 3 . 2 , 2 % 2 + *. ' 1 2 ' - ) 0 . ) 3 ( ' ( 3 , * >?% & 2 ( / 3 4 0 @ ' , % 2 ( ) . ' * 2 @ 2 , + . > 2 ,, + % 0 . ' + , / 2 ( ( 2 A , ' / + , /( ' + * ' / / 3 4 0 @ ' , %/ 2 (( ' + ' * 2 @+ *7' , %2 ( )+ 53 4 ) . '5 2 , +0 @ '' + ')5, %3 %/ / 33@ ' ,( , 3+ * ' /(+ , 3/

B C D C E F G G F D H I J F K C D L M C I NOP Q R S S R T U VW R X X Y X R T U Z Z [ R X X \ ] Q R S S R T U ]̂ U _S ]̀ R a T R X a b ]c [ ] R X U [ Vc R T̂ a T U [ S a b a T d e _ T̂ a U a _ Tf _ S R Y ] S a _̂ _ f _ T ] V ] R S f S _̀ f a T R X R e e ] Y U R T e ]gP Y X R T U Z Z [ R X X̀ ] ] Û _ U Z Y ] e a f a e R U a _ T Z R T̂R̀ ] S a e R T Z U R T̂ R Ŝ f _ S T h S Z ] S V Z U _ e i Z U R T̂ R Ŝ ZPjP Y X R T U Z Z [ R X X \ ] Z Y ] e à ] T k h R X a U VP Y X R T U Z Z [ R X X \ ]Z _ h T̂ c [ ] R X U [ V R T̂ b a d _ S _ h Zc Q ] X X \ S R T e [ ]̂ c R T̂]̂ T Z ] X V f _ X a R U ]̂ Q [ ] T a T X ] R fPlP [ ] a d [ U R T̂ Z Y S ] R̂̂ à ] T Z a _ T Z Z Y ] e a f a ]̂ S ] f ] S U _U [ ]̀ R a T \ _̂ V _ f U [ ] Y X R T U R T̂ T _ U f S _̀ \ S R T e [U a Y U _ U a YP a f R S R T d ] _ f Z a m ] a Z d a b ] T c T _ Y X R T UZ [ R X X \ ] R Z X R S d ] R Z U [ ]̀ R n à h̀ Z a m ] Z Y ] e a f a ]̂ PoP Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z Z [ R X X \ ] Z U S R a d [ U h T X ] Z Z _ U [ ] S Q a Z ]Z Y ] e a f a ]̂pP Y X R T U Z Z [ R X X \ ] Z h \ q ] e U U _ S ] b a ] Q \ V _ Q T ] S r ZS ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ]P _ Q T ] S r Z S ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ] Z [ R X X \ ]U [ ] Z _ X ] q ĥ d ] _ f U [ ] k h R X a U V R T̂ R e e ] Y U R \ a X a U V_ f̀ R U ] S a R X Z R T̂ Y X R e ]̀ ] T UPsP Y X R T U a T d Y X R T Z a T̂ a e R U ]̂ a R d S R̀̀ R U a e X _ e R U a _ T Z_ T X VP Z a U ] R̂ q h Z Ù ] T U Z _ f Y X R T U a T d̂ ] Z a d T R T̂S ] X _ e R U a _ T _ f Y X R T Ù R U ] S a R X a T Z U R X X ]̂ Y S a _ S U __ Q T ] S S ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ] r Z R Y Y S _ b R X Z [ R X X \ ]̂ _ T ]Q a U [ _ h U Y ] T R X U V _ S R̂̂ a U a _ T R X e _ Z U U _ _ Q T ] SPZ U R i ] Y X R T U X _ e R U a _ T Z R U Z a U ] R T̂ _ \ U R a T _ Q T ] SS ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ] r Z R Y Y S _ b R X Y S a _ S U _ Y X R T Ua T Z U R X X R U a _ TPtP Y X R e ] Y X R T U Z h Y S a d [ U R T̂ U h S T ]̂ Z _ U [ R U U [ ]̀ _ Z UR U U S R e U a b ] Z â ] a Z b a ] Q ]̂ PuP \ ] f R̀ a X a R S Q a U [ h T̂ ] S d S _ h T̂ h U a X a U a ] Z \ ] f _ S ]â d d a T dP U [ ] e _ T U S R e U _ S Z [ R X X \ ] f h X X VS ] Z Y _ T Z a \ X ] f _ S R X X̂ R̀ R d ] _ f h U a X a U V X a T ] ZPO vP Y S _ b â ] Z [ _ b ] Xw e h U U S ] T e [ R U Z [ S h \ \ ]̂ Z a T X R Q TR S ] R Z h T X ] Z Z _ U [ ] S Q a Z ] T _ U ]̂ P
O O P Y S _ b â ] j x U [ a e i T ] Z Z̀ h X e [ R U R X X Y X R T U Z R T̂Y X R T U a T d \ ]̂ ZP h̀ X e [̀ h Z U \ ] j x U [ a e i R U U à ] _ ff a T R X Q R X iw U [ S _ h d [P h̀ X e [ a T Z [ S h \ R T̂ U S ] ]Y X R T U a T d \ ]̂ Z Z [ R X X \ ] Y a T ] Z U S R Q h T X ] Z Z_ U [ ] S Q a Z ] T _ U ]̂ P h̀ X e [ a T d S _ h T̂ e _ b ] S \ ]̂ Z U _\ ] Z [ S ]̂̂ ]̂ [ R Ŝ Q _ _̂ h T X ] Z Z _ U [ ] S Q a Z ] T _ U ]̂ PO gP R̀ a T U ] T R T e ] Q _ S i Z [ R X X \ ] Y ] S f _ S̀ ]̂ h T U a X̂ R U ]_ f f a T R X R e e ] Y U R T e ] \ V _ Q T ] S r Z S ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ]PO jP e _ T U S R e U _ S r Z Y S a e ] Z Z [ R X X a T e X ĥ ] R X X X R \ _ S R T̂R̀ U ] S a R X T ] e ] Z Z R S V U _ e _̀ Y X ] U ] U [ ] Q _ S ic aP ]Ph̀ X e [ c Y X R T U a T dc Z _ a X̀ a nc Q _ _̂ R T̂ Q a S ] Z U R i a T dR̀ U ] S a R Xc ] U ePO lP k h R T U a U a ] Z T ] e ] Z Z R S V U _ e _̀ Y X ] U ] U [ ] Q _ S i _ TU [ ]̂ S R Q a T d Z [ R X X \ ] f h S T a Z [ ]̂ P k h R T U a U V] Z U à R U ] Z [ R b ] \ ] ] T̀ R̂ ] e R S ] f h X X Vc \ h U U [ ]_ Q T ] S r Z S ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ] R Z Z h̀ ] Z T _ X a R \ a X a U V f _ S_̀ a Z Z a _ T _ S ] S S _ S ZP [ a Z ] Z U à R U ] Z R S ] _ T X V R T R âf _ S e X R S a f a e R U a _ T _ f h T a U Z R T̂ R e [ ] e i f _ S U [ ]e _ T U S R e U _ S U _ e _̀ Y R S ] Q a U [ [ a Z _ Q T ] Z U à R U ] ZPâ f f ] S ] T e ] Z Z [ R X X \ ] \ S _ h d [ U U _ U [ ] R U U ] T U a _ T _ f_ Q T ] S r Z S ] Y S ] Z ] T U R U a b ]P T _ ] n U S R e _̀ Y ] T Z R U a _ TZ [ R X X \ ] R X X _ Q ]̂ f _ S ] n U S R k h R T U a U a ] Z T ] e ] Z Z R S VU _ e _̀ Y X ] U ] U [ ] Q _ S iPO oP Q [ ] S ] X R T̂ Z e R Y a T d R S ] R Z R̂ q _ a T d S R Z Z ]̂S a d [ U Z w _ fw Q R Vc Z h e [ R S ] R Z Z [ R X X \ ] e _ T Z â ] S ]̂Y R S U _ f U [ ] X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] R f _ S Y h S Y _ Z ] Z _ fR̀ a T U ] T R T e ]P R Z _ f e _̀ Y X ] U a _ T _ f Z a U ]à Y S _ b ]̀ ] T U Zc U [ ] Y S _ Y ] S U V _ Q T ] S Z [ R X X [ R b ] R Tà Y X a ]̂ ] R Z ]̀ ] T U _ f U [ ] S a d [ U w _ fw Q R V ] n U ] T̂ a T df S _̀ U [ ] Z a U ] U _ U [ ] S _ R̂ Y R b ]̀ ] T U a T _ Ŝ ] S U _e _̀ Y X ] U ] U [ ] S ] k h a S ]̂̀ R a T U ] T R T e ]PO pP R̀ R a T U ] T R T e ] a T Z Y ] e U a _ T _ f U S ] ] Z Q a X X \ ]Y ] S f _ S̀ ]̂ R f U ] S U Q _ f h X X d S _ Q a T d Z ] R Z _ T Z f S _̀U [ ]̂ R U ] _ f U [ ] f a T R X e _ T Z U S h e U a _ T a T Z Y ] e U a _ TPY S _ q ] e U _ Q T ] S Z R U U [ ] U à ] _ f U [ ]̀ R a T U ] T R T e ]a T Z Y ] e U a _ T R S ] S ] Z Y _ T Z a \ X ] f _ S _ Ŝ a T R T e ]e _̀ Y X a R T e ]PO sP e _ T U S R e U _ S U _̂ ] Z a d T w \ h a X̂ a S S a d R U a _ T Z V Z U ]̀ Pa S S a d R U a _ T [ ] R̂ Z U _ \ ] a T Z U R X X ]̂ f X h Z [ Q a U [ d S R̂ ]P

y z { | } ~ � � �� � � � � } � � { ~� �� �

G F D H I J F K C E C � � � E C � C D M I NZ a U ] X R T̂ Z e R Y ] W u U S ] ] Z Y ] S R e S ]O sP l l R e S ] Z� u� O o pP u pO o s U S ] ] Z S ] k h a S ]̂O o s U S ] ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂Z U S ] ] U f S _ T U R d ] X R T̂ Z e R Y ] W � O � U S ] ] Y ] S g v X fO v v X� g v X f� oo U S ] ] Z S ] k h a S ]̂o U S ] ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂X R T̂ Z e R Y ] R S ] RW à T à h̀ g v � X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] RO sP l l R e S ] Z� g v �� jP l tjP l t R e S ] Z � g v � � _ f X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] R S ] k h a S ]̂uP l R e S ] Z � o jP u O � � _ f X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] R Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂Y R S i a T d X _ UW à T à h̀ O v � X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] R� � O � Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Y ] S l v v Z f� � O � Z [ R̂ ]U S ] ] Y ] S o v X f R X _ T d Y ] S à ] U ] Sg s p c p t s Z f� O v �� g sc p p tP sg s c p p tP s Z f � O v � � _ f X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] R S ] k h a S ]̂l v u c o s v Z f � o jP u O � � _ f X R T̂ Z e R Y ]̂ R S ] R Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂g sc p p tP s Z f� l v v Z f� p uP O ss v Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z S ] k h a S ]̂s v Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂Y ] S à ] U ] S R W l v j X f� o v X f� tP v pu Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z S ] k h a S ]̂O s Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂Y ] S à ] U ] S \ W l t g X f� o v X f� uP p lO v Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z S ] k h a S ]̂O j Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂Y ] S à ] U ] S e W p l g X f� o v X f� O gP t lO j Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z S ] k h a S ]̂O t Z [ R̂ ] U S ] ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂U S ] ]̀ a U a d R U a _ T W R X X Y S _ U ] e U ]̂ U S ] ] Z Z [ R X X \ ]̀ a U a d R U ]̂ R U R O W O W \̂ [ a T e [ S R U a _f _ S ] b ] S V Y S _ U ] e U ]̂ U S ] ] Z S ]̀ _ b ]̂j j a T e [ ] Z S ]̀ _ b ]̂j o a T e [ ] Z Y S _ Y _ Z ]̂

L-1

LANDSCAPE PLAN( 4 + * ' 2 , 5 ' ' %�� � : � � � < �= � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   �¡ � �     � � � �   � � � � � � � � ¢ � £¢ ¤ � � � ¤ �   � � � � � � � ¥ �¡ � ¤ � � � � ¦� � � � ¥ � �   � � � ¤ � � §̈ ¡ � � � © � ª � � § � �¡ � «¬  ® � � �  ¨¢ ¤ � � � ¤ � � �̄ � � �¡ � �̄ � � � � § � � ¦� � � � ¥ � �   � � � ¤ � � §̈ ¡ � � � © � ª � � § � �¡ � «¬  ® � � �̈ °¤ �   ¤ � �   � � � � � � �¡ �   � � � � � � � �  � � � � ¥ � �   � � � ¤ � � §̈ ¡ � � � © � ª � � § � �¡ � «¬  ® � � � ° ±� ² � ¤ � � � � � � � � � � � � �   �¡ � �     � � � �   � � � ³ � � ¥ � � � � ª ¢ � £� � � £ � � �́ � ¥ � � � � �¡ � � ¦ � ¦ �  � � µ ± ® ² � µ ª � � µ ¶ ®¡ ¬¡ ¬ µ  ·� � �̄ © �   � � � � � �¡ � � � �¡ ¡ §̧ � � ¹ £ � ¤ ¥ � �  � � µ ± ® ² � µ ª � � µ ¶ ®¡ ¬¡ ¬ µ µ̈� � ¤ � � ¥ ² £ � � ¤   ¹ � ¤ � � � � � � �¡ � �̄ � � � � ª �  � � µ ± ® ² � µ ª � � µ ¶ ®¡ ¬¡ ¬  ¶̈ª � � ¤ � § � � © � � � � � � � � � � � � � �   �¡ � �     � � � �   � � � � � � ¥ � � � � ª ¢ � £� � � � � ¥ � � ¥ � � � � �¡ � � � � ¥ � � ª � � � £ � ¤ � ¹̈ ® ¥ � � · ± ®¡ ¬¡ ¬ ·º ±̈ ¶� � §¡ � � � § � � � � � � � � � � �   �¡ � �     � � � �   � � � � � � ¥ � � � � ª ¢ � £� £ � � § � � § � � � £ � � �¡ � � ¹̈ · »¡ ¡ � � �   ¤ § � ª � � � � � � § ° ¼º ° ± � ¹� � � § � � ª � � � § ¼ ¶º » ¶ » � ¹

½ ¾ ¿ À Á Â Ã Ä Å Æ Ç ¾ Å È É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ Ï Ð Ñ Ï Ò Ñ Ò Ï Ê È



TITLE:

DATE:

JURISDICTION:

DRAWING BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SHEET NUMBER:

COMMENTS:

SEAL:

DEVELOPER:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

CONTACT: 

DATEREVISIONS

ENGINEER:

JOB/FILE NUMBER:

EVO ENTERTAINMENT

GROUP

1290 WONDER WORLD DRIVE

SUITE 1240

SAN MARCUS, TX 78666

Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö× Ø Ù Ø × Ú Õ Ô ÙÛ Ó Ü Ü Ü × Ú Ý Þ × Ü Õ Ù Þß Óà à à × áâã äå æ × å ç èé ê ë ì í î ï ð ñ òó íô õ ö ÷ ø ÷ùú û ç ü ä è ç ý ûú þ ÿ� �å æ ×Õ Ø Ø Ø � û � �å � è ×� þ ä è ç Ü Ø �� � � � � ü� 	 
 Ú Þ Ô � Õ� �  � � �� � � � �� � �� � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � � � �  �! " � #$
MITCHELL C. ROBERTS

% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( - ' . ' ) . ' ) + . ' / 0 , / ' . % & '( 0 ) ' . 1 2 ( 2 3 , + , / / 2 . ' 4 % 2 3 , 35( ' + , 5 + 0 * 6 , ' .7 ) ' 89 : ; < =% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( + . ' . ' * ' + ( ' / 5 3 . 2 , 2 % 2 + *. ' 1 2 ' - ) 0 . ) 3 ( ' ( 3 , * >?% & 2 ( / 3 4 0 @ ' , % 2 ( ) . ' * 2 @ 2 , + . > 2 ,, + % 0 . ' + , / 2 ( , 3 % + 5 2 , + *7 ( 2 A , ' / + , /( ' + * ' / / 3 4 0 @ ' , %

E
V

O
 E

N
T

E
R

T
A

IN
M

E
N

T
S

C
H

E
R

T
Z

, 
T

E
X

A
S

04/05/2018

TP

KCN

CITY OF SCHERTZ

NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

1075.001

SEAL:% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( - ' . ' ) . ' ) + . ' / 0 , / ' . % & '( 0 ) ' . 1 2 ( 2 3 , + , / / 2 . ' 4 % 2 3 , 35( ' + , 5 + 0 * 6 , ' .7 ) ' 89 : ; < =% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( + . ' . ' * ' + ( ' / 5 3 . 2 , 2 % 2 + *. ' 1 2 ' - ) 0 . ) 3 ( ' ( 3 , * >?% & 2 ( / 3 4 0 @ ' , % 2 ( ) . ' * 2 @ 2 , + . > 2 ,, + % 0 . ' + , / 2 ( ( 2 A , ' / + , /( ' + * ' / / 3 4 0 @ ' , %/ 2 (( ' + ' * 2 @+ *7' , %2 ( )+ 53 4 ) . '5 2 , +0 @ '' + ')5, %3 %/ / 33@ ' ,( , 3+ * ' /(+ , 3/
y z { | } ~ � � � � � � � � } � � { ~� �

L-1.1

LANDSCAPE PLAN

5 3 . ) * + , % ( 4 & ' / 0 * '7 ( ' ' ( & ' ' % *Ó = ?
( 4 + * ' 2 , 5 ' ' %�� � : � � � < �= � � � � �

È É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ Ï Ð Ñ Ï Ò Ñ Ò Ï Ê È



TITLE:

DATE:

JURISDICTION:

DRAWING BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SHEET NUMBER:

COMMENTS:

SEAL:

DEVELOPER:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

CONTACT: 

DATEREVISIONS

ENGINEER:

JOB/FILE NUMBER:

EVO ENTERTAINMENT

GROUP

1290 WONDER WORLD DRIVE

SUITE 1240

SAN MARCUS, TX 78666

Ò Ó Ô Õ Ö× Ø Ù Ø × Ú Õ Ô ÙÛ Ó Ü Ü Ü × Ú Ý Þ × Ü Õ Ù Þß Óà à à × áâã äå æ × å ç èé ê ë ì í î ï ð ñ òó íô õ ö ÷ ø ÷ùú û ç ü ä è ç ý ûú þ ÿ� �å æ ×Õ Ø Ø Ø � û � �å � è ×� þ ä è ç Ü Ø �� � � � � ü� 	 
 Ú Þ Ô � Õ� �  � � �� � � � �� � �� � � � �� � � � � �� � � � � � � �  �! " � #$
MITCHELL C. ROBERTS

% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( - ' . ' ) . ' ) + . ' / 0 , / ' . % & '( 0 ) ' . 1 2 ( 2 3 , + , / / 2 . ' 4 % 2 3 , 35( ' + , 5 + 0 * 6 , ' .7 ) ' 89 : ; < =% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( + . ' . ' * ' + ( ' / 5 3 . 2 , 2 % 2 + *. ' 1 2 ' - ) 0 . ) 3 ( ' ( 3 , * >?% & 2 ( / 3 4 0 @ ' , % 2 ( ) . ' * 2 @ 2 , + . > 2 ,, + % 0 . ' + , / 2 ( , 3 % + 5 2 , + *7 ( 2 A , ' / + , /( ' + * ' / / 3 4 0 @ ' , %

E
V

O
 E

N
T

E
R

T
A

IN
M

E
N

T
S

C
H

E
R

T
Z

, 
T

E
X

A
S

04/05/2018

TP

KCN

CITY OF SCHERTZ

NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

1075.001

SEAL:% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( - ' . ' ) . ' ) + . ' / 0 , / ' . % & '( 0 ) ' . 1 2 ( 2 3 , + , / / 2 . ' 4 % 2 3 , 35( ' + , 5 + 0 * 6 , ' .7 ) ' 89 : ; < =% & ' ( ' ) * + , ( + . ' . ' * ' + ( ' / 5 3 . 2 , 2 % 2 + *. ' 1 2 ' - ) 0 . ) 3 ( ' ( 3 , * >?% & 2 ( / 3 4 0 @ ' , % 2 ( ) . ' * 2 @ 2 , + . > 2 ,, + % 0 . ' + , / 2 ( ( 2 A , ' / + , /( ' + * ' / / 3 4 0 @ ' , %/ 2 (( ' + ' * 2 @+ *7' , %2 ( )+ 53 4 ) . '5 2 , +0 @ '' + ')5, %3 %/ / 33@ ' ,( , 3+ * ' /(+ , 3/Ô Õ Ö Ö × Õ Ø Ô Ö Ù Ô Ú Ø Û·¡ ®̈Ü · ÝÞ ± ®
eß � � � àß � � � � � � � ß � � � � ß � � � � � � � Uß � � Yß � � � � � � � � � ß � � P Z� �� ß � � � ß � � � ß � � � � � � � � � � � � ß � � � � � � � � � � � � � � P

R̀ a T U R a T ] n a Z U a T dd S R̂ ] Q a U [ U [ ]U S ] ]Y S _ U ] e U a _ Tf ] T e ]h T X ] Z Z_ U [ ] S Q a Z ]a T̂ a e R U ]̂ _ T U [ ]Y X R T ZPg x n p r Z U ] ] X Y _ Z U Z_ S R Y Y S _ b ]̂ ] k h R XPo x U [ a e iX R V ] S _ f̀ h X e [P
T _ U ] Z WO w Z ] ] Z Y ] e a f a e R U a _ T Z f _ S R̂̂ a U a _ T R XU S ] ] Y S _ U ] e U a _ T S ] k h a S ]̀ ] T U ZPg w a f U [ ] S ] a Z T _ ] n a Z U a T d a S S a d R U a _ Tc Z ] ]Z Y ] e a f a e R U a _ T Z f _ S Q R U ] S a T dS ] k h a S ]̀ ] T U ZPj w T _ Y S h T a T d Z [ R X X \ ] Y ] S f _ S̀ ]̂] n e ] Y U \ V R Y Y S _ b ]̂ R S \ _ S a Z UPl w T _ ] k h a Ỳ ] T U Z [ R X X _ Y ] S R U ] a T Z â ]U [ ] Y S _ U ] e U a b ] f ] T e a T d a T e X ĥ a T dĥ S a T d f ] T e ] a T Z U R X X R U a _ T R T̂S ]̀ _ b R XPow Z ] ] Z a U ] Y S ] Y R S R U a _ T Y X R T f _ S R T V_̂̀ a f a e R U a _ T Z Q a U [ U [ ] U S ] ]Y S _ U ] e U a _ T R S ] RP

á â ã ä å æ çè å â é
tP o x n O O x Z a d TX R̀ a T R U ]̂ a TY X R Z U a e Z Y R e ]̂] b ] S V o v r R X _ T dU [ ] f ] T e ]P ê ë ì í î ï ë ð ð ñ ò ê î ó í ï ô ò î õ ö ÷ ø ùú û ü ý þ ú ÿ � � ü � � ü ü � ú ÿ þ ü

U S ] ] Y S _ U ] e U a _ Tf ] T e ]W [ a d [̂ ] T Z a U VY _ X V ] U [ V X ] T ] f ] T e a T dQ a U [ jP o x n O P o x_ Y ] T a T d Z� e _ X _ S w_ S R T d ]P Z U ] ] X Y _ Z U Za T Z U R X X ]̂ R U t r _P ePi ] ] Y _ h U U S ] ]Y S _ U ] e U a _ T R S ] R
5 ¹̄ Þ ¥ �Þ ¹̄ Þ � �   �Þ ± «

� � Õ � � × � 	 Û Ô Ú Û 
µ¡ ®̈Ü · ÝÞ ± ®� � � � ��· Þ � ² � ¤ � � � ² � � � � � � ¹ � ¥ � � �   � � ¢ ¤ � � � � £¬«Þ � � � � ¥ � � � ¹ � � � � � � � � ¹ � � ¹ ¤ � � ² � � � � ¢ ¤ � � �   � � � � � � � � � � § � � � ² � � § � � � � �¬� � � � � � � � � ² � � § ¥ � � ¬¤ � �  ±¡  ± ¥ � � � � � � ª  �̧̄ � � ² � � � � © � � � � �¬ j� r� � � à� � � à� � � � � � � � � � ß � � � � � � � P
� � � � � � � �¬®̈ ² � ª ²̄ ¼ ®̧ � § � � � ¤ � § Þ� � ¥ ¥ � § � � � � � � �   � � � © �� � � � � � � � � ¤ � ¹ � � � � ² � � � � �� � � � � � ¤ � � � § � � � ¤ � § � ² �� � � � � � � �¬ � � �   � ² � � � � � ª � �� � � � � � � � � � ¥ � � � ¥ ² � � £¬¥ � � � � � �   ¤ � � ² � � ªº � � ª ² � � £� �   ¥ � � � � � � � ¤ � § � ² � � � � �� � � � � � ¶ ® � � ¹ � � � � � � � � �� ² � ¤ �¬ § � � � � � © � �� �   ¥ � � �¬ ²̧ � � � ² �¥ � � � � � � ª ² � � � ² � � � � � �� � � ¦ ¹ � � � � §º ¥ � ¤ �̧ � � � �� � � ¤ � § � ² � � � � � � � � � � �� � � � � � � ² � � � � �¬µ ® � � £ � � � ¹   ¤ � � ² ¬� �   � � � � ² � � · ® � ¹  ¤ � � ² � � � � ¥ � ¹ � � � �� � � �¬ � � � � � � � � � � �� � � § � � � ¥ � ¥ � � � ¹ � �� £ ¥ � � ¹   ¤ � � ² ¬� � � � � � � � � � � � �� � �̄ � � � � � ª � �� � � �   ¥ � � � � §� � � �¬� � � ¥ � � � § � � � ¹� � � � � � � § � � � �¬ �̄ � � � � � ª � � � �¬¹ � � � � ² � § ª � � § � ¬� ² � ¤ �¬

á â ã ä å æ ç è å â é � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� �  ! " � # $ %  & $   ' � # "  

3 ± ± ± · Þ ± ·

Ô Õ Ö Ö × � 	 Û Ô Ú Û 
·¡ « ®Ü · ÝÞ ± ®
U _ Y _ f S _ _ U \ R X XZ [ R X X \ ] f X h Z [ Q a U [f a T a Z [ ]̂ d S R̂ ]PU S h T i e R X a Y ] S Z [ R X X]̀ ] U R T Z a m p v e h S S ] T U]̂ a U a _ T f _ S S _ _ U \ R X XZ a m ]PS _ _ U \ R X X̀ _̂ a f a ]̂ R ZS ] k h a S ]̂ P] n a Z U a T d Z _ a XPZ X _ Y ] Z â ] Z _ f X _ _ Z ] T ]̂Z _ a XP

Y S a _ S U _̀ h X e [ a T dc X a d [ U X VU R̀ Y Z _ a X R S _ h T̂ U [ ] S _ _ U\ R X X a T p x X a f U Z U _ \ S R e ] U S ] ]P_̂ T _ U _ b ] S e _̀ Y R e UPQ [ ] T U [ ] Y X R T U a T d [ _ X ] [ R Z\ ] ] T \ R e i f a X X ]̂ c Y _ h S Q R U ] SR S _ h T̂ U [ ] S _ _ U \ R X X U _Z ] U U X ] U [ ] Z _ a XPj x X R V ] S _ f̀ h X e [PT _̀ _ S ] U [ R T O x _ f̀ h X e [ _ TU _ Y _ f S _ _ U \ R X XP � Z ] ] T _ U ] Z_ T X R T̂ Z e R Y ] Y X R T f _ S U V Y ]_ f̀ h X e [ �P\ _ U U _̀ _ f S _ _ U \ R X XS ] Z U Z _ T ] n a Z U a T d _ SS ] e _̀ Y R e U ]̂ Z _ a XP
e ] T U S R X X ] R̂ ] SP

á â ã ä å æ ç è å â éS _ h T̂ w U _ Y Y ]̂Z _ a X \ ] S̀ l x [ a d [ n t xQ â ] R \ _ b ] S _ _ U \ R X XZ h S f R e ] Z [ R X X \ ]e _ T Z U S h e U ]̂ R S _ h T̂U [ ] S _ _ U \ R X XP \ ] S̀Z [ R X X \ ] d a T R U S _ _ U \ R X XY ] S a Y [ ] S VP f a T a Z [ ]̂ d S R̂ ]Pµ¡ ¡ ¡ (¡ ¡ ¡ (¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ )¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¡ ¬ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� �  ! " � # $ %  & $   ' � # "  
X _ _ Z ] T R X X [ R Ŝ Y R TP h Z ] * +* +Y X R T U a T d̀ a n Q a U [ T R U a b ]Z _ a XPT _ U ] Z WO w U S ] ] Z Z [ R X X \ ] _ f Z Y ] e à ] Tk h R X a U VPg w Z ] ] Z Y ] e a f a e R U a _ T Z f _ Sf h S U [ ] S S ] k h a S ]̀ ] T U ZS ] X R U ]̂ U _ U [ a Ẑ ] U R a XP

4 ± ± ± ±Þ ± ·

 Õ Ø � Û , Ù Ø - Ö Õµ¡ ®̈Ü · ÝÞ ± ®� � � � � �· Þ � � � ¥ � � � � � � ª � � ª � � § ¹ � � ª � � ¤ � § � � © � � � ¥ � � � � �º � � ³ �º � � § � ¥ � � � � ª § �   � � � � � �¬«Þ �   � � � � � � � � � . / 0 1 2 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 9 7 : 2 1 ; 9 2 1 < = >? < @? 1 2 > 1 ; = 7 8 4 2 1 1 7 A 9 3 3 @ 4 2 B @ 8 4 2 C 9 2 4 D 1 = 5 B > 4 2 4 > 9= 1 2 E 9 3 D 1 = > B 7 B 1 = B = D 1 = 7 9 B = 4 2 @ 2 1 > < D 7 B 1 = 9 = > 9 2 4 9 D D 4 @ 7 9 A 3 4 8 1 ; 4 F 4 2 7 8 4 C 5 8 1 < 3 > A 4 4 3 B E B = 9 7 4 > 9 7 7 8 47 B E 4 1 G @ 3 9 = 7 B = :H 2 1 1 7 5 1 = 7 8 4 @ 4 2 B @ 4 2 8 C D 9 = A 4 2 4 E 1 F 4 > 9 7 7 8 4 7 B E 4 1 G @ 3 9 = 7 B = :H I 5 4 4 2 1 1 7 A 9 3 3 5 8 9 F B = : D 1 = 7 9 B = 4 2 > 4 7 9 B 3 6HµÞ � � � � � � � � � � � � � ¤ � § � � � � � � � � � ¹ � � � ² ª � � ¤ � § � � © � � ¥ � � � � � �   ¤ � � ² � � ª ¬JK L çá â ã ä å æ ç è å â é ¥ � © �   � � �¬� ² � � § § � § ² � � §̧ � � §   ¤ � � ² ¬ª � � ¤ � § � � © � � ¥ � � � � � � � � �� � � � � ª ¤ � � � � £ � ¥ � � � § ¬ �̄ � � � � � ª � � � �¬¼ ® � ¹   � § � ¹ � � § � � � � � � � � � §̧ � � ²  ±¡  ±   �̄ � ¹®̈ ¥ � � � � � � ª � � � � � � §̈ ® � � � � © � � � � �¬« Þ µ ® � ² � � ¦ � � £ � � � ¹� ² � � § § � § ² � � §̧ � � §   ¤ � � ²¬¹ � � � � ² � § ª � � § � ¬

� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� �  ! " � # $ %  & $   ' � # "  

2 ± ± ± µÞ ± ·

� Ø , Ú Û � Ô 	 � � 	 Ô Ú Ø Û� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �� �  ! " � # $ %  & $   ' � # "  M N O PQ R M S O T U U S N V S N O W T O O N X N Y S N R U T M VZ N N O U T [ P Z R S U P \ P U ] R O W O N X N Y X T \ P̂ P M O_S N V V R M̀ X Z N a P V b Z PQc _ X Z P X T Z P Y R M R S Ẁ Z T V P d T S X P Z S X P a R Y R a T O R N M S ef_ T X X U [ U R̂ Pg Y P Z O R U R h P Zg Z N O Ni O R U d T S X P Z S N R U O P S O ej_ U T [ S N Vg ] T O P Z O W N Z N b̀ W U [Z N b̀ Ẁ Z T V PY R M R S Ẁ Z T V PS N R Ug Z N N O U T [ P Z k lf lc i cg f l S b m̀ Z T V P
U T ] M T Z P T a b U O R \ T O P V S N R UR̂ X N Z O P V O N X S N R US N V cg f l P V̀ P Ŝ N N O W T M VX T Z T U U P U ] R O W X T \ P̂ P M OX T \ P V T Z P T

1 ± ± ± «Þ ± ·

L-2

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

È É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ Ï Ð Ñ Ï Ò Ñ Ò Ï Ê È



TITLE:

DATE:

JURISDICTION:

DRAWING BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SHEET NUMBER:

COMMENTS:

SEAL:

DEVELOPER:

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

CONTACT: 

DATEREVISIONS

ENGINEER:

JOB/FILE NUMBER:

EVO ENTERTAINMENT

GROUP

1290 WONDER WORLD DRIVE

SUITE 1240

SAN MARCUS, TX 78666

n o p q rs t u t s v q p uw o x x x s v y z s x q u z{ o| | | s }~� �� � s � � �� � � � � � � � � �� �� � � � � ��� � � � � � � � �� � �� �� � sq t t t � � �  � ¡ � s¡ � � � � x t ¢£   ¤ ¤   �� ¥ ¦ v z p ¢ q§̈ ©̈ ª «¬  ®̄ °± ® ²¬ ³́̄ µ± ° ³ ¶ · ¬̧́ ¬ ¹ º ® » ¼̄ ½ ¾ ³ ¿À

MITCHELL C. ROBERTS

E
V

O
 E

N
T

E
R

T
A

IN
M

E
N

T
S

C
H

E
R

T
Z

, 
T

E
X

A
S

04/05/2018

TP

FGI

CITY OF SCHERTZ

NOT RELEASED FOR CONSTRUCTION

04/25/2018

1075.001

CITY COMMENTS

Á Â Ã Ã Ä Â Å Á Ã Æ Á Ç Å È È Å Á Ã É ÊË Ì Í Î Ï Ð Î Ï Ñ Î Ì Ï Ï ÒÓ Î Ì Ï Ï Ò Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ù Õ Ñ Ú Ô Ú Ï Î Û Ï Ï Ø Ü Ý Õ Ø Ñ Þ Ï Ò Ò Î Ô Õ Ø ß à ÝÔ Ï Ì × Î Õ Ù Ï Î Ì Ï Ï ÒÓ Î Ì Ï Ï Ò Ô Õ Ö × Ø Ù Õ Ñ Ú Ô Ù Ì Ï Õ Î Ï Ì Î Ô Õ Ø Í Ì Ï á â Õ Þ Î Í ß à Ýãä Õ Þ Þ Î Ì Ï Ï Ò Ò Ô Õ Þ Þ Ú Ï Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Î Ï Ñ Ú å Õ æ Ï Ø Ð Ïç æ Ì Õ è Ï Í Ì Ú Í é Ð Í Ø Ò Î Ì â Ð Î Ï ÑÕ Ì Í â Ø Ñ Î Ô Ï Ñ Ì × Ë Þ × Ø Ï Í æ Î Ô Ï Ë Ì Ï Ò Ï Ì Ö Ï Ñ Î Ì Ï Ïä Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Î × Í Ø è Ï Õ Ò â Ì Ï Ò è Õ å Ø Í ÎÚ Ï Ì Ï è Í Ö Ï Ñ â Ø Î × Þ Ð Í Ø Ò Î Ì â Ð Î × Í Ø × Ò Ð Í è Ë Þ Ï Î Ïäßä Õ è × Ø × è â è Í æ Î Ô Ì Ï Ï × Ø Ð Ô Ï Ò ê ë Ý ì Í æ è â Þ Ð Ô Í Ì Ð Í è Ë Í Ò Î Ò Ô Õ Þ Þ Ú Ï Ò Ë Ì Ï Õ ÑÚ Ï Ø Ï Õ Î Ô Î Ô Ï Ñ Ì × Ë Þ × Ø Ï Í æ Î Ô Ï Ë Ì Ï Ò Ï Ì Ö Ï Ñ Î Ì Ï Ïäëä Ø Í Ë Ï Ì Ò Í Ø Ò Ô Õ Þ Þ Ï é Ð Õ Ö Õ Î Ï Õ Ø å Ñ × Î Ð Ô Ï Òç Î â Ø Ø Ï Þ Òç Í Ì Î Ì Ï Ø Ð Ô Ï Òç Ë Þ Õ Ð Ï Õ Ø åË Õ Ö × Ø Ù è Õ Î Ï Ì × Õ Þ Í Ì Ë Þ Õ Ð Ï Õ Ø å Ñ Ì × Ö Ï Í Ì Ë Õ Ì í × Ø Ù Õ Ì Ï Õ Û × Î Ô × Ø Î Ô Ï Ñ Ì × Ë Þ × Ø Ï Í æÕ Ø å Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Î Ï Ñ Í Ì Ô Ï Ì × Î Õ Ù Ï Î Ì Ï Ï Û × Î Ô Í â Î Ë Ì × Í Ì Û Ì × Î Î Ï Ø Õ Ë Ë Ì Í Ö Õ Þ Í æ Î Ô ÏÐ × Î å è Õ Ø Õ Ù Ï Ì Í Ì Ô × Ò î Ô Ï Ì Ñ Ï Ò × Ù Ø Ï Ï Õ Î Î Ô Ï Î × è Ï Í æ Ò × Î Ï Ë Þ Õ Ø Õ Ë Ë Ì Í Ö Õ Þäàä Ø Í Ë Ï Ì Ò Í Ø Ò Ô Õ Þ Þ Õ Î Î Õ Ð Ô Õ Ø å Ì Í Ë Ïç Û × Ì Ïç Ø Õ × Þ Òç Õ Ñ Ö Ï Ì Î × Ò × Ø Ù Ë Í Ò Î Ï Ì Ò Í ÌÍ Î Ô Ï Ì Ð Í Ø Î Ì × Ö Õ Ø Ð Ï Î Í Õ Ø å Ë Ì Í Î Ï Ð Î Ï Ñ Í Ì Ô Ï Ì × Î Õ Ù Ï Î Ì Ï Ïäïä × æ Õ Ø å Í Õ í Î Ì Ï Ï × Ò Û Í â Ø Ñ Ï Ñ Ú å × Ø Î Ï Ø Î × Í Ø Õ Þ Ñ Õ è Õ Ù Ï Í Ì Ë Ì â Ø × Ø Ù Í Ì Õ Ò ÕÌ Ï Ò â Þ Î Í æ Ø Õ Î â Ì Õ Þ Ð Õ â Ò Ï Òç Î Ô Ï Ñ Õ è Õ Ù Ï Ñ Õ Ì Ï Õ Ò Ô Õ Þ Þ Ú Ï × è è Ï Ñ × Õ Î Ï Þ å Î Ì Ï Õ Î Ï ÑÛ × Î Ô Î Ì Ï Ï Û Í â Ø Ñ Ñ Ì Ï Ò Ò × Ø Ùäðä Õ Þ Þ Ø Ï Ð Ï Ò Ò Õ Ì å Õ Ø Ñ Ì Ï Õ Ò Í Ø Õ Ú Þ Ï Ï æ æ Í Ì Î Ò Ò Ô Õ Þ Þ Ú Ï Ù × Ö Ï Ø Ñ â Ì × Ø Ù Î Ô ÏË Ï Ì è × Î Î Ï Ñ Ì Ï è Í Ö Õ Þ Í æ Õ Ø å Î Ì Ï Ï Ò Î Í â Î × Þ × ñ Ï Ú Ï Ò Î í Ø Í Û Ø Ë Ì Õ Ð Î × Ð Ï Ò Î ÍË Ì Ï Ö Ï Ø Î Î Ô Ï Ò Ë Ì Ï Õ Ñ Í æ Í Õ í Û × Þ Î Ñ × Ò Ï Õ Ò Ï Î Í Õ Ø å Í Î Ô Ï Ì Ò â Ì Ì Í â Ø Ñ × Ø Ù Î Ì Ï Ï Òäò ó ô õ ô ö ÷ õ ô ø ù ô ù ú û ü ý þ ü ÿ � ô þ ü � � ý ü ü õ þ ü ü ô ù � ü ù õ ø þ � õ ÷ � � ü � ü � ø � �	
 � � �  � � � � 
 � � �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �  ! " #  $ % & � ' ( � ! )*+ , -. / / + * - % ( 0 � ( 1 ( ' 2 � " 3  � �4 -. 5 6+ * - % ( 0 � ( 1 ( ' 2 � " 3  � � ) )/ ,+ , -. 5 6+ * - 7 �  ( " 2 0 � 6 8 / 7 �  ( " 2 0 � / 8 / 9 � � ( " ( # � 2 :; � ' < � !=  � ! �  > � � 1 #  ? ( " ( 0 2 " ( # � ) ) )@ � A B C � D E F � � � F C � D @ � A B C � D E F � � � F C � D @ � A B C � D E F � � � F C � D @ � A B C � D E F � � � F C � D @ � A B C � D E F � � � F C � D E F � � � F C � DG H � D � F I � J � A � K LM N � � O P � K � I � J � A � K LQ R P � � � � S �T R � � U V � F F W I � J � A � K LX Y P A � Z � �[ E � F � � A A � B \� P V] � B K] \̂ � S � � _� B K � Z � \ � S � � V W � � K � � B F W _`a b c b a d b ef ga b b h i a b j k lm h n k h j b b h c a i i h o a i h b p h l i m q i m b a b r s la b j b m h c e b c pa l t b e l m c b p h l i m u v f v w u i x h n b y z {|} l h l~ k h l i m �� � x i a c l ~ m l x l p k m h ha b b c t b � i � j l m l j s j o a b c b a d k h l i m a b r s la b j b m h c � u� � x i a n b a l h k ~ b ha b b c t b � i � � � � � o a b c b a d k h l i m� � j k � � c o b p l b c� { i m e k � l k� � b e t s e� g� | } i s m h k lm � k s a b �� g� | ` b a c l j j i m � � k � h n i a m � ` i c c s j n k � f h n b c b k a b j l h l ~ k h b e k h �� � x i a � b a l h k ~ b ga b b c� � � c n b � s m l o b a � � s l c k p n b� } b c r s l h b� � a l q i m k � c n� � k p � t b a a � o a i h b p h b e k h � � � e t n k m e j l h l ~ k h b e k h �� � x i a n b a l h k ~ b ha b b c� � � } l h l ~ k h l i m ga b b c� y m o a i h b p h b ef c l q b e ha b b c h i t b s c b e x i a j l h l ~ k h l i m p k � p s � k h l i m c � c s t ha k p h l m p n b c xa i j j l h l~ k h l i m i � b e

Æ Ç Á � � Ä Ä Â Å � � �
� �� � � � � � � � ��   ¡ ¢   � � £  � � ¤ �   � � ¥ � � L-3

TREE PRESERVATION PLAN

È É Ê Ë Ì ÍÎ Ï Ð Ñ Ï Ò Ñ Ò Ï Ê È



P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.

P.J.P.J.

P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J. P.J.

KEYNOTE A5-01KEYNOTE A5-03

MS-01

MS-02 MS-02 MS-02MS-02 MS-02MS-02MS-02 MS-02 MS-02 MS-02 MS-02MS-02 MS-02 PT-22 MS-02

MS-01 MS-01

MATERIAL CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL WALL AREA : 17,070 SF (100%)
MASONRY VENEER : 13,595 SF (79%)
PAINTED TILT WALL : 3,475 SF (21%)

MS-01 MS-01

P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.

P.J. P.J. P.J.

FC-01 FC-01 FC-01

PT-21

MS-01

PT-22 MS-02

PT-21

KEYNOTE A5-03

KEYNOTE A5-03

KEYNOTE A5-06 KEYNOTE A5-06 KEYNOTE A5-06 KEYNOTE A5-06

MS-01MS-01 MS-01 MS-01

PT-22

MATERIAL CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL WALL AREA : 6,200 SF (100%)
MASONRY VENEER : 5,145SF (83%)
PAINTED TILT WALL : 1,055 SF (17%)

P.J. P.J.

P.J. P.J.

P.J.P.J.P.J.

P.J.P.J.

FC-01

C.J. P.J.C.J.

PT-21 FC-01 FC-01 PT-22FC-01

PT-22
MS-02 MS-02 MS-02

MS-02

MS-02
MS-02

KEYNOTE A5-01

KEYNOTE A5-01 KEYNOTE A5-01

KEYNOTE A5-03

KEYNOTE A5-04 KEYNOTE A5-04

T.O. LOWEST ROOF

GLAZING CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL WALL AREA (TO LOWEST ROOF) : 12,830 SF
REQUIRED GLAZING (30%) : 3,849SF
SOUTH ELEV. PROVIDED GLAZING (30%) : 3,855 SF

MS-02MS-02 MS-02 MS-01 MS-01 MS-01

KEYNOTE A5-03

MATERIAL CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL WALL AREA : 12,398 SF (100%)
MASONRY VENEER : 6,781SF (55%)
PAINTED TILT WALL : 1,885 SF (15%)
FIBER CEMENT PANEL : 2,842 SF (23%)
PAINTED STUCCO : 890 SF (7%)

KEYNOTE A5-02 KEYNOTE A5-02 KEYNOTE A5-02KEYNOTE A5-02KEYNOTE A5-02 KEYNOTE A5-02

KEYNOTE A5-05 KEYNOTE A5-05

P.J. P.J. P.J.

P.J.P.J.P.J.P.J.

P.J. P.J. P.J.

PT-22

MS-02 MS-02MS-02MS-02

PT-22

MS-02

KEYNOTE A5-03

KEYNOTE A5-03

KEYNOTE A5-03

PT-21

KEYNOTE A5-04

KEYNOTE A5-06KEYNOTE A5-06KEYNOTE A5-06KEYNOTE A5-06

MATERIAL CALCULATIONS:

TOTAL WALL AREA : 6,720 SF (100%)
MASONRY VENEER : 4,570SF (68%)
PAINTED TILT WALL : 2,150 SF (32%)

GLAZING CALCULATIONS:

REQUIRED GLAZING : NONE
PROVIDED GLAZING : 380 SF

MS-01

01 'P.J.' INDICATES CENTERLINE OF PANEL JOINT PER STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS. CAULK ALL JOINTS.

02 'C.J.' INDICATES CONTROL JOINT BETWEEN DISSIMILAR WALL ASSEMBLIES.

03 SEAL ALL EXTERIOR PENETRATIONS AND JOINTS WITH CAULK TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL COLOR. INTEGRALLY 
COLORED CAULK SHALL MATCH ADJACENT WALL COLOR. SUBMIT COLOR SAMPLES TO ARCHITECT TO COORDINATE 
COLOR SELECTIONS.

04 EXTEND FINISHES BEHIND ALL SIGNAGE

05 PAINT FACES OF DOORS AND FRAME TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL COLOR.

06 ALL PREFINISHED METAL COPING  AND FLASHING TO MATCH PT-21

07 ALL LINES SHOWN NOT CALLED TO BE PANEL OR CONTROL JOINTS ARE REVEALS PER 

A5-01 SIGNAGE SUPPLIED AND INSTALLED BY OWNER'S VENDOR. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE POWER AND BLOCKING.

A5-02 FALSE WINDOW PER

A5-03 LED STRIP NEON LIGHTING PER ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.

A5-04 PAINT ALL EXPOSED FACES OF CANOPY AND TRELLIS STRUCTURE PT-21

A5-05 POSTER CASE PER

A5-06 PREFINISHED METAL CONDUCTOR, DOWNSPOUT AND OVERFLOW TRIM TO MATCH COPING.

ELEVATION_A ELEVATION_B ELEVATION_C

MS-02

FC-01

MS-02

KEYNOTE A5-03

SCREEN PER 
VENDOR

P.J.

PT-22
PT-21

CONCRETE 
TILT WALL

UNISTRUT BLOCKING. CUT 1" SHORT 
OF EACH SIDE OF POSTER CASE AND 
PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL

UNISTRUT BLOCKING. CUT 1" SHORT 
OF EACH SIDE OF POSTER CASE AND 
PAINT TO MATCH ADJACENT WALL

POSTER CASE BY VENDOR. 
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE 
BLOCKING AND POWER

P
E

R
 E

LE
V

A
T

IO
N

SEALANT

MANUFACTURER'S CLOSURE AS PROVIDED.  
IF CLOSURE IS PROVIDED, INSTALL 
PREFINISHED METAL CLOSURE WITH DRIP 
EDGE. FINISH TO MATCH BUILDING COPING

1/4" TEMPERED SPANDRAL GLAZING ADHERED TO 
FACE OF TILT WALL. SEAL PERIMETER OF GLAZING

PREFINISHED METAL FRAME. COLOR TO MATCH 
STOREFRONT SYSTEM

THIN BRICK VENEER

SEALANT AT 
PERIMETER 
OF FRAME

LIGHT GRAY SPANDRAL GLAZING

PREFINISHED METAL FRAME. 
COLOR TO MATCH STOREFRONT.

 1/16" = 1'-0"3
NORTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION

 1/16" = 1'-0"5
EAST EXTERIOR ELEVATION

 1/16" = 1'-0"6
SOUTH EXTERIOR ELEVATION

 1/16" = 1'-0"4
WEST EXTERIOR ELEVATION

 12" = 1'-0"

GENERAL NOTES

 12" = 1'-0"

KEYNOTES
2

1 1/16" = 1'-0"7
PATIO EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

 12" = 1'-0"8
REVEAL PROFILES

 1" = 1'-0"9
POSTER CASE MOUNTING

 3" = 1'-0"1
FALSE WINDOW SECTION

 1/4" = 1'-0"2
FALSE WINDOW ELEVATION

¦§¨©ª« ¬®¯°¯°¨¦



!(

U

U

U

U

U

U
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

Comal
County

Guadalupe

County
78032

MUEHL
FRANCES

389410

LOCK AWAY STORAGE

SCHERTZ LLC

78020
BEDSTONE LLC

146051
HERRMANN AUSTIN A

TRUST OF 2010

68324
CITY OF

SCHERTZ

78029
HARTMANN LAND &

CATTLE CO LTD

147296
SCHERTZ CIBOLO

UNIVERSAL CITY ISD 68332
WALLECK

ALICE

68316
DENSBERGER

HAROLD J

68296
DENSBERGER

HAROLD J

68294
DENSBERGER

HAROLD J

68319
OTT ELGIN ESTATE

68321
OTT ELGIN ESTATE

68314

SAN ANTONIO 1

LTD PRTNRSHP

& S A 3 LTD P
68330

TUDYK
JOSEPH B JR

78048
SEWELL SUSAN

A & DAVID L

78047
KRAFT

SANDRA K

400975
DANIELS

PAUL

68313
SAN ANTONIO 1
LTD PRTNRSHP

& S A 3 LTD P

68170
BUSSEY'S

LTD

171722
CROMWELL STREET LLC

62840
VOIGT M & KLABUNDE M
HARTMANN L&C CO LTD

68317
SCHERTZ BLDG LTD C/O
MARY ANN MC KENZIE

68297

SCHERTZ BLDG LTD C/O

MARY ANN MC KENZIE

78056
SCHERTZ

BUILDING LTD

78040
SCHERTZ

BUILDING LTD

78049
KRAFT EDNA

ESTATE

68174
BUSSEY'S

LTD

68327
CARRILLO

RON & CLARE

114080

CARRILLO RONALDO

& CLARE M

114083
WOMACK TRAWICK

& NANCY A

68323
OTT ELGIN ESTATE

171720
1290

ENTERTAINMENT LLC

3"WL

12" WL

12" WL

12"
WL

12" W
L

12" WL

12" WL

12" W
L

3" WL
12" WL

12" WL

12" WL

8" WL

2" WL

16" WL

12" WL

2" WL

16" WL

12" W
L

12" WL

1 1/2" W
L

12" WL

8" WL

20" WL

1 1/2" WL

1 1/2" W
L

8" WL

8" WL

2" W
L

CIBOLO VALLEY DR

FM 2252

HOLLY LN

TULIP ST

PECAN ST

PINE ST

IH 35
 N

ROSE DR

SUMMIT DR

HOPE LN

RIPPS-KREUSLER

IH 35
 N ACCESS RD

PARK DR

VISTA DR

IH 35
 N ACCESS RD

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

IH 35
 N RAMP

IH 35
 N ACCESS RD

IH 35
 N ACCESS RD

PVT RD AT 18905 IH 35 N

IH 35
 N

PVT RD AT 18738 IH 35 N DEN-OTT HILL

(90' ROW)'

Secondary Arterial

(CIBOLO VALLEY DR)

(90' ROW)' Secondary

Arterial (OLD

WIEDERSTEIN RD)

(120' - 1
30'

ROW)' Principal

Arterial (FM 2252)

(70' ROW)' Planned

Commercial

Collector A (EAST

& WEST CONNECTOR)

(90' ROW)' Planned

Secondary Arterial (NORTH

& SOUTH CONNECTOR)

(25
0' R

OW)'

Free
way

(IH 35
 N)

(90' ROW)' Planned

Secondary Arterial (NORTH

& SOUTH CONNECTOR)
(90' ROW)' Planned

Secondary Arterial

(EAST & WEST CONNECTOR)

(70
' R

OW
)' P

lan
ne

d
Re

sid
en

tia
l C

olle
cto

r

(EA
ST

 & 
WE

ST
 CO

NN
EC

TO
R)

4 1 Inch = 250 FeetWIEDERSTEIN RANCH
0 250 500 750 1,000125

Feet

<all other values>
Highways
Major Roads
Minor Roads
Other Cities

Schertz Gravity
Schertz Pressure
Neighboring Gravity
Private Pressure

200' Buffer
Schertz Municipal Boundary
County Boundaries

U Hydrant
!P Manholes

60' Expansion
60' Proposed
60' Extension
86' Expansion

86' Extension
86' Proposed
120' Expansion
120 ' Extension

120' Proposed
Abandoned
Future TxDOT
Highway

1", 1 1/2"
2", 2 1/2"
3"
4"
6"

8"
10"
12"
16"
18"

g Unknown

Neighboring Main
Private Main

20"
24"
30"
36"



IH 35 N

(68314)

IH 35 N
(68313)

18738
IH 35 N
(68170)

18738
IH 35 N
(68174)

18658
IH 35 N

(171720)

CIBOLO
VALLEY DR

IH 35 N RAMP

IH 35 N ACCESS RD

PVT RD AT

18738 IH 35 N

PVT RD AT 18905 IH 35 N

IH 35
 N

DEN-OTT HILL

4200' Notification Buffer P arcel Boundaries

0 450 900 1,350 1,800225
Feet

City of S c h ertz
WIEDERS TEIN RANCHLast Upd ate:  Nov em b er 4, 2020

“The City of S c h ertz prov id es th is Geog raph ic Inform ation S ystem  prod uc t "as is" with out any express or im plied
warranty of any k ind  inc lud ing  b ut not lim ited  to th e im plied  warranties of merc h antab ility and  fitness for a partic ular purpose.
In no event sh all Th e City of S c h ertz b e liab le for any spec ial, ind irec t or consequential dam ag es or any d am ag es whatsoever arising  out of or in c onnec tion
with  th e use of or perform anc e of th ese materials. Inform ation pub lish ed  in th is prod uc t c ould  inc lude tec h nical inac c urac ies or typog raph ical errors. P eriod ic al
c h ang es m ay b e mad e and  inform ation m ay b e ad d ed  to th e inform ation h erein.  Th e City of S c h ertz may make im prov em ents and /or c h ang es in th e prod uc t(s)
desc rib ed  h erein at any tim e.”

City of S c h ertz, GIS  S pec ialist:  Bill Gard ner, g is@sc h ertz.com  (210) 619-1185





Agenda No. 14.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Executive Team
Subject: Ordinance No. 20-T-39 - Conduct a public hearing, consideration and/or action upon

an Ordinance to extend the term of the Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment
zone No. 2 (Sedona/Crossvine) and expand the boundaries. First Reading (B. James)

BACKGROUND
In 2006 the City Council approved Ordinance 6-T-61 creating the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone
(TIRZ) #2 which is known as the Sedona/Crossvine TIRZ. Initially, it was intended to run until 2027
and had an area of approximately 825 acres. In addition to the City of Schertz, Bexar County and the
San Antonio River authority participate in the TIRZ #2. The developer of the Crossvine approached the
City about extending the TIRZ #2 to 2041 and expanding the boundaries to 952 acres. On September
22, 2020, the City Council approved Resolution 20-R-107 authorizing an Amended Development
Agreement, Project/Financing Plan and Interlocal Agreement.  These items were recommended for
approval by the TIRZ Board on August 21, 2020. These documents incorporate the extension and
expansion. 
State Law requires the extension and expansion to be approved by Ordinance. As such, Staff is
requesting City Council approve Ordinance 20-T-39 authorizing the extension and expansion as
reflected in the approved Amended Development Agreement, Project/Financing Plan and Interlocal
Agreement.

GOAL 
Provide for the continued high quality of development in the TIRZ by responding to changing economic
and land use conflicts by amending the term of the TIRZ #2 and boundaries.  

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
The approval of the amendment allows for the orderly and high quality development of the area and
responds to the unique issues and challenges of the economy and the area.

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approval of Ordinance 20-T-39 authorizing the extension and expansion of the TIRZ #2 in conjunction
with the recently approved Project and Finance Plan, Interlocal Agreement and Development
Agreement.

FISCAL IMPACT 
The extension of the TIRZ #2 boundaries allows for a longer period of time for the developer to receive
the maximum reimbursement and the expansion of the boundaries allows the increment to be collected
from a larger area.

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 20-T-39.



Attachments
Ordinance 20-T-39 
CCM Sept 20, 2020 
Res 20 R 107 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 20-T-39 
 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS TO 
EXTEND THE TERM OF THE TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT FINANCE ZONE 
NO. 2 (SEDONA/CROSSVINE) AND EXPAND THE BOUNDARIES, CITY OF 
SCHERTZ,  TEXAS. 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the Tax Increment Financing Act, Texas Tax Code, Chapter 311, 
the City Council of the City of Schertz through Ordinance 06-T-61 designated the Tax Increment 
Reinvestment Zone #2 (Sedona/Crossvine) generally located on the west side of FM 1518, north 
of Ware Seguin Road and primarily south of Lower Seguin Road; 

 
WHEREAS, on August 21, 2020 the TIRZ #2 (Sedona/Crossvine) board voted to amend the 
Development Agreement, Project/Financing Plan and Interlocal Agreement for the TIRZ #2 
(Sedona/Crossvine) including expanding the boundaries, extending the term and increasing the 
maximum reimbursement  amount; and 

 
WHEREAS, on September 22, 2020 the City Council of the City of Schertz approved Resolution 
20-R-107 Development Agreement, Project/Financing Plan and Interlocal Agreement  for the 
TIRZ #2 (Sedona/Crossvine) including expanding the boundaries, extending the term and 
increasing the maximum reimbursement  amount; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Tax Increment Financing Act, Texas Tax Code Chapter 311 stipulates that the 
governing body of the municipality may enlarge an existing reinvestment zone may enlarge the 
boundaries of the zone and may extend the term of the zone by ordinance or resolution after notice 
and a hearing on the matter subject to the restrictions on composition of the reinvestment zone; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Schertz held a public hearing on December 1, 2020 
after providing the required notice; and 

 
WHEREAS, less than 30% of the property in the proposed expanded zone, excluding property 
that is publicly owned, is used for residential purposes; NOW THEREFORE: 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS: 
THAT: 

 
Section 1. The boundaries of the TIRZ #2 (Sedona/Crossvine) are hereby amended as per 

Exhibit "A" Boundary Map. 
 

Section 2. The term of the TIRZ #2 (Sedona/Crossvine) is hereby extended to through 
December 31, 2041. 

 
Section 3.The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 

such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes and are adopted as a part of 
the judgment and findings of the Council. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 4. All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 
provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 

Section 6. If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby 
declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 

 
Section 7. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter 
of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Ordinance, was given, all 
as required by Chapter 551, as amended, Texas Government Code. 

 
Section 8. This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final adoption hereof and any 

publication required by law. 
 

Section 9. This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances of the City of 
Schertz, and this Ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinances of the City 
of Schertz except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, are hereby 
repealed. 

 
Approved on first reading the 1st day of December, 2020. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED on final reading the 8th day of December, 2020. 

 
 
 
 

 

Ralph Gutierrez, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 

Brenda Dennis, City Secretary 



 

Exhibit A 
"Boundary Map" 



 







 

RESOLUTION NO.  20-R-107 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SCHERTZ, TEXAS AUTHORIZING AN AMENDED DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT, PROJECT/FINANCE PLAN, AND INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE #2 

(TIRZ) #2 (SEDONA/CROSSVINE).  

WHEREAS, In October 2006 the City created the Reinvestment Zone Number Two.     

WHEREAS, the national economic crisis resulted in slowed development within the City 

and the Reinvestment Zone Number Two. 

WHEREAS, changes in land use compatibility have necessitated adjustments to the 

development plan to ensure compatibility with JBSA Randolph. 

WHEREAS, changes in laws with regard to property tax exemptions have necessitated 

adjustments to the Project and Finance Plan. 

WHEREAS, in recognition of a change in the development climate, and in order to 

continue progress of the project, the parties have agreed to amend the original development 

agreement to reflect a revised project as described in this Agreement and specified in a revised 

project and financing plans. 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend and restate the full terms and provisions of the 

original development agreement, so that from and after the effective date, this amended and 

restated development agreement shall negate, replace, and supersede the original development 

agreement.  

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

THAT: 

Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the 

Amended and Restated Development Agreement, Project and Finance Plan and Interlocal 

Agreement for Reinvestment Zone Number Two Sedona & Crossvine Development Project 

generally as included in Exhibit “A”.  

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, 

and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a 

part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with 

any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the 

provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 



 - 2 - 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America. 

Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person 

or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application 

of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 

Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 

provision. 

Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which 

this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 

given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 

Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final 

passage, and it is so resolved. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 222n day of September 2020. 

CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS 

 

 

  

Mayor, Ralph Gutierrez 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

City Secretary, Brenda Dennis 

(CITY SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 - 3 - 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit ”A” 

 



Agenda No. 15.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: City Secretary
Subject: Workshop Discussion and Update (Ordinance 20-H-18) - Discussion and update regarding the

COVID-19 virus and our current Ordinance No. 20-H-18 Declaration of Local Disaster. (M.
Browne/K. Long/S. Hall)

BACKGROUND
Staff will provide Council with an update regarding the COVID-19 Virus. Discussion will include the
recent Executive Order 29 relating to the use of face coverings.

Attachments
Revised 20-H-18 









Agenda No. 16.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: City Secretary
Subject: City Council Liaison Appointments - Discussion and possible action regarding

various City Council liaison appointments. (Mayor/Council/B. Dennis)

BACKGROUND
Traditionally, after the conclusion of each fiscal year and following the local November election City
Council reviews their liaison assignments on various committees, groups, boards and corporations.  The
purpose for this annual review is to fill any vacancies that may occur due to the results of the election
and/or consider re-assignments by any Councilmember who may wish to transfer from one board to
another. 

The following committees currently have vacancies:

-- Main Street Committee (1 vacancy)  (Previously held by Councilmember Larson)

Current City Council liaison assignment committees are as follows: 

Schertz Animal Services Advisory Committee1.
Schertz Housing Authority Board2.
Schertz Seguin Local Government Corporation (SSLGC)3.
Interview Committee for Appointments to City Boards and Commissions4.
Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation (CVLGC)5.
Audit Committee 6.
Investment Advisory Committee Board7.
Hal Baldwin Scholarship Committee8.
TIRZ II Board9.
Main Street Committee10.

GOAL 
To re-appoint vacancies for liaison positions. 

COMMUNITY BENEFIT
N/A

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDED ACTION 
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT 
None 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council discuss the following City Liaison Assignments: 



Staff recommends Council discuss the following City Liaison Assignments: 
  

Schertz Animal Services Advisory Committee (No vacancy) -
Councilmember Heyward currently serves.

1.

Meets four (4) times a year or as often as needed.
Location of Meeting:  Schertz City Council Chambers Conference Room, Building 4,
Schertz, TX, usually around 6:00 p.m.
Consists of four (4) members which include: 1) a municipal official, 2) a licensed
veterinarian, 3) a shelter operator and 4) a member of an animal welfare organization. 

The members visit the animal shelter at times selected by the committee and make any recommendations concerning
animal care services and shelter operating procedures to maintain compliance with guidelines found in the Health and
Safety Code Chapter 823. Animal Shelters. 
 
2.  Schertz Housing Authority Board (No vacancy) - Councilmember Davis currently serves.

Meets once a month on the second Monday.
Location of Meeting:  204 Schertz Pkwy, Schertz, TX at 6:30 p.m.
Consists of five (5) City Mayoral Appointed Board Commissioners responsible for
establishing policies for the Housing  Authority and overseeing program compliance
as required by the State of Texas and HUD-US Dept. of Housing and Urban
Development. 

The Schertz Housing Authority administers both a public housing and Section 8 housing voucher program. The
housing authority owns and manages one project which contains 76 affordable rental units.  It also administers 153
Section 8 housing vouchers.  Also, according to the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the
housing authority is designated as 'Small', meaning it administers less than 250 units combined total of SEC 8
Vouchers and Public Housing program units.

3.  Schertz Seguin Local Government Corporation (SSLGC) (No vacancy) - Councilmember
Scagliola currently serves as a regular member and Counclmember Brown currently serves as an alternate.

Meets once a month on the third Thursday.
Location of Meeting:  108 W. Mountain Street, Seguin, TX at 1:30 p.m.
Consists of five (5) Directors and two (2) ex officio non-voting member - one from
Seguin and one from Schertz. 

SSLGC is not a committee of the City of Schertz, but a separate corporation owned equally by the cities of Schertz
and Seguin.  The Schertz-Seguin Local Government Corporation (SSLGC) was created as a whole-sale water supply
system.  The Carrizo Aquifer is utilized for this purpose to benefit the cities of Schertz and Seguin.  SSLGC was
formed in December 1998 under Subchapter D of Chapter 431 of the Texas Transportation Code.  It is governed by a
board of five directors and two ex-officio appointed by the City Councils of Schertz and Seguin. 

SSLGC began actual production in September 2002 and has continued to grow to serve the cities of Schertz and
Seguin as their primary water source.  SSLGC maintains a strong wholesale water customer base including contracts
with the Cities of Selma and Universal City as well as Springs-Hill Water Supply Corporation and the San Antonio
Water System.  
No
4.  Interview Committee for Appointments to City Boards and Commissions (No Vacancy) - 
Councilmembers Davis, Scott and Dahle currently serves as a regular member and Councilmember Scagliola
currently serves as an alternate.

Meets annually during late April or early May.
Location of Meeting:  1400 Schertz Pkwy, council Chambers (Bldg. 4) conference
room at 6:00 p.m.
Consists of five (5) members, one (1) Planning & Zoning Commission, one (1)
Economic Development Corporation and three (3) Councilmembers and one (1)



Economic Development Corporation and three (3) Councilmembers and one (1)
alternate Councilmember.

The Interview Committee is responsible for reviewing applicants from residents of the city who have expressed an
interest in serving on a City board, committee, or commission.  After review of all the application on file and/or
doing personal interviews, recommendations are submitted to the City Secretary office for notification and processing. 

5.  Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation (CVLGC) (No Vacancy) - Councilmember
Dahle serves as a regular member and Councilmember Scagliola serves currently as an alternate.

Meets quarterly on the fourth Thursday of October, January, April, July at 9:00 a.m.
Location of Meetings:  Alternating locations: City of Schertz Council Chambers,
1400 Schertz Pkwy, and City of Cibolo Council Chambers, 200 S. Main St. at 9:00
a.m.
Consists of four (4) directors. 

Cibolo Valley Local Government Corporation filed as a domestic nonprofit corporation in the State of Texas on July
11, 2011.  The purposes for which the corporation was organized were to aid and assist the cities (Schertz, Cibolo,
Selma, Seguin, and Converse) in acquiring, constructing, leasing, improving, enlarging, extending, repairing,
maintaining, and operating a water utility system pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 552 of the Texas Local
Government code.  The current official office is located at 108 W. Mountain Street in Seguin, TX.  The organization
is now a separate corporation owned equally by the cities of Schertz and Cibolo.

6.  Audit Committee (No Vacancy) -  Mayor Gutierrez and Councilmembers Davis and Heyward currently
serves.

Meets annually in February or March (or as otherwise needed)
Location of Meeting: Bldg. #2 - Administration Conference Room
Consists of seven (7) members to include three (3) councilmembers

The Audit Committee reviews the City's annual financial statement submitted by the auditors and recommend
acceptance to the City Council.  This committee also reviews proposals/bids for auditing firms when the City looks
for new auditors.  The seven members usually consist of the three Councilmembers, Assistant City Manager, City
Manager, Finance Director and the Assistant Finance Director.  

7.  Investment Advisory Committee (No Vacancy) - Mayor Gutierrez and
Councilmember Heyward currently serves.

Meets twice annually: in December and April. 
Location of Meeting:  Bldg. #2 - Administration Conference Room.
Consists of nine (9) members: Two Councilmembers, two (2) Assistant City
Managers and one (1) Executive Director EDC, City Manager, Finance Director,
Assistant Finance Director and a Financial Analyst. 

The Investment Advisory Committee reviews the City's investment portfolio, processes, and practices to ensure
adherence to the Public Funds Investment Act and to the adopted Investment Policy.  They meet twice per year and
will need to be certified on the Public Funds Investment Act every other year.  The Investment Policy is reviewed by
Council annually and the Committee will review changes proposed by staff to make sure it is in compliance with the
Public Funds Investment Act and in the best interest of the City.

8.  Hal Baldwin Scholarship Committee (No vacancy)  - Councilmember Scagliola currently serves).

Meets as needed.
Location of Meeting:  city Council Chambers (Bldg. 4) Conference  Room.
Consists of seven members (but this varies, the committee decides who is on it, but
(one Councilmember is on the Committee).

The City of Schertz established the Hal Baldwin Scholarship to encourage high school seniors who are residents of
Schertz to consider public service as a career path in education, local, state and/or federal government.  The
scholarship honors Hal Baldwin, who served the City for more than 30 years as a civic volunteer, an employee, a



scholarship honors Hal Baldwin, who served the City for more than 30 years as a civic volunteer, an employee, a
Councilmember, and Mayor.  The Scholarship is awarded annually on a competitive basis and is open to any
currently enrolled high school senior who reside in Schertz.  The Scholarship Panel reviews each complete
application package and submits their recommended Scholarship recipient(s)' name(s) to the Schertz City Council. 
The final selection is announced later during the year at a regular council meeting and checks are presented to the
students.  The City Manager's office serves as the liaison for this committee.

9.  TIRZ II Board (No vacancy)  - Councilmembers Davis and Dahle currently serves.

Meets on the 2nd Tuesday's months of February 11th, April 14th, July 14th, and
October 13th - Bob Andrews Conference Room 4:00 p.m.
Consists of 11 members.

In Ordinance No. 06-T-61 dated December 19, 2006, the City created the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Number
Two, generally referred to as the Sedona or Crossvine TIRZ. The TIRZ allows for the reimbursement of costs
associated with the development of the project from property tax revenue generated by the increase in value of
properties within the TIRZ. In 2008 the City Council authorized the original Development Agreement.
 
The project, originally named Sedona was constructed, but with the downturn in the economy, development did not
continue. The project was revived by the new developer, Chris Price, as The Crossvine and construction resumed.
Staff has been in discussions with the developer about the need to update documents associated with the project as a
result of the changes being proposed to the project. Initially the project, as evidenced by the first phase of Sedona,
was envisioned as more standard suburban subdivision with a grid pattern of lots. As is proposed now, the
development includes a mix of lot and product types, curvilinear streets, drainage areas integrated as open space into
the development, and unifying design elements such as fencing, open space, signage, and landscaping.

The City Council of the City of Schertz designated TAX INCREMENT REINVESTMENT ZONE NUMBER TWO
CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS the Zone to enable the development of approximately 825 acres of land which may
contain up to 2,200 residential units pursuant to the PUD described below with estimated average sales prices of
$140,000-- $240,000 per single family home and approximately 130 acres of open space including but not limited to
public parks and trails to be known as the Sedona development.  The project will result in a primarily residential
development located in the southern portion of the City.  The Zone was established pursuant to the provisions of the
Tax Increment Financing "TIF" Act, Chapter 311, Texas Tax Code as amended. 

The developer of the project is Schertz 1518 LTD.  The developer is requesting the City of Schertz, Bexar Couty and
the San Antonio River Authority (SARA) participate in the tax increment financing to help fund public infrastructure
improvements to be located within the development.  The duration of the Zone is projected to be twenty-one (21)
years with the Zone being in existence through calendar year 2027.

10.  Main Street Committee (One vacancy)  - Mayor Gutierrez and Councilmember Davis and serves and
Councilmember Larson served)

Meets as needed.
Location of Meeting:  1400 Schertz Pkwy, Bldg. 4, Council Chambers Conference
Room, generally right after the regular Tuesday City Council meeting.
Consists of 4 Councilmembers and the Mayor. 

 



Agenda No. 17.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council Meeting: December 1, 2020
Department: Finance
Subject: Update on Utility Billing Operation Changes. (B. James/J. Walters)

BACKGROUND
Drive-up Kiosk
Effective October 1, 2020, the Utility Billing Department opened up the drive-up kiosk located next to
the old drive-thru window on building one. Residents are now able to pay their utility bills using the
new drive-up kiosk. The kiosk accepts cash (round to the nearest dollar), check/money order, and
credit/debit card payments. When using the kiosk, residents can scan their bill, enter their account
number, or search by last name/house number. The kiosk will provide a printed receipt, or an emailed
or text copy of the receipt per the residents’ selection request.

The drive through window is still functional but will be closed for normal business. In events the kiosk
is down or another special event, the window can be opened and staffed just as before.

Billing Cycle Change
The results from our staffing study supports reducing the number of billing cycles we currently have.
The study suggested that with few utility billing cycles, Utility Billing employees will be able to manage
the billing process more effectively and use the rest of the month to focus on handling customer
inquiries, setting up new accounts, etc. The staffing study advised that the Department will gain an
estimated 10% cumulative employee efficiency by reducing the read and cycle dates down to two each
month.

Effective November 1,, 2020, the Utility Billing Department has successfully reduced the eight billing
cycles to three billing cycles. We have received minimal complaints, and those residents who have
questioned the change had a complete understanding. Our department will continue to work with
residents and not penalize or disconnect services due to non-payment until after the first of the New
Year 2021. This will allow residents to adjust to the new two billing cycles and make payment
arrangements necessary to bring their account to a current balance.

Cycle 1 will now have a read date of the 1st of the month with a due date of the 25th and Cycle 2 will
have a read date of the 15th of the month and have a due date of the following 10th.In the map attached
cycle 1 is orange and cycle 2 is blue.

Attachments
New Cycle Map 



 

 



Agenda No. 18.
 

CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM
  

City Council
Meeting: December 1, 2020

Department: Executive Team
Subject: Update on Scope and Philosophy of the Comprehensive Plan and UDC

Update. (B. James)

BACKGROUND
As staff works to finalize the scope documents for the Comprehensive Plan and UDC updates, it is
important to have agreement on the expectations for these updates. These include the degree to which
the current Comprehensive Clan captures the vision of the community, the amount of public
involvement expected, and the range of elements to be included. With the UDC update, the two key
questions center on the amount of public involvement in the process and the degree to which the
document needs to be tweaked versus overhauled.  Staff expects to rely on boards and commissions as
well as a few stakeholder groups to gather public input rather than hosting a series of large community
meetings.  Staff is also expecting more to tweak the UDC rather than overhaul it as the primary
complaint about the UDC is a lack of flexibility. 

Attachments
Comp Plan and UDC Update 



Comprehensive Plan Update
Virtually all comprehensive plans begin with a discussion of issues and opportunities, including 
the community’s long-term vision; data and analysis of current conditions within the community; 
and the public participation process. Every plan is a combination of consolidating, tweaking, and 
fundamentally rethinking different aspects of the City’s current plan. Staff anticipates this update 
to be primarily a consolidating of the plan (the sector plan update, the parks plan update and the 
thoroughfare plan update) and tweaking – adjusting the vision for certain areas based on 
activities at JBSA Randolph and the suburbanization of rural areas. 

The bulk of the comprehensive plan is comprised of a series of thematic elements or chapters. 
Traditional elements cover topics such as land use, transportation, parks, housing, economic 
development, natural resources, and community facilities; newer elements may address issues 
such as sustainability, natural hazards, public health, or cl imate change. Some elements such as 
the thoroughfare plan can require significant analysis and modeling if the land uses change 
dramatically. They can also simply be slightly adjusted to account for other changes in the plan.
Staff is not anticipating such significant changes as to warrant new modeling of the recently 
updated thoroughfare plan or the currently being updated utility master plan. Staff is also not 
anticipating including newer elements such as public health, climate change, natural hazards 
(though there will be an awareness of floodplain issues) or higher education.

The guidance component of comprehensive plans is traditionally structured around goals, 
objectives, policies, and actions. Goals are general statements about desirable future 
conditions. Objectives are statements of measurable outcomes in furtherance of a certain 
goal. Policies are statements of intent with enough clarity to guide decision making. Actions are 
directives about programs, regulations, operational procedures, or public investments intended 
to guide the implementation of specific policies. Staff anticipates following this traditional model 
but using less text and more graphics as is the current trend.

A vital but sometimes underdeveloped feature of comprehensive plans is implementation, 
evaluation, and monitoring. Implementation can be passive and or active. Providing a detailed 
implementation program in the plan influences if and when plan recommendations will be 
enacted. Benchmarks and indicators with clearly defined metrics help quantify progress towards 
community goals. Traditionally, Schertz has taken a more passive approach – allowing new 
development and private sector investment to drive the plan. Generally that is anticipated to be 
the case with this update except in the areas of economic development and entertainment and 
recreation. 

The plan must then be implemented through regulations and programs to translate the plan's 
guiding policies and principles into on-the-ground outcomes. As such it is important to consider 
what regulations would be necessary in order to achieve the desired outcomes and assess
whether the community is willing to regulate to that degree. Finally, plan monitoring and 
evaluation should be regular and ongoing.

Public engagement and participation is vital to a legitimate and effective planning process. There 
are many methods and techniques for soliciting and incorporating public participation into the 



planning process. It is important to develop a plan for ensuring public participation, including 
participation by underrepresented groups that may be missed by traditional public engagement 
approaches. Staff would anticipate a moderate level of public engagement with the Planning and 
Zoning Committee guiding the effort and input from other city boards and commissions and some 
traditional public engagement – community meetings and internet surveys.

UDC Update
The update to the UDC will track somewhat behind the update to the Comprehensive Plan, but 
to be clear will occur concurrently. This lag is to allow final updates to the UDC as part of 
implementation of the Comprehensive Plan. Generally, the goal of the UDC update is to ensure 
compliance with State Law, reflect actual practice, be very clear as to standards, and provide 
flexibility. The flexibility is expected to be achieved through a menu board option of 
requirements. For example, the landscaping section may include 20 different requirements and 
new development must comply with at least 15 of those – with the developer determining which 
15 they want to meet. It is important to note that complaints will still arise from developers only 
wanting to meet 14 of the requirements, etc. Generally, staff is proposing to only regulate in 
areas where there is a clear public need – such as safety and quality of life, but is not anticipating 
trying to regulate to the degree that there will be no develop that no one in the community has 
any complaints about. 


	Agenda
	Minutes 12-10 & 12-16
	ATT_11-10-2020 Minutes
	ATT_11-16-2020 Minutes
	Main Street Local Flavor Grant 539 and 820 Main 20-R-139
	ATT_20-R-139
	Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Schertz Main Street Local Flavor Economic Development Grant requests for 539 Main Street and 820 Main Street subject to the approved criteria of the program and execution of a funding agreement generally...
	Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.
	Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to t...
	Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.
	Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevert...
	Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, i...
	Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it is so resolved.

	ATT_agreement 539 Main
	ATT_agreement 820 Main
	ATT_Photos 539 and 820 Main
	Fluitt Tract Comp Plan Amendment - 20-S-37
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-37
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-37 Exhibit A
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-37 Exhibit B
	ATT_Aerial Map
	ATT_Comprehensive Plan Amendment Request Letter
	ATT_Comprehensive Plan (Schertz Sector Plan) - South Schertz Future Land Use Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Responses
	Ord. No. 20-K-35- Urban Lane Right-of-Way Abandonment
	ATT_Ordinance No. 20-K-35
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-K-35
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS:

	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Map
	Exhibit
	Mailing List

	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Letter
	Contract for Bond Arbitrage Services
	ATT_Resolution 20-R-140
	RESOLUTION NO.  20-R-140
	Section 1. The City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute and deliver the Agreement with Avant Strategic Partners in substantially the form set forth on Exhibit A.
	Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council.
	Section 3. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to t...
	Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas and the United States of America.
	Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevert...
	Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, i...
	Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it is so resolved.
	EXHIBIT A
	________________ services AGREEMENT

	ATT_Avant Services Agreement
	Construction Management of Schertz Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lanes Project - 20-R-119
	ATT_Resolution
	ATT_AG_CM Proposal
	LGPP Proposal
	Manpower Exhibit
	Summary
	2020
	2021
	Rate


	Construction of Schertz Pedestrian Routes & Bike Lanes - 20-R-118
	ATT_Resolution 20-R-1118 DandS Concrete
	ATT_Overall Exhibit
	Sheets and Views
	EXHIBIT 11X17


	ATT_Draft Agreement
	Resolution No. 20-R-134  
	ATT_Resolution 20-R-134
	ATT_Lease Agreement
	ATT_Discontinuance Letter
	ATT_Sole Source Letter
	ATT_Quote
	Budget Amendment Ordinance 20-T-38
	ATT_Ordinance 20-T-38
	Resolution to Approve Adding Christmas Eve to Holiday Schedule & Education Pay for All Employees
	ATT_Resolution 20-R-141
	603 Main Street - Zone Change to MSMU
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-41
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-41 Exhibit A
	ATT_Aerial Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Responses
	539 Main Street - Zone Change to MSMU
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-42
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-42 Exhibit A
	ATT_Aerial Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Responses
	Wiederstein Ranch Lot 1, Blk 1 (EVO) SUP
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-40
	ATT_Ordinance 20-S-40 Exhibit A
	Sheets and Views
	C-1 (GENERAL) SHEET 2


	ATT_Aerial Map
	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Map
	Wiederstein_Ranch_VarianceMap_20201104
	EVO_Entertainment_Address_List

	ATT_Public Hearing Notice Response
	Ordinance 20 T 39 TIRZ 2 amendment
	ATT_Ordinance 20-T-39
	ORDINANCE NO. 20-T-39
	BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SCHERTZ, TEXAS: THAT:

	ATT_CCM Sept 20, 2020
	ATT_Res 20 R 107
	Ordinance 20-H-18 Declaration of Local Disaster
	ATT_Revised 20-H-18
	Liaison Assignments 
	Utility Billing Process Updates
	ATT_New Cycle Map
	Comprehensive Plan and UDC Updates
	ATT_Comp Plan and UDC Update


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




